
Bastrop City Council Agenda May 24, 2022 Page 1 of 4 

 Bastrop, TX City Council Meeting Agenda 

Bastrop City Hall City Council Chambers 

1311 Chestnut Street 

Bastrop, TX 78602 

(512) 332-8800

May 24, 2022 

Regular Meeting at 6:30 P.M. 

City of Bastrop City Council meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability.  If you 

require special assistance, please contact the City Secretary at (512) 332-8800 or write 1311 

Chestnut Street, 78602, or by calling through a T.D.D. (Telecommunication Device for the Deaf) to 

Relay Texas at 1-800-735-2989 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

The City of Bastrop reserves the right to reconvene, recess, or realign the Regular Session or 
called Executive Session or order of business at any time prior to adjournment. 

PLEASE NOTE:  ANYONE IN ATTENDANCE WISHING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL MUST 
COMPLETE A CITIZEN COMMENT FORM AND GIVE THE COMPLETED FORM TO THE CITY 
SECRETARY PRIOR TO THE START OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING. ALTERNATELY, IF 
YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND THE COUNCIL MEETING, YOU MAY COMPLETE A CITIZEN 
COMMENT FORM WITH YOUR COMMENTS AT 
WWW.CITYOFBASTROP.ORG/CITIZENCOMMENTFORM BEFORE 5:00 P.M. ON MAY 24, 
2022.   COMMENTS SUBMITTED BY THIS TIME WILL BE DISTRIBUTED TO THE CITY 
COUNCIL PRIOR TO MEETING COMMENCEMENT, REFERENCED AT THE MEETING, AND 
INCLUDED WITH THE MEETING MINUTES.  COMMENTS FROM EACH INDIVIDUAL WILL 
BE LIMITED TO THREE (3) MINUTES WHEN READ ALOUD. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Luna Vargas and Braxton Roper, Emile Elementary

Safety Patrol

TEXAS PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Honor the Texas Flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible.

3. INVOCATION – Phil Woods, Police Chaplain

4. PRESENTATIONS

4A. Mayor’s Report

http://www.cityofbastrop.org/CITIZENCOMMENTFORM


Bastrop City Council Agenda May 24, 2022 Page 2 of 4 

4B. Council Members’ Report 

4C. City Manager’s Report 

5. WORK SESSION/BRIEFINGS

5A. Receive report from the Bastrop Independent School District regarding BISD bond funded 
improvements within the Gills Branch Watershed, compliance with City of Bastrop 
Stormwater Management Criteria, the BISD District Proposal, receive information from city 
engineer, consider potential terms of a possible agreement, and provide direction to City 
Manager and City Attorney as appropriate. (Submitted by: Paul A. Hofmann, City 
Manager) 

5B.  Receive status report on Pecan Park Development, approximately 62 acres of the Pecan 
Park Development more specifically the Pecan Park commercial section better described 
as Parcel 1:  Block 8, Lot 1, the Final Plat of Pecan Park Commercial, a subdivision in 
Bastrop County, Texas, Parcel 2:  Common Area 1, Pecan Park Commercial Phase 1, a 
subdivision in Bastrop County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof, recorded in 
Book 5, Page 146-A of the Plat records of Bastrop County, Texas., Parcel 3: 55.355 acres, 
more or less, located in Bastrop County, Texas, Parcel 1, Parcel 2, and Parcel 3 
collectively, the Commercial Property; the current Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
between the City of Bastrop and owner; prior discussions with the owner and planning 
staff on amendments to the MOU, receive comments from the owner; and provide 
direction to City Manager and City Attorney as appropriate. (Submitted by: Paul A. 
Hofmann, City Manager)   

6. STAFF AND BOARD REPORTS

6A. Receive presentation on the unaudited Monthly Financial Report for the period ending 
April 30, 2022. (Submitted by: Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer) 

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS

At this time, three (3) minute comments will be taken from the audience on any topic. 
Anyone in attendance wishing to address the Council must complete a citizen comment 
form and give the completed form to the City Secretary prior to the start of the City Council 
meeting. Alternately, if you are unable to attend the council meeting, you may complete a 
citizen comment form with your comments at www.cityofbastrop.org/citizencommentform 
before 5:00 p.m. on May 24, 2022.   Comments submitted by this time will be distributed 
to the city council prior to meeting commencement, referenced at the meeting, and 
included with the meeting minutes.  Comments from each individual will be limited to three 
(3) minutes when read aloud. In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, if a citizen
discusses any item not on the agenda, City Council cannot discuss issues raised or make
any decision at this time.  Instead, City Council is limited to making a statement of specific
factual information or a recitation of existing policy in response to the inquiry.   Issues may
be referred to City Manager for research and possible future action.

It is not the intention of the City of Bastrop to provide a public forum for the embarrassment 
or demeaning of any individual or group.  Neither is it the intention of the Council to allow 
a member of the public to slur the performance, honesty and/or integrity of the Council, as 
a body, or any member or members of the Council individually or collectively, or members 
of the City’s staff.  Accordingly, profane, insulting or threatening language directed toward 
the Council and/or any person in the Council’s presence will not be tolerated. 

http://www.cityofbastrop.org/CITIZENCOMMENTFORM


Bastrop City Council Agenda May 24, 2022 Page 3 of 4 

8. CONSENT AGENDA

The following may be acted upon in one motion.  A Council Member or a citizen may request
items be removed from the Consent Agenda for individual consideration.

8A. Consider action to approve City Council minutes from the May 10, 2022, Regular meeting 
and May 12, 2022, Pre-Budget Planning Workshop. (Submitted by: Ann Franklin, City 
Secretary) 

8B. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2022-52 of the City Council of the City of 
Bastrop, Texas, approving a professional engineering services contract with TRC 
Engineers, Inc. for the Riverwood Water Main Replacement – Phase I to a not to exceed 
amount of Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($55,000.00); authorizing the City Manager to 
execute all necessary documents; providing for a repealing clause; and establishing an 
effective date. (Submitted by: Fabiola de Carvalho, MIAM, Director of Engineering and 
Capital Project Management) 

9. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION

9A. Hold a public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2022-
14 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, annexing Burleson Crossing East, for 
12.95 acres of land out of the Nancy Blakey Survey, Abstract No. 98, located east of 
Edward Burleson Lane and north of State Highway 71, as shown in Exhibit A, providing 
for findings of fact, adoption, establishing zoning and character district, repealer, 
severability, filing and enforcement; establishing an effective date; and proper notice and 
meeting, and move to include on the June 14, 2022 Regular Agenda for the second 
reading. (Submitted by: Jennifer C. Bills, Director of Planning & Development) 

9B. Hold public hearing and consider action on the first reading of Ordinance 2022-15 of the 
City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, approving the Burleson Crossing East Zoning 
Concept Scheme, changing the zoning for 12.95 acres out of the Nancy Blakey Survey 
Abstract 98, from P2 Rural to P5 Core and establishing a plan on 19.81 acres, located 
east of Edward Burleson Land and north of State Highway 71, within the city limits of the 
City of Bastrop, as shown in Exhibit A, consideration of warrants and providing for findings 
of fact, adoption, repealer, severability and enforcement, proper notice and meeting; and 
establishing an effective date and move to include on the June 14, 2022 Consent Agenda 
for the second reading.  (Submitted by: Jennifer C. Bills, Director of Planning & 
Development) 

10. ADJOURNMENT

All items on the agenda are eligible for discussion and action unless specifically stated 
otherwise. 

The Bastrop City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time 
during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized 
by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 
(Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 
551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.087 
(Economic Development), and §551.086 (Competitive Matters regarding Electric Utility). 



Bastrop City Council Agenda May 24, 2022 Page 4 of 4 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting as posted in accordance 
with the regulations of the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board located at the entrance 
to the City of Bastrop City Hall, a place of convenient and readily accessible to the general public, 
as well as to the City’s website, www.cityofbastrop.org  and said Notice was posted on the 
following date and time:  Thursday, May 19, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. and remained posted for at least 
two hours after said meeting was convened. 

___________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 

http://www.cityofbastrop.org/


 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 24, 2022     AGENDA ITEM: 4A 
 
TITLE:   
Mayor’s Report 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED BY: 
Paul A. Hofmann, City Manager 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• PowerPoint 
 

Texas Local Government Code, Section 551.045 – Governing Body of Municipality or County: 
Reports about Items of Community Interest Regarding Which No Action Will Be Taken: 
 
(a)  Notwithstanding Sections 551.041 and 551.042, a quorum of the governing body of a 
municipality or county may receive from staff of the political subdivision and a member of the 
governing body may make a report about items of community interest during a meeting of the 
governing body without having given notice of the subject of the report as required by this 
subchapter if no action is taken and, except as provided by Section 551.042, possible action 
is not discussed regarding the information provided in the report. 
 
(b)  For purposes of Subsection (a), "items of community interest" includes: 
 

(1)  expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; 
(2)  information regarding holiday schedules; 
(3)  an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, public employee, or other 

citizen, except that a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person's 
public office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary recognition for 
purposes of this subdivision; 

(4)  a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the governing 
body; 

(5)  information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event organized or 
sponsored by an entity other than the governing body that was attended or is 
scheduled to be attended by a member of the governing body or an official or 
employee of the political subdivision; and 

(6)  announcements involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety of 
people in the political subdivision that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Mayor’s Report
May 24, 2022



Latest Activities
May 5 - 18

Events in 2022: 117

BEST County Mixer

Disc Golf Course – Bob Bryant Park

Best Warrior Competition

Reid Sharp Branch

#teamCurtis

Halley Glenn
Law Enforcement
Awards Banquet



Planned Events
May 19 – May 24

• May 19/20 – TML Small Cities Conference
• May 21 – UT Law School Graduation
• May 23 – CAPCOG Clean Air Coalition Subcommittee meeting
• May 24 – City Council Meeting



Upcoming Events & City Meetings

• May 25 – Bastrop Ladies Lunch and Learn Speaker
• May 28 – Lost Pines Showdown Barbeque (Rotary)
• May 30- Memorial Day Event
• May 31 – Community  Support Quarterly Meeting
• June 1 - Chamber Luncheon
• June 4 – March for Jesus (Bastrop Ministerial Alliance)
• June 6 – Library Board
• June 7 – BEDC Budget Workshop
• June 8 – CAPCOG Executive Committee Meeting
• June 9 – TML Training
• June 10 – TCMA Welcome
• June 14–

• Government Affairs
• City Council Meeting



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
  

MEETING DATE:   May 24, 2022     AGENDA ITEM:  4B 
 
TITLE:   
Council Members’ Report 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED BY: 
Paul A. Hofmann, City Manager 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
 
   Texas Local Government Code, Section 551.045 – Governing Body of Municipality or County: 
Reports about Items of Community Interest Regarding Which No Action Will Be Taken: 
 
(a)  Notwithstanding Sections 551.041 and 551.042, a quorum of the governing body of a 
municipality or county may receive from staff of the political subdivision and a member of the 
governing body may make a report about items of community interest during a meeting of the 
governing body without having given notice of the subject of the report as required by this 
subchapter if no action is taken and, except as provided by Section 551.042, possible action is 
not discussed regarding the information provided in the report. 
 
(b)  For purposes of Subsection (a), "items of community interest" includes: 
 

(1)  expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; 
(2)  information regarding holiday schedules; 
(3)  an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, public employee, or other 

citizen, except that a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person's public 
office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary recognition for purposes 
of this subdivision; 

(4)  a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the governing body; 
(5) information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event organized or 

sponsored by an entity other than the governing body that was attended or is 
scheduled to be attended by a member of the governing body or an official or 
employee of the political subdivision; and 

(6)  announcements involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety of 
people in the political subdivision that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 24, 2022     AGENDA ITEM: 4C 
 
TITLE:   
City Manager’s Report 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED BY: 
Paul A. Hofmann, City Manager 
   
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Texas Local Government Code, Section 551.045 – Governing Body of Municipality or County: 
Reports about Items of Community Interest Regarding Which No Action Will Be Taken: 
 
(a)  Notwithstanding Sections 551.041 and 551.042, a quorum of the governing body of a 
municipality or county may receive from staff of the political subdivision and a member of the 
governing body may make a report about items of community interest during a meeting of the 
governing body without having given notice of the subject of the report as required by this 
subchapter if no action is taken and, except as provided by Section 551.042, possible action 
is not discussed regarding the information provided in the report. 
 
(b)  For purposes of Subsection (a), "items of community interest" includes: 
 

(1)  expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; 
(2)  information regarding holiday schedules; 
(3)  an honorary or salutary recognition of a public official, public employee, or other 

citizen, except that a discussion regarding a change in the status of a person's 
public office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary recognition for 
purposes of this subdivision; 

(4)  a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the governing 
body; 

(5)  information regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event organized or 
sponsored by an entity other than the governing body that was attended or is 
scheduled to be attended by a member of the governing body or an official or 
employee of the political subdivision; and 

(6)  announcements involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety of 
people in the political subdivision that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  May 24, 2022     AGENDA ITEM: 5A 
 
TITLE:  

Receive report from the Bastrop Independent School District regarding BISD bond funded 
improvements within the Gills Branch Watershed, compliance with City of Bastrop Stormwater 
Management Criteria, the BISD District Proposal, receive information from city engineer, consider 
potential terms of a possible agreement, and provide direction to City Manager and City Attorney 
as appropriate. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Trey Job, Assistant City Manager for Community Development 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Bastrop Independent School District passed a bond in May of 2021 to provide much needed 
renovations to campuses throughout the district to provide adequate space for students as growth 
continues. The school district approached the City of Bastrop on September 16, 2021 to ask 
questions about the requirements of redevelopment of Mina Elementary. Several processes were 
discussed. After the meeting the District’s Engineer was provided a link to the Stormwater 
Drainage Manual along with other useful links to different code sections.   
 
Once the District’s Engineer had time to review some of the requirements BISD began requesting 
meetings to discuss an interlocal agreement that would not require the school to follow the City 
of Bastrop’s Stormwater Design Manual, specifically the requirement in the Gills Branch 
watershed to limit the post-developed 100-year, 24-hour design storm peak stormwater runoff 
discharges to not exceed pre-developed 25-year, 24-hour design storm peak stormwater runoff 
discharges.  
 
After some discussion the City proposed BISD come to City Council with a proposed solution if 
they believed the required standard to be unattainable. The district is now proposing to pay a 
proportional share of the Gills Branch Improvements needed to mitigate flooding and to not 
increase impervious cover. The attached memo from Mr. Edwards is requesting the district’s 
requirement would be to provide a net zero increase to the impervious cover and provide a 
proportional share contribution to the Gills Branch Flood mitigation Project.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Make a motion to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with BISD that allows 
the proportional share to be paid by cash, or land equivalent to the value of the proportional share 
or a combination of both, as shown in the City Engineer’s memo.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Memo from Tony Buonodono, City Engineer describing the proportional share required by 
the district as part of the flood mitigation project.  

• Memo from Barry Edwards, Superintendent of BISD 



To: Paul Hofmann, City Manager

City of Bastrop

From: Barry Edwards, Superintendent

Date: May 18, 2022

Re: Proposed Resolution for City Council Consideration

Introduction

Bastrop ISD encompasses 433 square miles in Bastrop County with 15 schools and 12,100 students.

Based upon demographic data received in a Spring 2022 report developed for the District by Zonda

Education, we anticipate 12,600 to enroll in the fall of 2022. The enrollment growth we have experienced

since 2016 is close to 14%. In the next five years, we are forecasted to have 15,300 students.

To address explosive growth and much-needed improvements to our buildings, voters approved an
historic bond in May of 2021 that will build two new elementary schools and make major renovations all
throughout the district. Prior to the passage of this historic bond, it had been 14 years since the voters
had approved a bond. As a result of that delay, we are very behind in upgrading facilities and in building
new ones. The growth that we are seeing throughout our community is unprecedented, and with the
2021 bond program, we are aiming to address that growth in enrollment as well as move towards
top-notch facilities, which of course is what our children and families deserve.

Background

Within the city limits, District bond projects include renovations to Bastrop High School, Bastrop Middle
School, Bastrop Intermediate School, and Emile and Mina elementary schools. The City of Bastrop’s
Drainage Criteria Manual includes additional requirements for projects within the Gills Branch
Watershed that disturb more than 10,000 square feet of land. For our purposes, this impacts Bastrop
High School, Emile Elementary, and Mina Elementary.

Our project manager and engineering team began meeting in earnest with city staff in September 2021
to understand the City’s requirements and to do our part to address those requirements. We have
appreciated everyone’s investment and contribution to the process. In addition, the District’s engineers
reviewed the reports and design plans prepared by Halff Associates, which are summarized below.

906 Farm Street • Bastrop, TX 78602 • (512) 772-7100 • bisdtx.org



Halff Associates Overview

Stantec received six (6) pdf reports, engineering construction documents, and technical specifications

prepared by Halff Associates from 2018 to 2021.

Bastrop County Flood Protection Planning Study (March 1, 2018)

This study is a high-level planning that discusses possible alternatives to mitigate flooding similar to

events in 2016. Halff proposed three possible solutions:

1. Railroad Expansion and Channel Modifications

a. Halff states that the cost of these improvements outweighed the benefits

b. It is our understanding that a significant portion of these improvements are under

construction.

2. Road Crossings and Channel Modifications

a. Removes 15 structures from the floodplain at a cost of $7.6 million

b. Halff recommended further study and ultimately recommended proceeding with

developing construction documents for this option

3. Regional Detention Basins

a. These options provided the most relief from flooding by removing 16 structures from

the floodplain at the cost of $12 million (one of the basins being located on the District’s

property near Emile Elementary).

Gills Branch Overflow 2D Analysis (April 26, 2018)

A technical memorandum describing the methodologies used to analyze flooding in the Gills Branch

watershed. This memo provides further details and a description of the design approach described in

Alternative 2 in the Planning Study.

Gills Branch -- Flood Mitigation Improvements 100% Engineering Design Report (March 30, 2021)

This report summarizes the 100% analysis, design, specifications, and probable construction cost

estimate for the Gills Branch Flood Mitigation Improvement Project.

Gills Branch -- Flood Mitigation Improvements 100% Plans (March 30, 2021)

Signed and Sealed set of mitigation plans. Plans provide a cover sheet with a detailed index of sheets

with an assigned sheet and description name.

Gills Branch -- Flood Mitigation Improvements Technical Specifications (March 30, 2021)

Detailed TXDOT items specifications, including an overview, materials, construction, measurement, and

payment descriptions.

Gills Branch -- Flood Mitigation Improvements Engineer’s Estimate of Probable Construction Cost (March

30, 2021)

Includes detailed quantities summarizing necessary construction items for the selected alternative

method regarding flood mitigation improvements.

906 Farm Street • Bastrop, TX 78602 • (512) 772-7100 • bisdtx.org



District Proposal

After very careful consideration and given Stantec’s experience in the Land Development community, our

understanding of Halff’s documents, and the various conversations between BISD and City staff, we have

identified a solution for consideration by the Bastrop City Council that we believe to be in the best

interest of taxpayers and other stakeholders of both the District and the City. The proposed solution has

three parts:

1. The District conveys to the City the land needed to proceed with the Phase 1 channel

improvements of the Gills Branch for mitigation credits.  (The channel located on the District’s

property near Emile Elementary.)

2. The District shall develop plans in such a way as to result in a net zero increase in impervious

cover.

3. The District contributes a proportional share to the Gills Branch Improvements

The District and the City have a successful history of working together for the public interest, and the

execution of this agreement is intended to advance that cooperative, good faith working relationship in

the public interest, with particular focus on the development, and improvement of all District campuses

located and/or governed by the Gills Branch Watershed, including but not limited to Bastrop High School,

Mina Elementary School, and Emile Elementary School.

Conclusion

Adding classrooms to our schools to accommodate growth and reconfiguring into a PK-5 school model at

the eight elementary schools in BISD is contingent upon the completion of Mina Elementary and Emile

Elementary bond projects. The two new elementary schools plus the “new” Mina Elementary are

planned to open in the fall of 2023.

We urgently seek the Bastrop City Council’s consideration and approval of the District’s proposed

solution.

906 Farm Street • Bastrop, TX 78602 • (512) 772-7100 • bisdtx.org



 
 

1311 Chestnut Street P.O. Box 427 Bastrop, Texas 78602 512.332.8800 www.cityofbastrop.org 

 

 

 

Technical Memorandum 
 

Date:   May 19, 2022 

 

To:   Trey Job, CPM 

Assistant City Manager for Community Development 

City of Bastrop, Texas 

 

From:   Tony Buonodono, P.E., PMP 

  City Engineer 

  City of Bastrop, Texas    

 

Subject:  Bastrop ISD Contribution to Gills Branch Watershed 

 

 

Introduction 

 

The City of Bastrop supports the development of school facilities.  As with all development in the 

City, the criteria established in Chapter 16 of the Code of Ordinances and the Stormwater Drainage 

Design Manual (adopted May 2019) are required to be followed.  The proposed development is in 

the Gills Branch watershed.  Therefore, post-development peak discharge for the 100-year design 

storm is required to not exceed peak flow of the 25-year design storm under natural conditions.  

In the interest of partnership, the City has proposed allowing Bastrop ISD to provide detention to 

not increase stormwater peak flow discharge above natural conditions for the 100-year storm (in 

lieu of the more restrictive 25-year storm) and to contribute the cost for their proportional share, 

based on percent of flow, of the Gills Branch Flood Mitigation Improvements project.   

 

This memorandum summarizes calculations to determine the proportion of flow in the Gills 

Branch Watershed that are the result of runoff from Bastrop ISD properties.  The overall creek 

flow for the 25-year and 100-year storm events, impervious cover, and total project cost was 

provided by Halff Associates, Inc. as part of their efforts for the drainage master plan updates and 

design of the Gills Branch Flood Mitigation Improvements.  

 

The Gills Branch Flood Mitigation Improvements Project is intended to be a piece of the solution 

to reduce flooding in the Gills Branch watershed.  Detention plays a critical role in stormwater 

management.  The Stormwater Drainage Design Manual states that “development shall not 

increase stormwater runoff peak flow discharge or velocities over natural conditions…”  This is 

typically achieved by detention. 

 

 

Calculations 

 

HEC-HMS modeling software utilizing the SCS Unit Hydrograph method with a Type 3 storm 

was used to calculate peak runoff for the Bastrop ISD properties. Hydrologic soil type was 

determined from the USGS Web Soil Survey which was used to calculate a CN for the drainage 

areas.  A composite CN was calculated using the impervious cover information provided by 

Halff.  The time of concentration was calculated using the TR-55 method (minimum of 10 



 
 

1311 Chestnut Street P.O. Box 427 Bastrop, Texas 78602 512.332.8800 www.cityofbastrop.org 

 

minutes).  This data, along with Atlas 14 hydrology, was entered into HEC-HMS and the SCS 

unit hydrograph method with Type 3 storm calculation method was used to calculate peak 

runoff for the Bastrop ISD properties. 

 

As the Bastrop ISD properties are distributed throughout the City, the downstream end of the 

improvement project, the UPRR bridge, was used as the analysis point for this evaluation.  

This is an appropriate analysis point because all of the Bastrop ISD sites evaluated are either 

adjacent to the creek or discharge into a storm sewer system which results in a short travel 

time to the analysis point.  This point represents the location where the contribution from all 

Bastrop ISD properties are accounted for and compared to the overall creek flow to 

determine the proportion of flow in the creek that comes from Bastrop ISD property.  The 

properties included in this evaluation are illustrated in blue in Figure 1. 

 



 
 

1311 Chestnut Street P.O. Box 427 Bastrop, Texas 78602 512.332.8800 www.cityofbastrop.org 

 

 
Figure 1: Bastrop ISD Locations Contributing to Gills Branch (blue) 

 



 
 

1311 Chestnut Street P.O. Box 427 Bastrop, Texas 78602 512.332.8800 www.cityofbastrop.org 

 

The peak flows from Bastrop ISD properties was compared with the creek flow information 

provided by Halff as follows: 

 

 

 

Conclusion 

 

Based on the 100-yr peak flow calculations described above, the proportional share (13.51%) of 

the $14,049,500 total construction cost related to Bastrop ISD properties within the Gills Branch 

Watershed is $1,898,172. 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1% Q peak (HALFF) (cfs) 1% Q peak (Bastrop ISD) (cfs) % of Q peak from Bastrop ISD properties

5566 752 13.51

4% Q peak (HALFF) (cfs) 4% Q peak (Bastrop ISD) (cfs) % of Q peak from Bastrop ISD properties

4419 498.4 11.28

1% represents the "100-year" storm event

4% represents the "25-year" storm event



 
 

1311 Chestnut Street P.O. Box 427 Bastrop, Texas 78602 512.332.8800 www.cityofbastrop.org 

 

 

 
Figure 1: Bastrop ISD Locations Contributing to Gills Branch (blue) 



 
 

1311 Chestnut Street P.O. Box 427 Bastrop, Texas 78602 512.332.8800 www.cityofbastrop.org 

 

 

The peak flows from Bastrop ISD properties was compared with the creek flow information 

provided by Halff as follows: 

 

 

 

Conclusion 

 

Based on the 100-yr peak flow calculations described above, the proportional share (13.51%) of 

the $14,049,500 total construction cost related to Bastrop ISD properties within the Gills Branch 

Watershed is $1,898,172. 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1% Q peak (HALFF) (cfs) 1% Q peak (Bastrop ISD) (cfs) % of Q peak from Bastrop ISD properties

5566 752 13.51

4% Q peak (HALFF) (cfs) 4% Q peak (Bastrop ISD) (cfs) % of Q peak from Bastrop ISD properties

4419 498.4 11.28

1% represents the "100-year" storm event

4% represents the "25-year" storm event



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  May 24, 2022     AGENDA ITEM: 5B 
 
TITLE:  

Receive status report on Pecan Park Development, approximately 62 acres of the Pecan Park 
Development more specifically the Pecan Park commercial section better described as Parcel 1:  
Block 8, Lot 1, the Final Plat of Pecan Park Commercial, a subdivision in Bastrop County, Texas, 
Parcel 2:  Common Area 1, Pecan Park Commercial Phase 1, a subdivision in Bastrop County, 
Texas, according to the map or plat thereof, recorded in Book 5, Page 146-A of the Plat records 
of Bastrop County, Texas., Parcel 3: 55.355 acres, more or less, located in Bastrop County, 
Texas, Parcel 1, Parcel 2, and Parcel 3 collectively, the Commercial Property; the current 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of Bastrop and owner; prior discussions 
with the owner and planning staff on amendments to the MOU, receive comments from the owner; 
and provide direction to City Manager and City Attorney as appropriate. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Trey Job, Assistant City Manager for Community Development 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Pecan Park subdivision was approximately 311 acres and was planned to be a mixed-use 
development. The residential piece, sold to Ranch Road Development in 2017 is now at full 
buildout. The remaining commercial section owned by Duke McDowell has submitted to amend 
the preliminary plat to reflect the Agnes alignment that is actually built and will include the new 
Agnes alignment to connect the existing Agnes Street to the neighboring property to the west. 
 
I addition to that change Mr. McDowell would like to amend other sections of the MOU that will 
lessen the previously approved requirements of the MOU. See the attached memo for more detail.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Make a motion to Amend section 6.05 of the MOU to say, The City agrees no additional Traffic 

Impact Analyses will be required if the following conditions are met. 

1. The owner agrees to provide an updated Appendix L (Improvement Cost Calculations) 
of the MOU to reflect current market prices and shall pay the proportional share of the 
commercial traffic impacts per acre at the approval of the final plat for each lot.  

2. Subsequently add the following sections 
o Section 6.06.   Agnes Street Extension.  The City will be responsible for all of the 

improvements associated with this 80’ ROW for the Agnes Street Extension 
included but not limited to; the design, engineering, construction management, 
permits, fees and inspections, street improvements (base, pavement, curb, 
gutter, grading, etc.), waterlines and connections, wastewater lines and 
connections, all dry utilities associated with Street lighting, stormwater drainage, 
street signage, sidewalks, finish grading, landscaping. and, black streetlights, 
The City of Bastrop agrees to complete construction of the Agnes Street 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Extension within 4 years from May 5, 2022.    The 80’ ROW for the Agnes Street 
Extension will be dedicated by the owner to the City for the construction of the 
road on or before July 15, 2022 so that the improvements may begin.  
 

o Section 6.07 Greenleaf Fisk Drive.  Greenleaf Fisk Drive (formally Hasler St.) 
may be constructed to provide public access to final platted Lot 7 as depicted on 
an approved preliminary plat.   

 

o Section 6.08 Orchard Parkway Extension. The Owner will be responsible for the 
construction of Orchard Parkway. The improvements for Orchard Parkway may 
be constructed in phases as required by the City of Bastrop Code of Ordinances 
to public access to future platted lots. However, upon completion of the Agnes 
Street Extension the owner will construct the remainder of Orchard Parkway to 
the Agnes Street as depicted on the concept plan and shall be completed within 
12 months of the completion of Agnes Street. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Memo from ACM Job to City Council with attachments 

• Revised MO from DM Pecan Park Associates, LTD. 



TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council  
   
FROM:  Trey Job, Assistant City Manager 
 
DATE:  May 15, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Pecan Park MOU  
   
============================================================================== 
As you consider approval for this development, here are some key points to consider: 

HISTORY 

In December of 2013 the City of Bastrop executed a Memorandum of Understanding with DM Pecan 

Park Associates, LTD to clarify language in the Pecan Park Planned Development. The City Manager 

at the time of execution worked out details such as utility commitments, the requirement of a traffic 

impact analysis, stormwater improvements etc. As part of the MOU, the 2005 plat was voided and a 

new preliminary plat took the place of the 2005 preliminary plat. The Pecan Park subdivision was 

approximately 311 acres and was planned to be a mixed-use development. The residential piece was 

sold to Ranch Road Development in 2017 and now the residential portion of Pecan Park is at full 

buildout. The remaining commercial section owned by Duke McDowell has submitted to amend the 

preliminary plat to reflect what is actually built and the new Agnes alignment  

According to the owner, he agreed to revise the alignment of Agnes Street while in conversations with a 

past EDC Director and past City Engineer in 2017 through 2018. The current alignment of Agnes as 

shown on the final plat for lot 8 does not depict a ROW dedication of Hasler Street and is different than 

what is shown on the existing preliminary plat. Amending the preliminary plat fixes that issue. Then the 

MOU can be amended to reflect the corrected exhibit. However, the owner would also like to amend 

additional sections of the 2013 MOU. 

Below are the development requirements of the original Memorandum of Understanding. 

Pecan Park 2013 MOU  

• Fees: The owner must pay current review and submittal fees. 

• Building Codes: The structures shall be built in compliance with the adopted Building Code. 

• Signage: The owner is required to install signage in conformance with MOU-6 exhibit. 

• Water/Wastewater improvements: The owner is responsible for the design construction and 

easement acquisition for the off-site water and wastewater improvements. The owner is also 

responsible for the onsite improvements needed to serve the development. An engineering 

analysis is required to determine the necessary improvements for water and shall be approved 

by the City’s Engineer. (The city deferred payment for 362 service unit equivalent (SUE) in the 

original agreement until December 31 2019. All the SUE’s have been used by the development 

and there is no further obligation to defer payment) Payment is now due at final platting. 

• Stormwater Drainage: The owner is required to acquire offsite easements for the necessary 

stormwater drainage improvements to serve the development. Maintenance of the off-site 

improvements are the responsibility of the owner. The City shall not require onsite detention on 

any portion of land in the natural drainage area of the property.  



• Stormwater allowances:  The owner is allowed to oversize the drainage improvements 

required to serve the land and can sell additional capacity to the adjacent property. The City will 

not be part of the negotiations.   

• Traffic Impact Analysis: The owner is responsible for performing a traffic impact analysis (TIA) 

for each new development after 2,000 trips a day has been reached. The (TIA) must be 

performed in accordance with MOU-8. MOU-8 depict the intersection that must be studied. The 

intersections are as follows:    

o SH 304 & Home Depot Way  

o Hasler Blvd & Agnes Street 

o Hasler and SH 71 

o Orchard Pkwy & Agnes Street (on the owner’s property) 

o Loop 150 & Childers 

o Perkins & SH 71 

o Eskew & SH 71 

o Childers & Sterling Drive 

o Perkins & Headwaters Drive 

 

In good faith, the City has continued negotiating the MOU and believed we had come to an agreement 

in December of 2021 after considerable staff time and legal costs. The revised MOU included a 

requirement for the City to pay for the construction of Agnes Street and the water and wastewater utility 

infrastructure (not included in the grant), as well as remove the TIA requirement. This is agreeable if we 

can accomplish the following: 

• the owner would update the cost of the intersection improvements from the 2015 TIA to 

reflect current prices,  

• Build Orchard Parkway connecting it to Agnes Street within twelve months of the City 

completing Agnes Street. 

• Dedicate the necessary ROW to build Agnes Street as previously stated in a letter by 

the owner from February 2019 when the city applied for an EDA to build Agnes Street. 

• Provide an additional five feet of ROW for Greenleaf Fisk Drive. (Previously Hasler 

Blvd). 

 

In my meetings with Mr. McDowell city staff has consistently indicated a willingness to remove 

the TIA requirement based on a commitment from the owner to ensure an adequate road 

network is built. However, Mr. McDowell recently submitted a MOU that is not in the best 

interest of the City of Bastrop taxpayers or Bastrop water/wastewater customers as it places a 

substantial financial burden on them to the benefit of this development.  

 

His submitted document proposes removal of the following: 

 

• The dedication of the ROW for Agnes Street meaning the City will have to purchase the 

land to build Agnes either through negotiation with the owner or eminent domain.  

• The twelve-month time frame in which Orchard Parkway should be built was also 

removed, meaning the subdivision would not have an alternate route to Hwy 71 in case 

of an emergency or to simply help regulate existing traffic 



• The owner does not intend to pay for the required intersection improvements per the 

2015 TIA. The build out of the Pecan Park Commercial will affect the traffic at many of 

the intersections City Council asked staff to address at the April 5, 2022 Pre-Budget 

Planning Session, placing the burden of improvements on the taxpayer.  

• The owner removed the obligation to build Greenleaf Fisk if the City does not build 

Agnes by May 1, 2025. This timeline for construction of Agnes is not a concern but the 

language used to amend the Greenleaf Fisk section removes the financial and 

construction obligation forever creating a risk to the City.   

• The owner has also requested not to be responsible for off-site water or wastewater 

improvements that benefit his development. 

This memo contains an overview of the negotiations with the property owner since 2021. A 

more detailed list of changes made by the owner can be found on the attached summary of 

changes since December 2021. I have also attached the timeline of our interactions with the 

owner.  

Attachments 

• Summary of changes since December 21. 

• Pecan Park timeline 

• Previous support letter from Duke McDowell 



Pecan Park Commercial 
 

 

Revised MOU – Development Agreement 

Action        Date           Time 

Request started 8/2/2021 12:38 p.m. 

Agent Authorization Form uploaded by Matt Synatschk 8/2/2021 12:38 p.m. 

Trey Job Fee Email (additional supporting 
documentation) uploaded by Matt Synatschk 

8/2/2021 12:38 p.m. 

Project Description Letter uploaded by Matt Synatschk 8/2/2021 12:38 p.m. 

DM Pecan Partners Tax Certificate uploaded by Matt 
Synatschk 

8/2/2021 12:38 p.m. 

BCAD Property Map uploaded by Matt Synatschk 8/2/2021 12:38 p.m. 

Amended Preliminary Plat uploaded by Matt Synatschk 8/2/2021 12:38 p.m. 

MOU amendment uploaded by Matt Synatschk 8/2/2021 12:38 p.m. 

Preliminary Intake Review – private note by Nicole 
Peterson: “Appears complete.”  

8/2/2021 2:24 p.m. 

Completeness Check – Items Needed – comment 
issued by Allison Land: “The submittal is deemed 
incomplete for the following reasons: Tax certificate 
shows taxes have not been paid. Please provide proof 
taxes have been paid. This is not the appropriate place 
to request a waiver, nor is a waiver required for this 
application type. The waiver will not be accepted nor 
approved with this application.” (corrected) 

8/3/2021 10:53 a.m. 

Completeness Check – Fees – comment issued by 
Allison Land: “The fees are waived due to changes to 
the Agnes Street alignment per ACM Trey Job.” 
(corrected) 

8/3/2021 10:57 a.m. 

Correction item - Bastrop Tax Statement uploaded by 
Matt Synatschk 

8/3/2021 11:04 a.m. 

Response by Allison Land to Matt Synatschk’s comment 
(submitted 8/3/2021 at 11:04 a.m.): “Received.” 

8/3/2021 11:28 a.m. 

Request completed 8/3/2021 11:28 a.m. 

Payment Due – issued by City 8/3/2021 11:28 a.m. 

Bastrop Tax Statement uploaded by Allison Land 8/3/2021 11:29 a.m. 

Payment completed 8/3/2021 11:50 a.m. 

Legal Review – private note by Allison Land: “Emailed to 
Alan and Jessica 8/11/2021” 

8/12/2021 9:16 a.m. 



City Manager Review – Comment #1 issued by Trey 
Job: “Legal review received the summary of the changes 
provided. However, in an effort to provide a document 
that could be reviewed I have developed a redlined 
version for your review. I will also share it with the City’s 
legal team again.”  

9/15/2021 11:02 a.m. 

Correction comment - MOU Pecan Park edits TJ review 
1 uploaded by Trey Job 

9/15/2021 11:02 a.m. 

MOU Pecan Park edits TJ Review 1 uploaded by 
Vivianna Andres 

9/15/2021 4:19 p.m. 

Pecan Park Approved MOU uploaded by Vivianna 
Andres 

9/15/2021 4:19 p.m. 

Development Review Committee – Comment #1 
(Instructions to Resubmit 1) issued by Vivianna Andres: 
“Please upload a new comment memo and plan sheets 
to address all comments (correction items) issued by 
reviewers onto this comment. Please email 
plan@cityofbastrop.org once this step is complete.” 
(corrected) 

9/15/2021 4:21 p.m. 

Response by Duke McDowell to City Manager Review – 
Comment #1 (issued by Trey Job on 9/15/2021 at 11:02 
a.m.): “Attached please find a ‘clean copy’ of the 
redlined document. We will also send that document to 
you in a separate email. In addition to accepting all of 
the redlined changes to create this clean version, we 
attempted to correct several formatting, fonts and 
spelling discrepancies. Hopefully, we addressed most of 
those types of issues in this document.”  

10/19/2021 1:29 p.m. 

Correction comment – “Clean – Amended Restated 
Agreement 10-18-21” uploaded by Duke McDowell 

10/19/2021 1:29 p.m. 

City Manager Review – Comment #2 issued by Jennifer 
Bills: “Please see the attached staff comments from the 
version that was emailed to Mr. Job on Monday, 
November 22, but not uploaded into MyGov. This 
version we will take to City Council on December 14th. 
Please provide any comments related to this version by 
December 1.”  

11/24/2021 12:02 p.m. 

Correction comment – redline Amended MOU with AB 
and TJ comments and edits incorporated 11-24-21 
uploaded by Jennifer Bills 

11/29/2021 12:21 p.m. 

Development Review Committee – Comment #2 
(Instructions to Resubmit 2) issued by Vivianna Andres: 
“Please upload a new comment memo and plan sheets 
to address all comments (correction items) issued by 
reviewers onto this comment. When making your 
comment please be sure to select to display the 
comment to “Agency and Collaborators (Public)”, 
and to notify “Allison Land” and “Nicole Peterson”. 
Please email plan@cityofbastrop.org once this step is 
complete.” (corrected) 

11/24/2021 1:16 p.m. 

mailto:plan@cityofbastrop.org
mailto:plan@cityofbastrop.org


Planning Review – Comment issued by Vivianna 
Andres: “Please see the attached word document which 
contains the changes based on the discussions from the 
meeting held on 12/16/2021 with Staff.” 

12/23/2021 11:14 a.m. 

Correction – redline Amended MOU Planning edits 12-
20-21 uploaded by Vivianna Andres 

12/23/2021 11:16 a.m. 

Development Review Committee – Comment #3 
(Instructions to Resubmit 3) issued by Vivianna Andres: 
“Please upload the revised plan and comment response 
memo to address all comments (correction items) issued 
by reviewers onto this comment. When making your 
comment please be sure to select to display the 
comment to “Agency and Collaborators (Public)” 
and choose Nicole Peterson and Planning 
Department.” (outstanding) 

12/23/2021 11:17 a.m. 

 



Section Changes since Dec. 2021 Staff Identified Issues

Sec. 1.01 Added effective date to be after unapproved Amended Preliminary Plat exhibit is approved by P&Z. Preliminary Plat should be approved prior to inclusion in an approved agreement.

Sec. 2.04 Language that would allow increase in lot count without new Preliminary Plat (increase from 6 to 43 lots without staff or P&Z review).

The increase subdivision without review could create increase land intensity that will have a 
detrimental effect of drainage and traffic congestion, especially if no additional street 
connections are included.

Sec. 3.01 Additional  reference to ordinance # 2022that does not impact the sales & Information Center. Unnecessary

Sec. 5.01 New language that implies that no sign permits will be required for signs identified in Sign Plan.
Sign Plan is for locations.  Will still need permits issued that ensure proper installation and 
size.

Sec. 6.01 Changed impact fee timing to after building plans have been approved. City cannot commit any capacity until impact fees are paid.

Sec. 6.02 Removed reference to off-site wastewater improvements.
City cannot commit to providing off-site improvements at the cost of rate and tax payers 
that are created by new development.

Sec. 6.03 Removed reference to off-site waste improvements.
City cannot commit to providing off-site improvements at the cost of rate and tax payers 
that are created by new development.

Sec. 6.04 Requires city to be responsible for all Agnes Street drainage and utilities.

Sec. 6.04 Removed reference to Stormwater Drainage.

Developer would not have to follow City standards and Stormwater Drainage Manual.  This 
could create detrimental effects for end users and adjacent property owners (especially 
existing homeowners in Pecan Park, as most drainage will route through the residential 
development).

Sec. 6.04 New language that allows developer to include excess capacity in drainage facilities and negotiate with surrounding property owners to allow them to use.
City is not a party to these agreements.  Area in agreement and adjacent properties must 
follow Stormwater Drainage Manual.  Should be removed from agreement with the City.

Sec. 6.05
Removes any requirement to study traffic generated by the Pecan Park Development and will not provide any financial or constructed improvements identified in 
2015 TIA (as required in the existing MOU).

Original agreement requires new TIAs done with each new lot/phase.  Staff had agreed in 
December to recommend that cost estimates from the approved TIA be updated, but no 
new TIA be performed.  Developers changes will allow increased congestion at existing 
intersections caused by Pecan Park Commercial, with no improvement provided by the 
development.

Sec. 6.06 Shortened time required for the City to construct Agnes Street by one year (grant allows 4 years from notice to proceed). Provides unnecessary restriction for the City and leads to future costs for taxpayers.

Removed language on that improvement for dry utilities are only related to street lights.
The City has no ability nor obligation to run other dry utilities (electric/telecoms) for future 
development.  The  is presently undetermined.

Sec. 6.06 Includes additional Agnes Street design requirements in relation to Orchard Parkway.
Developer has not provided a final design for Orchard Parkway, so cannot commit to design 
requirements in MOU.

Sec. 6.07
Added stipulation that if Agnes Street is not built by City by May 1, 2025, developer does not have to build Greenleaf Fisk Drive.  Also only requires construction if 
Lot 7 needs it for access.

Developer would not be required to build Greenleaf Fisk Drive (major thoroughfare plan 
road that will connect to SH 304) unless Lot 7 further subdivided, passing 100% of the costs 
onto taxpayers, as well as reducing connectivity for the commercial and residential 
development of Pecan Park, which is currently required in the approved MOU.

Sec. 6.08 Removed requirement that Orchard Parkway be completed within 1 year of Agnes Street completion.

Developer does not want to commit to completing  Orchard Parkway, and does not want to 
mitigate traffic impacts from the new development.  If Orchard is not completed, all traffic 
will be impacting the intersections of Agnes with SH 304 and Hasler Street, with no 
improvements for increased traffic

Sec. 8.11 Added Sign Designs to Exhibit D Moved forward from existing MOU.  Resolution poor and hard to read.

Pecan Park MOU Proposed Amendments





  
 

Page 1  

 

 

AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT  
FOR DEVELOPMENT OF LAND 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

    § 
COUNTY OF BASTROP § 

 
 
 

This Amended and Restated Agreement for Development of Land (“MOU Amendment”) is 
between the City of Bastrop, Texas (“City”), a home rule city located in Bastrop County, 
Texas, and DM Pecan Park Associates, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership (“Owner”) (City and 
Owner are collectively referred to as the “Parties”).  
 

INTRODUCTION 

City and Owner entered into the Memorandum of Understanding for Development of 
Land dated December 12, 2013 (“MOU”), covering approximately 311 acres of land as more 
particularly described in the MOU (“Original Property”) pertaining to development of a planned, 
mixed-use community. Approximately 242 acres of the Original Property have been developed 
as a residential development, and Owner is no longer associated with the foregoing residential 
development.  Owner currently owns approximately 62.74 acres of commercial parcels 
comprised of a portion of the Original Property as more particularly described on Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes (“Land”). Section 7.02 of the MOU 
provides that the MOU may be amended as to all or a portion of the property covered by the 
MOU at any time by mutual written consent of the City and Owner, and City and Owner desire 
to amend and restate the MOU as more particularly described in this MOU Amendment.  Owner 
intends to develop, or sell to others for development, the Land as a planned, mixed-use 
community, locally referred to as "Pecan Park," that will consist of commercial, retail, office 
and residential uses ("Project'') generally in accordance with the concept plan attached as Exhibit 
“B” ("Concept Plan"). The Concept Plan depicts the planned roadway network and the portions 
of the Original Property initially contemplated for commercial land use (“Commercial Parcels”) 
under the MOU Amendment, as depicted therein (the Commercial Parcels sometimes referred to 
herein as the “Parcels”). The terms of this MOU Amendment shall apply to any party, successor 
or assign who is developing all or any portion of the Land and in compliance with Exhibit ”B”, 
i.e., the Concept Plan. Development of the Land is expected to add significant new tax revenues 
to the City's tax base, create jobs and stimulate the overall local economy. Therefore, Owner and 
City wish to enter into this MOU Amendment, which will encourage comprehensive planning 
for development of the Land, provide the Owner with certainty of regulatory requirements 
throughout the term of this MOU Amendment, and result in a high-quality subdivision. The terms 
of this MOU Amendment shall apply to any party, successor or assign who is developing all or 
any portion of the Land and in compliance with Exhibit ”B”, i.e., the Concept Plan.  

 
For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows. 
 



  
 

Page 2  

ARTICLE I. 
DEFINITIONS 

 
Section 1.01     Definitions. In addition to the term defined elsewhere in this MOU 

Amendment or in City's Code of Ordinances, the following terms and phrases used in this MOU 
Amendment will have the meanings set out below: 

 
Agnes Street Extension: Shall mean the extension of Agnes Street from Sterling Drive 

through the Pecan Park Development to its western boundary.  
 
City Manager: The City of Bastrop’s City Manager. 

 

Concept Plan: Owner's plan, as depicted in Exhibit ”B”, which illustrates the planned 
roadway network and various anticipated land uses for the Project. 

 
Director: City's Director of Planning and Development. 

 
Effective Date of this MOU Amendment: This MOU Amendment will not be in effect 

until after the City has approved and executed the Amended Preliminary Plat. The Effective Date 
is the latest date when one or more counterparts of this MOU Amendment or Amended 
Preliminary Plat, individually or taken together, bear the signature of all Parties. 

 
Final Plat: A map of the subdivision, addition or development, which is to be recorded in 

the Bastrop County Clerk Plat Records after Owner's deposit of any required fiscal assurance 
with the City and upon final approval of the plat by the City. 

 
Original Owner: Shall mean originally DM Pecan Park Associates, Ltd., or its legal 

successors in interest. 
 

Owner: Shall mean Original Owner or any subsequent owner of any portion of the Land 
that is a successor or assignee of rights from Owner in accordance withꞏ Section 7.03 of this MOU 
Amendment. 

 
Owners' Association: One or more non-profit entities whose membership includes the 

owners of real property within Pecan Park created for the purpose of maintenance and repair 
of privately owned roads (if any are approved by City on a Final Plat), common open space 
and park areas, together with other common and related facilities and areas within Pecan Park. 

  



  
 

Page 3  

 
ARTICLE II. 

DEVELOPMENT 
 

Section 2.01 Development. Owner intends to develop the Land in phases. City 
acknowledges that the portions of the Land not under active development may remain in use for 
agricultural or ranching purposes and/or wildlife management, if otherwise allowed by law. 

Section 2.02 Concept Plan. City hereby confirms its approval of the Concept Plan (as 
shown on Exhibit ”B”) for the Land. The roadway network, including the Agnes Street 
Extension, shown on the Concept Plan generally reflects the roadway network depicted on 
the Amended Preliminary Plat.  Additional public roadways will not be required to service 
the Pecan Park commercial area. The MOU is amended to state that the Concept Plan shall 
include and reflect only the roadway network and commercial land use as set forth on Exhibit 
“B” of this MOU Amendment with respect to the Concept Plan for the Commercial Property 
and acknowledges that the Concept Plan will conform and update the City’s Master 
Transportation Plan. 

 

Section 2.03   Term of Approval.    The Concept Plan will be effective for the term of this 
MOU Amendment, unless otherwise amended or revised by mutual agreement of the Parties. 
Once   a portion of the roadway network for the Project has been approved by Final Plat, the City 
shall not alter the approved roadway network depicted on the Final Plat, currently assumed to 
be as shown on the Concept Plan regardless of the term of this MOU Amendment, unless 
mutually agreed by the Parties.  

 

Section 2.04 Amendments.  Due to the fact that the Project comprises a significant land 
area and its development will occur over a number of years, Owner may make minor 
amendments to the Concept Plan, but only as it applies to the portion of Land owned by Owner, and 
only upon notification of approval of the amendment by the Director of Planning and 
Development. The Director of Planning and Development reserves the right to take any request 
for amendment or revision, even if deemed minor by Owner, to the City Council for approval, in 
their sole discretion.  Platting the Amended Preliminary Plat large parcels into smaller lots of at least 
one acre shall be considered a minor revision and will not require submittal or approval of a new or 
revised Amended Preliminary Plat. 

 
Section 2.05 Review/Submittal Fees. Owner shall pay City's then current application, 

and review fees, which are applicable to all other development applicants, at the time of each 
submission. The City hereby waives all fees in connection with this MOU Amendment and the 
Amended Preliminary Plat. Owner recognizes that due to the fact that the development will occur 
over a number of years, the City's fees that will be applicable to the development may be updated 
by action of the City Council, from time to time. 

 
Section 2.06 Building Code Compliance. Structures constructed on the Land shall 

comply with the building code that is in effect in the City at the start of construction of the 
structure, unless otherwise provided in this MOU Amendment. 

 



  
 

Page 4  

ARTICLE III. 
SALES AND INFORMATION CENTER 

 
Section 3.01 Sales and Information Center. Owner desires to install and maintain a 

sales and information center on a portion of the Property ("Sales and Information Center"). 
Owner and City agree that the Ordinance No. 2015-14 and No. 2021-18, as amended, and City 
of Bastrop Code. Ordinances shall regulate the use and development of the Sales and Information 
Center. 

 
ARTICLE IV. 

ECONOMIC INCENTIVES 
 

Section 4.01 Economic Incentive Program.  All costs and expenses for designing, 
bidding, constructing, and installing the Project Facilities to be constructed by the Owner shall 
be paid by Owner.  Owner shall be eligible for reimbursement via a separate incentives 
agreement with the City to be negotiated and executed prior to development of each phase of 
the development.   

 
ARTICLE V 

SIGNS 
 

Section 5.01 Signs. Owner desires to install signage on the Land as generally depicted 
on Exhibit ”D”  (''Sign Plan" and “Sign Plan Designs” as previously approved within the original 
approved Memorandum of Understanding). The exact locations of the signs shall be determined by 
mutual agreement of the Parties, upon development of the Land. Owner and City agree   that the 
Sign Plan shall regulate the use and operation of signs throughout the Land. If Owner desires to 
install signs after the execution of this MOU Amendment that are not in conformance  with 
Exhibit ”D, then Owner shall submit an application to the City, in accordance with the City's Code 
of Ordinances. 

 

ARTICLE VI. 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

 

Section 6.01 Water and Wastewater Utility Commitments. The City hereby 
acknowledges and agrees that it has capacity, and it will provide potable water and wastewater 
utility service for the commercial area(s). Payment of required tap and impact fees will be paid 
at the time when the Final Plat has been recorded and building construction plans have been 
approved. 

 
Section 6.02 Wastewater Improvements. On-site wastewater lines, improvements 

and connections to the City's system, shall be determined by the City of Bastrop and hereby 
referred to as (the "Wastewater Collection System"), The Wastewater Collection System 
connection(s) will be provided by Owner, except as in accordance withꞏ Section 6.06 of this 
MOU Amendment. The Wastewater Collection System infrastructure required for future 
development of the Land will be provided by the Owner of the portion of the Land to be 
served. The construction plans for the Wastewater Collection System will be prepared by 
Owner and submitted to the City for review and approval in accordance with City's Code of 
Ordinances, except as in accordance with Section 6.06 of this MOU Amendment.  



  
 

Page 5  

 

 

Section 6.03 Water Improvements. All On-site waterlines, improvements, and 
connections to the existing City water lines (the "Water Distribution System") required for 
development of the Land will be constructed by Owner. The Water Distribution System and its 
connection(s) to the City's water distribution system will be constructed by Owner, in 
conformity with the City's Code of Ordinances, except as in accordance with Section 6.06 of this 
MOU Amendment. Owner shall provide the City hydraulic modeling for the Project in accordance 
with generally accepted engineering practices. The City's engineer will evaluate the hydraulic 
model for accuracy and will determine if on-site water improvements will be required.  

 
Section 6.04 Stormwater Drainage. Other than the Stormwater Drainage, culverts, 

piping, connections and/or other related improvements that are located within the Agnes Street 
Extension R.O.W., in accordance withꞏ Section 6.06 of this MOU Amendment, Owner shall 
construct onsite and off-site drainage improvements to convey storm water from the Land and 
accommodate natural flows from adjacent properties to the Colorado River in compliance with 
any applicable State or Federal law related to storm water drainage and discharge (the “Drainage 
Improvements”). City shall not require Owner to construct on-site detention on any portion of the 
Land within the natural drainage area of the Land. If necessary, any off-site stormwater easements 
shall be obtained by the Owner with assistance from the City. 

 
The Drainage Improvements may include excess capacity above and beyond (i) what is 

necessary to serve the Land and (ii) any existing or natural flow from adjacent properties.  After the 
Drainage Improvements are constructed, Owner shall be solely responsible for negotiating 
agreements with adjacent property owner(s) who desire to use any excess capacity (if available) of 
the Drainage Improvements.  Owner’s engineer shall notify City engineer of the amount of flow 
discharge to the Drainage Improvements as agreed to by Owner and any adjacent property owner.  
City shall have no role in these negotiations or agreements.  All such agreements shall be filed by 
Owner in the Bastrop County Records. 

 

Section 6.05 Traffic Impact Analysis.  The City and Owner agree the roadways depicted 
on the Amended Preliminary Plat are the roads needed to provide reasonable connectivity on the 
Land and the Owner will not have any financial obligations as related to the Existing TIA dated 
September 2015 and approved by the City. The Owner shall not be required to provide (i) additional 
study, modification, or amendment with respect to the Pecan Park Traffic Impact Analysis dated 
September 2015 prepared by Alliance Transportation Group (“Existing TIA”), or (ii) preparation or 
submittal of any new traffic analysis. 

 
Section 6.06.   Agnes Street Extension.  The City will be responsible for all of the 

improvements associated with this 80’ R.O.W. for the Agnes Street Extension included but not limited 
to; the design, engineering, construction management, permits, fees and inspections, street 
improvements (base, pavement, curb, gutter, grading, etc.), waterlines and connections, wastewater 
lines and connections, all dry utilities, stormwater drainage and culverts/piping crossing located under 
the Agnes Street Extension R.O.W. that may be necessary to conform & accommodate the Owner’s 
site master drainage plans, street signage, sidewalks, finish grading and landscaping, black street light 
poles, any off-site improvements, and any other associated cost. The City agrees to complete 



  
 

Page 6  

construction of the Agnes Street Extension on or before May 1, 2025.  The 80’ R.O.W. for the Agnes 
Street Extension located within Pecan Park will be dedicated by the Owner to the City for the 
construction of the road upon the approval of the Pecan Park Amended Preliminary Plat and the 
approval of this MOU Amendment by both parties.  The City’s design and construction of the Agnes 
Street Extension shall accommodate the Owner’s Engineer’s design and design heights for Orchard 
Parkway and Pecan Park’s master planned drainage design across (and/or under) that the Agnes Street 
Extension R.O.W. and along the western boundary of the Pecan Park commercial areas. 

Section 6.07 Greenleaf Fisk Drive.  The construction of Greenleaf Fisk Drive may be 
postponed until the development of Lot 7 (Amended Preliminary Plat). Greenleaf Fisk Drive may be 
constructed in phases as needed to provide public access to final platted lot(s) located within Lot 7. 
If the Agnes Street Extension is not completed by the City on or before May 1, 2025, the Owner may 
complete construction of the Agnes Street Extension. In that case the Owner will dedicate the 63’ 
R.O.W. for Greenleaf Fisk Drive to the City and will not have any construction, financial or other 
obligations with respect to Greenleaf Fisk Drive.  

 

Section 6.08 Orchard Parkway Extension. The Owner will complete Orchard Parkway 
located on their Land either in phases as Final Plats are filed or will begin the extension of Orchard 
Parkway to the Agnes Street Extension upon the City completion of construction of the Agnes Street 
Extension.  

 

ARTICLE VII. 
TERM, ASSIGNMENT AND 

REMEDIES 
 

Section 7.01 Term. The term of this MOU Amendment will commence on the Effective 
Date and continue for fifteen (15) years, unless terminated on an earlier date under other provisions 
of this MOU Amendment or by written agreement of City and Owner. At any time prior to the 
expiration of fifteen (15) years, this MOU Amendment may be extended by mutual agreement 
of Owner and City for up to one (1) additional successive fifteen (15) year period. 

 
Section 7.02 Termination and Amendment by Agreement. This MOU Amendment may 

be terminated or amended as to all or a portion of the Land at any time by mutual written consent of 
City and Owner. In addition, Owner may unilaterally terminate this MOU Amendment in the 
event that it elects not to proceed with any development under the MOU Amendment, for economic 
reasons or otherwise. Owner shall be required to demonstrate to the City, at the time of termination, 
that all obligations of Owner, as contemplated by this MOU Amendment and all applicable City 
ordinances and regulations, have been met including all required infrastructure for existing 
recorded sections of the Project has been built or bonded, all parkland and amenities for existing 
platted sections have been provided, and a current, updated master development plan has been 
submitted depicting the Project, as it exists at the time of termination. 

 

 

 



  
 

Page 7  

Section 7.03   Assignment. 

a. This MOU Amendment, and the rights and obligations of Owner, in 
whole or in part, may be assigned to a subsequent Owner of all or a portion of the Land. Owner 
shall continue to be obligated for the performance of this MOU Amendment unless such assignment 
or partial assignment is approved by City Manager, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. City Manager reserves the right to take any assignment request to the City Council for 
approval, in his sole discretion. City shall have the right to request and be provided by Owner 
with reasonable information about assignee to determine assignee's general reputation and 
ability to perform the obligations so assigned. City approval shall be granted if: 

 
(i) Assignee demonstrates its agreement to the terms of this MOU 

Amendment, and demonstrates that it is reasonably capable of performing the obligations 
assigned, as stated herein; and 

 
(ii) Assignee has a reasonably acceptable reputation in the industry 

with experience in the development of projects of a similar nature, size and scope; 
Assignee shall provide the City Manager with a list of comparable developments, which 
list shall include the names and contact information (phone, address and email address) 
for references related to each development identified. 

 
In the event City denies a request for approval of an assignment, the City shall specify the 

reasons for such denial in writing. 
 

Any assignment will be in writing, specifically set forth the assigned rights and 
obligations and be executed by the proposed assignee prior to the City's approval of the 
Assignment. 

 
b. Any assignment will be in writing, specifically set forth the assigned rights 

and obligations and be executed by the proposed assignee prior to the City's approval of the 
Assignment. 

 

c. If City consents to such assignment, as set forth above, then the rights and 
obligations of the assignee and Owner or Original Owner will be severable, and Owner (or 
Original Owner) will not be liable for the nonperformance of the assignee, and vice versa. In the 
case of nonperformance by Owner (or Original Owner) or an assignee, City may pursue all 
remedies against that nonperforming party, but will not impede development activities of any 
performing party as a result of that nonperformance. 

 
d. This MOU Amendment is not intended to be binding upon, or create any 

encumbrance to title as to, any ultimate consumer or user who purchases any portion of the Land 
either as a lot or a structure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 

Page 8  

Section 7.04 Remedies. 
 

a. If City defaults under this MOU Amendment, Owner shall give notice 
setting forth the event of default (''Notice") to City. In addition, if City fails to cure any alleged 
default within a reasonable period of time, not less than forty-five (45) days after the date of the 
Notice and thereafter to diligently pursue such cure to completion, Owner may terminate this MOU 
Amendment by providing written notice to City as to all of the Land owned by Owner, or as to the 
portion of the Land affected by the default, and/or Owner may pursue injunctive relief from a 
court of proper jurisdiction. 

 
b. If Owner defaults under this MOU Amendment, City shall give written 

Notice to Owner. If Owner fails to commence the cure of an alleged default specified in the 
Notice within a reasonable period of time, not less than forty-five (45) days, after the date 
of the Notice, and thereafter to diligently pursue such cure to completion, City may terminate 
the MOU Amendment and/or may pursue injunctive relief from a court of proper jurisdiction. 

 
c. Each Party waives any action for damages against the other except for the 

recovery of attorneys' fees, as per subparagraph d below. 
 

d. If either Party defaults, the prevailing Party in the dispute will be entitled 
to recover its reasonable attorney's fees, expenses, and court costs from the non-prevailing 
Party. 

 
Section 7.05 Cooperation. 

 
a. City and Owner each agree to cooperate with each other as may be 

reasonably necessary to carry out the intent of this MOU Amendment, including but not 
limited to the  execution of such further documents as may be reasonably necessary. 

 
b. City and Owner agree to coordinate and cooperate with each other, in 

connection with any permits or approvals Owner or City may need from Bluebonnet Electric 
Cooperative, LCRA, Bastrop County, TCEQ or any other regulatory authority in order to carry 
out the Concept Plan and the Project. 

 
c. In the event of any third-party lawsuit or other claim relating to the 

validity of this MOU Amendment, Owner and City agree to cooperate in the defense of such 
suit or claim, and to use their respective best efforts to resolve the suit or claim without 
diminution in their respective rights and obligations under this MOU Amendment. 

 
d. Owner or City may initiate non-binding mediation on any issues in dispute 

and the other Party shall participate in good faith. The cost of mediation shall be a joint expense. 
 

 

 

 

 



  
 

Page 9  

ARTICLE VIII. 
MISCELLANEOUS 

PROVISIONS 
 

Section 8.01    Notice.   Any notice given under this MOU Amendment must be in writing and 
may be given: (i) by depositing it in the United States mail, certified, with return receipt 
requested, addressed to the Party to be notified and with all charges prepaid; or (ii) by depositing 
it with Federal Express or another service guaranteeing "next day delivery", addressed to the 
Party to be notified and with all charges prepaid; (iii) by personally delivering it to the Party, or 
any agent of the Party listed in this MOU Amendment, or (iv) by facsimile with confirming 
copy sent by one of the other described methods of notice set forth. Notice by United States 
mail will be effective on the earlier of the date of receipt or three (3) business days after the 
date of mailing. Notice given in any other manner will be effective only when received.   For 
purposes of notice, the addresses of the Parties will, until changed as provided below, be as 
follows: 

 

City:    City of Bastrop 
1311 Chestnut Street 
P.O.  Box 427  
Bastrop, Texas 78602  
Attn: City Manager 
Phone: (512) 332-8800 

 
With Required Copy to: Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 

    Bojorquez Law Firm, PC 
    12325 Hymeadow Drive 
    Austin, Texas 78750 
    Phone: (512) 250-0411 

    Fax:  (512) 250-0749 
 
Owner:   DM Pecan Park Associates, Ltd. 
    3503 Wild Cherry Drive 

Building 8, 
     Lakeway, TX  78738 
     Attn:  Duke McDowell 
     Phone: (512) 263-2214 

    Fax: (512) 263-2318 
 
With Required Copy to: David Hartman, Partner 

    Smith-Robertson, LLC 
    1717 West Sixth Street, Ste. 295  
    Austin, Texas 78701    
    Phone: (512) 225-1704 
    Fax:  (512) 225-1714 

 

 



  
 

Page 10  

The Parties may change their respective addresses to any other address within the United States 
of America by giving at least five (5) days' written notice to the other Party. Owner may, by 
giving at least five (5) days' written notice to City, designate additional parties to receive copies 
of notices under this MOU Amendment. 

Section 8.02 Severability; Waiver. If any provision of this MOU Amendment is 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, under present or future laws, it is the intention of the Parties 
that the remainder of this MOU Amendment is not affected, and, in lieu of each illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable provision, that a provision be added to this MOU Amendment 
which is legal, valid, and enforceable and is as similar in terms to the illegal, invalid or 
enforceable provision as is possible.  

Any failure by a Party to insist upon strict performance by the other Party of any material 
provision of this MOU Amendment will not be deemed a waiver or of any other provision, 
and such Party may at any time thereafter insist upon strict performance of any and all of the 
provisions of this MOU Amendment. 

Section 8.03 Applicable Law and Venue. The interpretation, performance, 
enforcement and validity of this MOU Amendment are governed by the laws of the State of 
Texas. Venue will be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction in Bastrop County, Texas. 

 

Section 8.04 Conflict. Unless specifically modified by other provisions of this MOU 
Agreement, the City’s development regulations and other ordinances, in effect at the time of the 
Owners filing of the Final Plat in the Bastrop County records, shall govern the development of 
the Project.   

 
Section 8.05   Time. Time is of the essence of this MOU Amendment. 

 
Section 8.06 Authority for Execution. City certifies, represents, and warrants that the 

execution of this MOU Amendment is duly authorized and adopted in conformity with the City 
Charter. Owner hereby certifies, represents, and warrants that the execution of this MOU 
Amendment is duly authorized and adopted in conformity with the articles of incorporation and 
bylaws or partnership agreement of each entity executing on behalf of Owner. 

 
Section 8.07 This MOU Amendment supersedes and replaces all prior agreements, 

reservations, preliminary plats, and/or understandings, that have been processed by Original 
Owner/Owner /predecessor owner through the City, with respect to the Land.  

Section 8.08 Binding Effect.  This MOU Amendment shall be binding upon, and shall 
inure to the benefit of, the undersigned Parties, and their respective heirs, legal representatives, 
successors-in-title and assigns. 

Section 8.09 Entire Agreement.  The terms, provisions, and conditions of this MOU 
Amendment apply only to the Commercial Property. The terms and provisions set forth in this 
MOU Amendment constitute the entire agreement and understanding between the Parties with 
respect to the specific subject matter addressed herein, and are hereby deemed to supersede all 
prior agreements and understandings (including, without limitation, those expressed originally 
in the MOU, to the extent inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this MOU Amendment) 



  
 

Page 11  

concerning the specific subject matter hereof.  No subsequent modification or amendment of the 
terms and provisions of this MOU Amendment shall be effective unless it comports with the 
requirements for effective amendments to the MOU Amendment as set forth in Section 7.02 of 
the MOU Amendment. 

Section 8.10 Counterparts.  This MOU Amendment may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which are identical. 

Section 8.11 Exhibits. 

The following Exhibits are attached to this MOU Amendment, and made a part hereof 
for all purposes: 

 

Exhibit “A” - Legal Description of Commercial Property 

 Exhibit “B” - Concept Plan 

 Exhibit “C” - Intentionally Left Blank 

 Exhibit “D” - Sign Plan & Designs for Commercial Property  

    
  



  
 

Page 12  

 The undersigned parties have executed this MOU Amendment on the dates 
indicated below. 

CITY OF BASTROP 

 

By: __________________________      

   Paul Hofmann, City Manager for the City of Bastrop 

 

Date: __________________________      

 

ATTEST: 

By:  __________________________       

Printed Name: __________________________       

Title:  __________________________       

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF BASTROP § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me the ___ day of _____________, 2022, 

By Paul Hofmann, City Manager for the City of Bastrop, on behalf of the City. 

 

__________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 

 

   
  



  
 

Page 13  

OWNER 

   DM Pecan Park Associates, Ltd., 

   a Texas limited partnership 

 

By: McDowell Development, LLC 

 A Texas limited liability company 

its General Partner 

 

 __________________________  

By:   Duke McDowell, Manager    

    

Date: __________________________    
  

ATTEST: 

By:  __________________________       

Printed Name: __________________________       

Title:  __________________________       

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me the ___ day of ____________, 2022, by 
Duke McDowell, Manager of McDowell Development, LLC, a Texas limited liability 
company, General Partner of DM Pecan Park Associates, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership on 
behalf of said limited liability company and limited partnership. 

 

__________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 



   {002.00230308.3}  

 

  EXHIBIT “A” 

Legal Description for Commercial Property 

 

Parcel 1: Block 8, Lot 1, The Final Plat of Pecan Park Commercial, a subdivision in 
Bastrop County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof, recorded in Cabinet 7, Page 18-A of 
the Plat records of Bastrop County, Texas.   (7.258 acres). 

 

Parcel 2:   Common Area 1, Pecan Park Commercial Phase 1, a subdivision in Bastrop 
County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof, recorded in Book 5, Page 146-A of the Plat 
records of Bastrop County, Texas.  (0.126 acres). 

 

Parcel 3: 55.355 acres, more or less, located in Bastrop County, Texas, as more 
particularly described by metes and bounds on attached Exhibit A-1 attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.   

 

Parcel 1, Parcel 2, and Parcel 3 collectively, the Commercial Property.   
  



   {002.00230308.3}  

  EXHIBIT “A” 

Parcel 1 

   
 
 

Parcel 2 

 



   {002.00230308.3}  

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

Parcel 3 

 

 

 
  



   {002.00230308.3}  

EXHIBIT “B” 

Concept Plan 
 

 



   {002.00230308.3}  

EXHIBIT “C” 

Intentionally Left 
Blank 

 

 



   {002.00230308.3}  

EXHIBIT “D” 

Sign Plan for 
Commercial Area 

 
 

 

 
  



   {002.00230308.3}  

 
EXHIBIT “D” 

Sign Plan Designs 
for Commercial 

Area 

 



   {002.00230308.3}  

 
EXHIBIT “D” 

Sign Plan Designs 
for Commercial 

Area 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
  



   {002.00230308.3}  

 
EXHIBIT “D” 

Sign Plan Designs 
for Commercial 

Area 

 
  



   {002.00230308.3}  

 
EXHIBIT “D” 

Sign Plan Designs 
for Commercial 

Area 

 

 

 

 
 



 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 24, 2022  AGENDA ITEM: 6A   
 
TITLE:   
Receive presentation on the unaudited Monthly Financial Report for the period ending April 30, 
2022. 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED BY: 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
   
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The Chief Financial Officer provides the City Council a monthly financial report overview for all 
funds to include detailed analysis for General Fund, Water-Wastewater Fund, Bastrop Power & 
Light and the HOT Tax Fund. 
 

REVENUE 
General Fund exceeded the forecast by 4.7%   

• Sales tax is 10.7% above forecast and 18.5% over same period prior year 
• Development fees are 9.8% above forecast  
• There are other categories that are below forecast – specifically court fines and interest 

 
Impact Fee Fund is in negative status – the revenue projections were based on the timing of 
specific developments paying into this fund – these developments are behind the projected 
schedule causing the fund to be short of forecast.  
 
All other funds are performing positive to forecast. 

 
EXPENDITURES 
 
Economic Development Corp Fund shows a negative variance due to board approval to pay 
off a Roscoe Bank loan and the 2018 CO bond. Both were paid from proceeds from the sale 
of the 921 Main St. building. I have requested a budget transfer from EDC to clear up this 
variance. 
 
All other funds are positive to forecast amounts. 

 
 

This reporting requirement is set forth by the City of Bastrop Financial Management Policies, 
Chapter IV. Operating Budget, Section D. Reporting, as adopted by Resolution R-2021-80 on 
August 24, 2021. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Unaudited Monthly Financial Report for the period ending April 30, 2022 



CITY OF BASTROP
Comprehensive Monthly Financial Report

April 2022

………

1



Performance at a Glance
as of April 30, 2022

YEAR TO DATE REFERENCE

ALL FUNDS SUMMARY POSITIVE Page 3-4
POSITIVE Page 5

PROPERTY TAXES POSITIVE Page 6
GENERAL FUND EXPENSE BY DEPARTMENT POSITIVE Page 7
WATER/WASTEWATER REVENUES POSITIVE Page 8
WATER/WASTEWATER EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION POSITIVE Page 9
ELECTRIC REVENUES POSITIVE Page 10
HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX REVENUES POSITIVE Page 11
HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION POSITIVE Page 12
LEGAL FEES BY ATTORNEY/CATEGORY POSITIVE Page 13

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
POSITIVE  = Positive variance or negative variance < 1% compared to seasonal trends

WARNING  = Negative variance of 1-5% compared to seasonal trends

NEGATIVE  = Negative variance of >5% compared to seasonal trends

SALES TAXES

2


Sheet1

						YEAR TO DATE		REFERENCE



		ALL FUNDS SUMMARY				POSITIVE		Page 3-4

		SALES TAXES				POSITIVE		Page 5

		PROPERTY TAXES				POSITIVE		Page 6

		GENERAL FUND EXPENSE BY DEPARTMENT				POSITIVE		Page 7

		WATER/WASTEWATER REVENUES				POSITIVE		Page 8

		WATER/WASTEWATER EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION				POSITIVE		Page 9

		ELECTRIC REVENUES				POSITIVE		Page 10

		HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX REVENUES				POSITIVE		Page 11

		HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION				POSITIVE		Page 12

		LEGAL FEES BY ATTORNEY/CATEGORY				POSITIVE		Page 13



		PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

		POSITIVE		 = Positive variance or negative variance < 1% compared to seasonal trends



		WARNING		 = Negative variance of 1-5% compared to seasonal trends



		NEGATIVE		 = Negative variance of >5% compared to seasonal trends











FY2022 FY2022 FY2022
Approved Budget Forecast YTD Actual YTD Variance

Revenues:
General 15,983,754$                    10,644,983$           11,140,077$           4.7%
Designated 66,908                             19,363                    25,818                    33.3%
Innovation 445,500                           295,500                  296,259                  0.3%
Street Maintenance 3,000                               1,600                      1,632                      2.0%
Debt Service 3,358,143                        2,937,230               2,968,063               1.0%
General Gov's Projects 457,000                           87,500                    87,500                    0.0%
Water/Wastewater 6,958,580                        3,645,802               4,275,031               17.3%
Water/Wastewater Debt 3,619,436                        1,589,109               1,589,281               0.0%
Water/Wastewater Capital Proj 481,000                           280,583                  278,370                  -0.8%
Impact Fees 4,505,950                        2,140,326               1,481,891               -30.8%
Vehicle & Equipment Replacement 1,560,236                        1,345,732               1,366,604               1.6%
Electric 6,877,639                        3,531,363               3,948,051               11.8%
HOT Tax Fund 2,476,685                        1,297,260               1,502,671               15.8%
Library Board 20,600                             7,800                      13,649                    75.0%
Cemetery 108,200                           61,867                    83,727                    35.3%
Capital Bond Projects 4,703,958                        3,685,804               3,697,827               0.3%
Grant Fund 2,668,235                        12,960                    12,960                    0.0%
Park/Trail Land Dedicaiton 1,365                               796                         831                         4.4%
Hunter's Crossing PID 575,879                           568,968                  573,744                  0.8%
Bastrop EDC 5,074,414                        1,890,201               2,907,454               53.8%

TOTAL REVENUES 59,946,482$                    34,044,747$           36,251,440$           6.5%

POSITIVE  = Positive variance or negative variance < 1% compared to forecast
WARNING  = Negative variance of 1-5% compared to forecast
NEGATIVE  = Negative variance of >5% compared to forecast

BUDGET SUMMARY OF ALL FUNDS

COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT – April 2022

3

 


Sheet1

		BUDGET SUMMARY OF ALL FUNDS

				FY2022				FY2022				FY2022

				Approved Budget				Forecast YTD				Actual YTD				Variance

		Revenues:

		General 		$   15,983,754				$   10,644,983				$   11,140,077				4.7%

		Designated 		66,908				19,363				25,818				33.3%

		Innovation		445,500				295,500				296,259				0.3%

		Street Maintenance		3,000				1,600				1,632				2.0%

		Debt Service 		3,358,143				2,937,230				2,968,063				1.0%

		General Gov's Projects		457,000				87,500				87,500				0.0%

		Water/Wastewater 		6,958,580				3,645,802				4,275,031				17.3%

		Water/Wastewater Debt		3,619,436				1,589,109				1,589,281				0.0%

		Water/Wastewater Capital Proj		481,000				280,583				278,370				-0.8%

		Impact Fees		4,505,950				2,140,326				1,481,891				-30.8%

		Vehicle & Equipment Replacement		1,560,236				1,345,732				1,366,604				1.6%

		Electric		6,877,639				3,531,363				3,948,051				11.8%

		HOT Tax Fund		2,476,685				1,297,260				1,502,671				15.8%

		Library Board		20,600				7,800				13,649				75.0%

		Cemetery		108,200				61,867				83,727				35.3%

		Capital Bond Projects		4,703,958				3,685,804				3,697,827				0.3%

		Grant Fund		2,668,235				12,960				12,960				0.0%

		Park/Trail Land Dedicaiton		1,365				796				831				4.4%

		Hunter's Crossing PID		575,879				568,968				573,744				0.8%

		Bastrop EDC		5,074,414				1,890,201				2,907,454				53.8%

		TOTAL REVENUES		$   59,946,482				$   34,044,747				$   36,251,440				6.5%



		POSITIVE		 = Positive variance or negative variance < 1% compared to forecast

		WARNING		 = Negative variance of 1-5% compared to forecast

		NEGATIVE		 = Negative variance of >5% compared to forecast







FY2022 FY2022 FY2022
Approved Budget Forecast YTD Actual YTD Variance

Expense:

General 16,653,232$                    9,838,233$             9,093,463$             -7.6%
Designated 298,100                           3,976                      2,923                      -26.5%
Innovation 445,500                           48,787                    48,766                    0.0%
Street Maintenance 655,000                           32,404                    32,686                    0.9%
Debt Service 3,494,221                        610,615                  610,900                  0.0%
General Gov't Projects 457,000                           50,000                    27,808                    -44.4%
Water/Wastewater 7,666,249                        4,411,865               4,207,316               -4.6%
Water/Wastewater Debt 3,992,281                        1,074,337               1,075,143               0.0%
Water/Wastewater Capital Proj. 352,500                           231,300                  231,816                  0.2%
Revenue Bond, Series 2020 9,157,563                        3,378,053               3,392,849               0.4%
CO, Series 2021 35,720,000                      8,472,115               8,491,403               0.2%
Impact Fees 3,449,819                        540,000                  542,824                  0.5%
Vehicle & Equipment Replacement 1,252,930                        252,000                  251,812                  -0.1%
Electric 7,568,783                        4,809,147               3,882,466               -19.3%
HOT Tax Fund 2,983,057                        2,264,741               2,026,158               -10.5%
Library Board 87,950                             51,304                    10,566                    -79.4%
Cemetery 173,828                           83,066                    55,158                    -33.6%
Hunter's Crossing PID 604,547                           475,557                  463,308                  -2.6%
CO, Series 2013 299,450                           8,000                      7,380                      -7.8%
CO, Series 2018 655,500                           50,000                    41,289                    -17.4%
Limited Tax Note, Series 2020 424,043                           106,500                  104,689                  -1.7%
CO, Series 2022 3,676,250                        76,249                    76,249                    0.0%
Grant Fund 2,668,235                        477,803                  347,659                  -27.2%
Bastrop EDC 6,011,878                        1,471,452               2,193,720               49.1%

TOTAL EXPENSES 108,747,916$                  38,817,504$           37,218,351$           -4.1%

POSITIVE  = Negative variance or positive variance < 1% compared to forecast

BUDGET SUMMARY OF ALL FUNDS

COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT –April 2022

4


Sheet1

		BUDGET SUMMARY OF ALL FUNDS



				FY2018				FY2018				FY2018

				Budget				Forecast				YTD				Variance

		Revenues:



		General 		$   10,712,030				$   3,391,159				$   3,445,308				1.6%

		Designated 		47,450				6,113				20,883				241.6%

		Innovation		256,500				64,125				64,457				0.5%

		Debt Service 		2,565,113				903,800				926,575				2.5%

		Water/Wastewater 		5,121,640				1,229,674				1,217,729				-1.0%

		Water/Wastewater Debt		2,007,586				501,897				287,722				-42.7%

		Impact Fees		896,439				224,110				60,718				-72.9%

		Vehicle & Equipment Replacement		561,371				137,843				139,646				1.3%

		Electric		7,323,696				1,828,924				1,576,314				-13.8%

		Hotel/Motel Tax 		2,882,000				538,085				707,686				31.5%

		Hospitality & Downtown		1,034,788				241,184				258,488				7.2%

		Art in Public Places		75,041				18,759				19,081				1.7%

		Library Board		20,150				2,538				2,713				6.9%

		Cemetery		90,700				22,674				31,470				38.8%

		Hunter's Crossing PID		379,237				186,276				232,848				25.0%

		TOTAL REVENUES		$   33,973,741				$   9,297,161				$   8,991,638				-3.3%



				FY2022				FY2022				FY2022

				Approved Budget				Forecast YTD				Actual YTD				Variance

		Expense:



		General 		$   16,653,232				$   9,838,233				$   9,093,463				-7.6%

		Designated 		298,100				3,976				2,923				-26.5%

		Innovation		445,500				48,787				48,766				-0.0%

		Street Maintenance		655,000				32,404				32,686				0.9%

		Debt Service 		3,494,221				610,615				610,900				0.0%

		General Gov't Projects		457,000				50,000				27,808				-44.4%

		Water/Wastewater 		7,666,249				4,411,865				4,207,316				-4.6%

		Water/Wastewater Debt		3,992,281				1,074,337				1,075,143				0.0%

		Water/Wastewater Capital Proj.		352,500				231,300				231,816				0.2%

		Revenue Bond, Series 2020		9,157,563				3,378,053				3,392,849				0.4%

		CO, Series 2021		35,720,000				8,472,115				8,491,403				0.2%

		Impact Fees		3,449,819				540,000				542,824				0.5%

		Vehicle & Equipment Replacement		1,252,930				252,000				251,812				-0.1%

		Electric		7,568,783				4,809,147				3,882,466				-19.3%

		HOT Tax Fund		2,983,057				2,264,741				2,026,158				-10.5%

		Library Board		87,950				51,304				10,566				-79.4%

		Cemetery		173,828				83,066				55,158				-33.6%

		Hunter's Crossing PID		604,547				475,557				463,308				-2.6%

		CO, Series 2013		299,450				8,000				7,380				-7.8%

		CO, Series 2018		655,500				50,000				41,289				-17.4%

		Limited Tax Note, Series 2020		424,043				106,500				104,689				-1.7%

		CO, Series 2022		3,676,250				76,249				76,249				0.0%

		Grant Fund		2,668,235				477,803				347,659				-27.2%

		Bastrop EDC		6,011,878				1,471,452				2,193,720				49.1%

		TOTAL EXPENSES		$   108,747,916				$   38,817,504				$   37,218,351				-4.1%



		POSITIVE		 = Negative variance or positive variance < 1% compared to forecast

		WARNING		 = Positive variance of 1-5% compared to forecast

		NEGATIVE		 = Positive variance of >5% compared to forecast









REVENUE ANALYSIS

FY2022 FY2022 Monthly 
Month Forecast Actual Variance

Oct 497,166$          533,267$       36,101$          
Nov 511,070            525,903         14,833$          
Dec 518,836            564,058         45,222$          
Jan 512,246            625,837         113,591$       
Feb 652,942            708,736         55,794$          
Mar 497,151            532,549         35,398$          
Apr 432,869            520,238         87,369$          
May 696,146            -$                
Jun 611,623            -$                
Jul 594,989            -$                
Aug 673,346            -$                
Sept 626,049            -$                

Total 6,824,433$      4,010,588$   388,308$       
Cumulative Forecast 3,622,280$      
Actual to Forecast 388,308$          10.7%

SALES TAX REVENUE

POSITIVE

Sales Tax is 42% of the total budgeted revenue for General Fund. The actual amounts for Oct. and Nov. are 
estimated due to the State Comptroller's two month lag in payment of these earned taxes. The forecast has been 
updated with the budget amendment. The actual is almost 11% greater than forecasted and 18.5% over the same 
period last year.

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forescast Actual

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forecast Actual

COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT – April 2022

5


Sheet1

		REVENUE ANALYSIS

		SALES TAX REVENUE



				FY2022				FY2022				Monthly 

		Month		Forecast				Actual				Variance

		Oct		$   497,166				$   533,267				$   36,101

		Nov		511,070				525,903				$   14,833

		Dec		518,836				564,058				$   45,222

		Jan		512,246				625,837				$   113,591

		Feb		652,942				708,736				$   55,794

		Mar		497,151				532,549				$   35,398

		Apr		432,869				520,238				$   87,369

		May		696,146								$   - 0

		Jun		611,623								$   - 0

		Jul		594,989								$   - 0

		Aug		673,346								$   - 0

		Sept		626,049								$   - 0



		Total		$   6,824,433				$   4,010,588				$   388,308

		Cumulative Forecast		$   3,622,280

		Actual to Forecast		$   388,308				10.7%

																												.

		POSITIVE		Sales Tax is 42% of the total budgeted revenue for General Fund. The actual amounts for Oct. and Nov. are estimated due to the State Comptroller's two month lag in payment of these earned taxes. The forecast has been updated with the budget amendment. The actual is almost 11% greater than forecasted and 18.5% over the same period last year.





Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	405891	405891	405891	405891	355155	355155	405891	456628	507364	456628	456628	456628	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	0	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forecast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	497166	511070	518836	512246	652942	497151	432869	696146	611623	594989	673346	626049	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	533267	525903	564058	625837	708736	532549	520238	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	











COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT – April 2022

FY2022 FY2022 Monthly 
Month Forecast Actual Variance

Oct 150$                 182$              32$                 
Nov 309,543            300,872         (8,671)$           
Dec 1,105,509         1,147,364      41,855$          
Jan 1,565,401         2,340,230      774,829$       
Feb 1,326,611         453,211         (873,400)$      
Mar 44,220              115,780         71,560$          
Apr 17,688              22,037           4,349$            
May 17,688              
Jun 8,844                
Jul 8,844                
Aug 8,844                
Sept 8,694                

Total 4,422,036$      4,379,676$   10,554$          
Cumulative Forecast 4,369,122$      
Actual to Forecast 10,554$            0.24%

PROPERTY TAX REVENUE

POSITIVE
Property tax represents 31% of the total General Fund revenue budget. As you can see from the forecast, they are generally 
collected from December to February. The forecast has been updated based on actual payment patterns this fiscal year. 
The Actual is just slightly over forecast. 

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forecast Actual

6


Sheet1

		OVERALL FUND PERFORMANCE

		GENERAL FUND REVENUES VS EXPENSES



				FY2018				FY2018				Monthly 

		Month		Revenue				Expense				Variance

		Oct		$   547,821				$   589,749				$   (41,928)

		Nov		773,721				901,783				$   (128,062)

		Dec		2,123,766				633,814				$   1,489,952

		Jan										$   - 0

		Feb										$   - 0

		Mar										$   - 0

		Apr										$   - 0

		May										$   - 0

		Jun										$   - 0

		Jul										$   - 0

		Aug										$   - 0

		Sept										$   - 0



		Total		$   3,445,308				$   2,125,346				$   1,319,962



		Cumulative Forecast		$   3,391,159				$   2,713,935				$   677,224

		Actual to Forecast $		$   54,149				$   588,589				$   642,738

		Actual to Forecast %		1.60%				21.69%

		POSITIVE		Cumulatively overall, the General Fund is better than forecasted for this time of year. Revenues are 1.6% higher than forecasted and expenses are 21.7% lower than expected. This would be due to vacancies and forecasting assumptions.



		REVENUE ANALYSIS

		PROPERTY TAX REVENUE



				FY2022				FY2022				Monthly 

		Month		Forecast				Actual				Variance

		Oct		$   150				$   182				$   32

		Nov		309,543				300,872				$   (8,671)

		Dec		1,105,509				1,147,364				$   41,855

		Jan		1,565,401				2,340,230				$   774,829

		Feb		1,326,611				453,211				$   (873,400)

		Mar		44,220				115,780				$   71,560

		Apr		17,688				22,037				$   4,349

		May		17,688

		Jun		8,844

		Jul		8,844

		Aug		8,844

		Sept		8,694



		Total		$   4,422,036				$   4,379,676				$   10,554

		Cumulative Forecast		$   4,369,122

		Actual to Forecast		$   10,554				0.24%

		POSITIVE		Property tax represents 31% of the total General Fund revenue budget. As you can see from the forecast, they are generally collected from December to February. The forecast has been updated based on actual payment patterns this fiscal year. The Actual is just slightly over forecast. 





Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	547821	773721	2123766	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	589749	901783	633813.89	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forecast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	150	309543	1105509	1565401	1326611	44220	17688	17688	8844	8844	8844	8694	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	182	300872	1147364	2340230	453211	115780	22037	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	











FY2022 FY2022
Division Forecast YTD Actual YTD Variance

Legislative 34,225$            34,705$         480$               
Organizational 1,529,626         1,575,347      45,721$          
City Manager 344,818            327,787         (17,031)$        
City Secretary 159,058            129,019         (30,039)$        
Finance 930,418            930,738         320$               
Human Resources 139,454            136,305         (3,149)$           
Information Technology 261,373            228,103         (33,270)$        
Community Engagemen 591,567            540,226         (51,341)$        
Police 2,097,131         2,001,968      (95,163)$        
Fire 637,538            571,638         (65,900)$        
Municipal Court 207,083            190,503         (16,580)$        
Development Services 847,993            679,434         (168,559)$      
Engineering 202,836            103,688         (99,148)$        
Public Works 1,474,813         1,326,119      (148,694)$      
Library 380,300            317,884         (62,416)$        

Total 9,838,233$      9,093,464$   (744,769)$      

Actual to Forecast 92.4%

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY DEPT.

POSITIVE
This page in the financial report looks at forecast to actual by department within the General Fund. YTD the actual is 95.5% of 
forecast. The Organizational department is running over forecast due to elevated legal expenses along with 380 reimbursement 
overages.

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

350000

400000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept
Forescast Actual

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

350000

400000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept
Forescast Actual

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

700000

800000

900000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept
Forescast Actual $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000 Forecast YTD Actual YTD

COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT – April 2022

7


Sheet1

		OVERALL FUND PERFORMANCE

		HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND REVENUES VS EXPENSES



				FY2018				FY2018				Monthly 

		Month		Revenue				Expense				Variance

		Oct		$   250,340				$   416,596				$   (166,256)

		Nov		263,130				110,633				$   152,497

		Dec		194,216				100,993				$   93,223

		Jan										$   - 0

		Feb										$   - 0

		Mar										$   - 0

		Apr										$   - 0

		May										$   - 0

		Jun										$   - 0

		Jul										$   - 0

		Aug										$   - 0

		Sept										$   - 0



		Total		$   707,686				$   628,222				$   79,464



		Cumulative Forecast		$   745,963				$   785,526				$   (39,563)

		Actual to Forecast $		$   (38,277)				$   157,304				$   119,027

		Actual to Forecast %		-5.13%				25.04%				19.91%

		POSITIVE		The Hotel Occupancy Tax fund is overall in a positive position. The revenue is 4.6% lower than forecasted but the expenses are 20.8% lower than forecasted as well. Visit Bastrop is paid on a quarterly basis.



		EXPENSE ANALYSIS

		GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY DEPT.



				FY2022				FY2022

		Division		Forecast YTD				Actual YTD				Variance

		Legislative		$   34,225				$   34,705				$   480

		Organizational		1,529,626				1,575,347				$   45,721

		City Manager		344,818				327,787				$   (17,031)

		City Secretary		159,058				129,019				$   (30,039)

		Finance		930,418				930,738				$   320

		Human Resources		139,454				136,305				$   (3,149)

		Information Technology		261,373				228,103				$   (33,270)

		Community Engagement		591,567				540,226				$   (51,341)

		Police		2,097,131				2,001,968				$   (95,163)

		Fire		637,538				571,638				$   (65,900)

		Municipal Court		207,083				190,503				$   (16,580)

		Development Services		847,993				679,434				$   (168,559)

		Engineering		202,836				103,688				$   (99,148)

		Public Works		1,474,813				1,326,119				$   (148,694)

		Library		380,300				317,884				$   (62,416)



		Total		$   9,838,233				$   9,093,464				$   (744,769)



		Actual to Forecast						92.4%

		POSITIVE		This page in the financial report looks at forecast to actual by department within the General Fund. YTD the actual is 95.5% of forecast. The Organizational department is running over forecast due to elevated legal expenses along with 380 reimbursement overages.





Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	280140	257946	216127	167735	147780	161720	304688	267891	263789	282094	338853	226238	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	280140	257946	216127	167735	147780	161720	304688	267891	263789	282094	338853	226238	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	356548	356548	445685	311980	334264	401117	378832	334264	401117	378832	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	585682	585682	657559	477867	521805	513805	477867	585682	729436	801316	729436	657559	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	250340	263130	194216	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	416596	110633	100993	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forecast YTD	Legislative	Organizational	City Manager	City Secretary	Finance	Human Resources	Information Technology	Community Engagement	Police	Fire	Municipal Court	Development Services	Engineering	Public Works	Library	34225	1529626	344818	159058	930418	139454	261373	591567	2097131	637538	207083	847993	202836	1474813	380300	Actual YTD	Legislative	Organizational	City Manager	City Secretary	Finance	Human Resources	Information Technology	Community Engagement	Police	Fire	Municipal Court	Development Services	Engineering	Public Works	Library	34705	1575347	327787	129019	930738	136305	228103	540226	2001968	571638	190503	679434	103688	1326119	317884	Legislative	Organizational	City Manager	City Secretary	Finance	Human Resources	Information Technology	Community Engagement	Police	Fire	Municipal Court	Development Services	Engineering	Public Works	Library	











REVENUE ANALYSIS

FY2022 FY2022 Monthly 
Month Forecast Actual Variance

Oct 556,791$          592,481$       35,690$          
Nov 494,957            637,628         142,671$       
Dec 487,757            602,279         114,522$       
Jan 505,193            587,955         82,762$          
Feb 504,957            560,158         55,201$          
Mar 539,355            615,764         76,409$          
Apr 556,791            678,766         121,975$       
May 626,062            
Jun 660,698            
Jul 625,826            
Aug 660,461            
Sept 739,732            

Total 6,958,580$      4,275,031$   629,230$       
Cumulative Forecast 3,645,801$      
Actual to Forecast 629,230$          17.26%

WATER/WASTEWATER REVENUE

POSITIVE The water and wastewater actual revenue is higher than forecast almost 17.3%. There were 11 new  meters set this 
month all residential.

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forescast Actual

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forecast Actual

COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT – April 2022

8


Sheet1

		OVERALL FUND PERFORMANCE

		WATER/WASTEWATER FUND REVENUES VS EXPENSES



				FY2018				FY2018				Monthly 

		Month		Revenue				Expense				Variance

		Oct		$   419,499				$   345,905				$   73,594

		Nov		411,848				435,971				$   (24,123)

		Dec		388,292				359,304				$   28,988

		Jan										$   - 0

		Feb										$   - 0

		Mar										$   - 0

		Apr										$   - 0

		May										$   - 0

		Jun										$   - 0

		Jul										$   - 0

		Aug										$   - 0

		Sept										$   - 0



		Total		$   1,219,639				$   1,141,180				$   78,459



		Cumulative Forecast		$   1,229,674				$   1,228,641				$   1,033

		Actual to Forecast $		$   (10,035)				$   87,461				$   77,426

		Actual to Forecast %		-0.82%				7.12%

		POSITIVE		Water and wastewater revenues are less than 1% lower than forecasted for this time of year. We are continuing to add homes in Pecan Park and commercial in our service area. The expense budget is 7% lower than forecasted due to vacancies and timing of expenditures.



		REVENUE ANALYSIS

		WATER/WASTEWATER REVENUE



				FY2022				FY2022				Monthly 

		Month		Forecast				Actual				Variance

		Oct		$   556,791				$   592,481				$   35,690

		Nov		494,957				637,628				$   142,671

		Dec		487,757				602,279				$   114,522

		Jan		505,193				587,955				$   82,762

		Feb		504,957				560,158				$   55,201

		Mar		539,355				615,764				$   76,409

		Apr		556,791				678,766				$   121,975

		May		626,062

		Jun		660,698

		Jul		625,826

		Aug		660,461

		Sept		739,732



		Total		$   6,958,580				$   4,275,031				$   629,230

		Cumulative Forecast		$   3,645,801

		Actual to Forecast		$   629,230				17.26%

		POSITIVE		The water and wastewater actual revenue is higher than forecast almost 17.3%. There were 11 new  meters set this month all residential.





Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	167299	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	405891	405891	405891	405891	355155	355155	405891	456628	507364	456628	456628	456628	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	0	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	419499	411848	388292	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	345905	435971	359304	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forecast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	556791	494957	487757	505193	504957	539355	556791	626062	660698	625826	660461	739732	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	592481	637628	602279	587955	560158	615764	678766	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	











EXPENSE ANALYSIS

FY2022 FY2022
Division Forecast YTD Actual YTD Variance

Administration 2,818,582$      2,745,702$   (72,880)$        

Distribution/Collection 537,124            477,068         (60,056)$        

Production/Treatment 500,042            428,603         (71,439)$        

WW Treatment Plant 556,117            555,943         (174)$              

Total 4,411,865$      4,207,316$   (204,549)$      

Actual to Forecast 95.4%

WATER/WASTEWATER EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

POSITIVE
This page tracks the actual to forecast by divisions within the Water/Wastewater department. The actual is 95% of 
forescast. Most of the variance is related to salary savings. 

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug SeptForescast Actual
0

100000

200000

300000

400000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug SeptForescast Actual
0

200000

400000

600000

800000

1000000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug SeptForescast Actual

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

Forecast YTD Actual YTD

COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT – April 2022

9


Sheet1

		OVERALL FUND PERFORMANCE

		HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND REVENUES VS EXPENSES



				FY2018				FY2018				Monthly 

		Month		Revenue				Expense				Variance

		Oct		$   250,340				$   416,596				$   (166,256)

		Nov		263,130				110,633				$   152,497

		Dec		194,216				100,993				$   93,223

		Jan										$   - 0

		Feb										$   - 0

		Mar										$   - 0

		Apr										$   - 0

		May										$   - 0

		Jun										$   - 0

		Jul										$   - 0

		Aug										$   - 0

		Sept										$   - 0



		Total		$   707,686				$   628,222				$   79,464



		Cumulative Forecast		$   745,963				$   785,526				$   (39,563)

		Actual to Forecast $		$   (38,277)				$   157,304				$   119,027

		Actual to Forecast %		-5.13%				25.04%				19.91%

		POSITIVE		The Hotel Occupancy Tax fund is overall in a positive position. The revenue is 4.6% lower than forecasted but the expenses are 20.8% lower than forecasted as well. Visit Bastrop is paid on a quarterly basis.



		EXPENSE ANALYSIS

		WATER/WASTEWATER EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION



				FY2022				FY2022

		Division		Forecast YTD				Actual YTD				Variance

		Administration		$   2,818,582				$   2,745,702				$   (72,880)

		Distribution/Collection		537,124				477,068				$   (60,056)

		Production/Treatment		500,042				428,603				$   (71,439)

		WW Treatment Plant		556,117				555,943				$   (174)





		Total		$   4,411,865				$   4,207,316				$   (204,549)



		Actual to Forecast						95.4%







		POSITIVE		This page tracks the actual to forecast by divisions within the Water/Wastewater department. The actual is 95% of forescast. Most of the variance is related to salary savings. 







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	280140	257946	216127	167735	147780	161720	304688	267891	263789	282094	338853	226238	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	280140	257946	216127	167735	147780	161720	304688	267891	263789	282094	338853	226238	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	356548	356548	445685	311980	334264	401117	378832	334264	401117	378832	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	585682	585682	657559	477867	521805	513805	477867	585682	729436	801316	729436	657559	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	250340	263130	194216	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	416596	110633	100993	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forecast YTD	Administration	Distribution/Collection	Production/Treatment	WW Treatment Plant	2818582	537124	500042	556117	Actual YTD	Administration	Distribution/Collection	Production/Treatment	WW Treatment Plant	2745702	477068	428603	555943	Administration	Distribution/Collection	Production/Treatment	WW Treatment Plant	











REVENUE ANALYSIS

FY2022 FY2022 Monthly 
Month Forecast Actual Variance

Oct 609,386$          643,338$       33,952$          
Nov 441,560            475,082         33,522$          
Dec 481,473            510,608         29,135$          
Jan 554,648            567,579         12,931$          
Feb 418,436            534,178         115,742$       
Mar 516,256            549,722         33,466$          
Apr 509,604            667,544         157,940$       
May 569,473            
Jun 702,515            
Jul 709,167            
Aug 709,167            
Sept 655,954            

Total 6,877,639$      3,948,051$   416,688$       
Cumulative Forecast 3,531,363$      
Actual to Forecast 416,688$          11.80%

ELECTRIC FUND REVENUE

POSITIVE
The Electric utility revenue is almost 12% above forecasted revenue. There was 3 new meters set this month, 2 
residential and 1 commercial.

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forescast Actual

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forescast Actual

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

 $900,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forecast Actual

COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT – April 2022

10


Sheet1

		OVERALL FUND PERFORMANCE

		ELECTRIC FUND REVENUES VS EXPENSES



				FY2018				FY2018				Monthly 

		Month		Revenue				Expense				Variance

		Oct		$   575,828				$   575,543				$   285

		Nov		482,650				509,673				$   (27,023)

		Dec		517,836				212,063				$   305,773

		Jan										$   - 0

		Feb										$   - 0

		Mar										$   - 0

		Apr										$   - 0

		May										$   - 0

		Jun										$   - 0

		Jul										$   - 0

		Aug										$   - 0

		Sept										$   - 0



		Total		$   1,576,314				$   1,297,279				$   279,035



		Cumulative Forecast		$   1,828,924				$   1,879,386				$   (50,462)

		Actual to Forecast $		$   (252,610)				$   582,107				$   329,497

		Actual to Forecast %		-13.81%				30.97%				17.16%

		POSITIVE		The Electric utility fund had revenue this month that was 13.8% below forecast, however the actual expenditures were 30.9% under budgeted forecast which is a 17% net positive. We will continue to fine tune the forecasting model for the revenue.



		REVENUE ANALYSIS

		ELECTRIC FUND REVENUE



				FY2022				FY2022				Monthly 

		Month		Forecast				Actual				Variance

		Oct		$   609,386				$   643,338				$   33,952

		Nov		441,560				475,082				$   33,522

		Dec		481,473				510,608				$   29,135

		Jan		554,648				567,579				$   12,931

		Feb		418,436				534,178				$   115,742

		Mar		516,256				549,722				$   33,466

		Apr		509,604				667,544				$   157,940

		May		569,473

		Jun		702,515

		Jul		709,167

		Aug		709,167

		Sept		655,954



		Total		$   6,877,639				$   3,948,051				$   416,688

		Cumulative Forecast		$   3,531,363

		Actual to Forecast		$   416,688				11.80%

		POSITIVE		The Electric utility revenue is almost 12% above forecasted revenue. There was 3 new meters set this month, 2 residential and 1 commercial.





Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	167299	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	405891	405891	405891	405891	355155	355155	405891	456628	507364	456628	456628	456628	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	0	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	167299	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	405891	405891	405891	405891	355155	355155	405891	456628	507364	456628	456628	456628	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	0	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	356548	356548	445685	311980	334264	401117	378832	334264	401117	378832	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forecast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	609386	441560	481473	554648	418436	516256	509604	569473	702515	709167	709167	655954	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	643338	475082	510608	567579	534178	549722	667544	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	











REVENUE ANALYSIS

FY2022 FY2022 Monthly 
Month Forecast Actual Variance

Oct -$                  -$               -$                
Nov 197,220            308,282         111,062$       
Dec 191,223            213,812         22,589$          
Jan 156,750            182,958         26,208$          
Feb 116,831            125,124         8,293$            
Mar 123,656            151,620         27,964$          
Apr 125,518            352,429         226,911$       
May 245,323            
Jun 207,061            
Jul 193,201            
Aug 244,977            
Sept 429,368            

Total 2,231,128$      1,334,225$   423,027$       
Cumulative Forecast 911,198$          
Actual to Forescast % 423,027$          46.4%

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX REVENUE

POSITIVE
This page has been updated to reflect cash method and remove accrual method to better reflect the funds true 
collections. The forecast has been updated to reflect the budget amendment. So far YTD we are over 46% positive 
actual to forecast. The Hotel Tax revenue YTD is $567,108 more than same time last year.

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

350000

400000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forescast Actual

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

350000

400000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forescast Actual

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

700000

800000

900000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forescast Actual

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

 $400,000

 $450,000

 $500,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forecast Actual

COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT – April 2022

11


Sheet1

		OVERALL FUND PERFORMANCE

		HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND REVENUES VS EXPENSES



				FY2018				FY2018				Monthly 

		Month		Revenue				Expense				Variance

		Oct		$   250,340				$   416,596				$   (166,256)

		Nov		263,130				110,633				$   152,497

		Dec		194,216				100,993				$   93,223

		Jan										$   - 0

		Feb										$   - 0

		Mar										$   - 0

		Apr										$   - 0

		May										$   - 0

		Jun										$   - 0

		Jul										$   - 0

		Aug										$   - 0

		Sept										$   - 0



		Total		$   707,686				$   628,222				$   79,464



		Cumulative Forecast		$   745,963				$   785,526				$   (39,563)

		Actual to Forecast $		$   (38,277)				$   157,304				$   119,027

		Actual to Forecast %		-5.13%				25.04%				19.91%

		POSITIVE		The Hotel Occupancy Tax fund is overall in a positive position. The revenue is 4.6% lower than forecasted but the expenses are 20.8% lower than forecasted as well. Visit Bastrop is paid on a quarterly basis.



		REVENUE ANALYSIS

		HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX REVENUE



				FY2022				FY2022				Monthly 

		Month		Forecast				Actual				Variance

		Oct		$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0

		Nov		197,220				308,282				$   111,062

		Dec		191,223				213,812				$   22,589

		Jan		156,750				182,958				$   26,208

		Feb		116,831				125,124				$   8,293

		Mar		123,656				151,620				$   27,964

		Apr		125,518				352,429				$   226,911

		May		245,323

		Jun		207,061

		Jul		193,201

		Aug		244,977

		Sept		429,368



		Total		$   2,231,128				$   1,334,225				$   423,027

		Cumulative Forecast		$   911,198

		Actual to Forescast %		$   423,027				46.4%

		POSITIVE		This page has been updated to reflect cash method and remove accrual method to better reflect the funds true collections. The forecast has been updated to reflect the budget amendment. So far YTD we are over 46% positive actual to forecast. The Hotel Tax revenue YTD is $567,108 more than same time last year.





Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	280140	257946	216127	167735	147780	161720	304688	267891	263789	282094	338853	226238	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	280140	257946	216127	167735	147780	161720	304688	267891	263789	282094	338853	226238	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	356548	356548	445685	311980	334264	401117	378832	334264	401117	378832	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	585682	585682	657559	477867	521805	513805	477867	585682	729436	801316	729436	657559	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	250340	263130	194216	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	416596	110633	100993	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forecast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	0	197220	191223	156750	116831	123656	125518	245323	207061	193201	244977	429368	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	0	308282	213812	182958	125124	151620	352429	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	











EXPENSE ANALYSIS

FY2022 FY2022
Division Forecast YTD Actual YTD Variance

Organizational 1,724,420$      1,696,053$   (28,367)$        
Convention Center 296,711            221,430         (75,281)$        
Main Street 178,539            106,506         (72,033)$        
BAIPP 63,379              242                 (63,137)$        
Rodeo 1,692                1,927             235$               

Total 2,264,741$      2,026,158$   (238,583)$      

Actual to Forecast 89.5%

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

POSITIVE
This report shows the actual to forecast for each division located in the Hotel Occupany Tax Fund. YTD is reporting actual is 89.5% 
of forecast.

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

350000

400000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forescast Actual

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

350000

400000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forescast Actual

0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

700000

800000

900000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept

Forescast Actual
 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,400,000

 $1,600,000

 $1,800,000

 $2,000,000

Organizational Convention
Center

Main Street BAIPP Rodeo

Forecast YTD Actual YTD

COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT – April 2022

12


Sheet1

		OVERALL FUND PERFORMANCE

		HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND REVENUES VS EXPENSES



				FY2018				FY2018				Monthly 

		Month		Revenue				Expense				Variance

		Oct		$   250,340				$   416,596				$   (166,256)

		Nov		263,130				110,633				$   152,497

		Dec		194,216				100,993				$   93,223

		Jan										$   - 0

		Feb										$   - 0

		Mar										$   - 0

		Apr										$   - 0

		May										$   - 0

		Jun										$   - 0

		Jul										$   - 0

		Aug										$   - 0

		Sept										$   - 0



		Total		$   707,686				$   628,222				$   79,464



		Cumulative Forecast		$   745,963				$   785,526				$   (39,563)

		Actual to Forecast $		$   (38,277)				$   157,304				$   119,027

		Actual to Forecast %		-5.13%				25.04%				19.91%

		POSITIVE		The Hotel Occupancy Tax fund is overall in a positive position. The revenue is 4.6% lower than forecasted but the expenses are 20.8% lower than forecasted as well. Visit Bastrop is paid on a quarterly basis.



		EXPENSE ANALYSIS

		HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION



				FY2022				FY2022

		Division		Forecast YTD				Actual YTD				Variance

		Organizational		$   1,724,420				$   1,696,053				$   (28,367)

		Convention Center		296,711				221,430				$   (75,281)

		Main Street 		178,539				106,506				$   (72,033)

		BAIPP		63,379				242				$   (63,137)

		Rodeo		1,692				1,927				$   235





		Total		$   2,264,741				$   2,026,158				$   (238,583)



		Actual to Forecast						89.5%







		POSITIVE		This report shows the actual to forecast for each division located in the Hotel Occupany Tax Fund. YTD is reporting actual is 89.5% of forecast.





Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	280140	257946	216127	167735	147780	161720	304688	267891	263789	282094	338853	226238	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	280140	257946	216127	167735	147780	161720	304688	267891	263789	282094	338853	226238	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	520000	356548	356548	445685	311980	334264	401117	378832	334264	401117	378832	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	800000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forescast	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	585682	585682	657559	477867	521805	513805	477867	585682	729436	801316	729436	657559	Actual	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	200000	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Revenue	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	250340	263130	194216	Expense	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	416596	110633	100993	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept	







Forecast YTD	Organizational	Convention Center	Main Street 	BAIPP	Rodeo	1724420	296711	178539	63379	1692	Actual YTD	Organizational	Convention Center	Main Street 	BAIPP	Rodeo	1696053	221430	106506	242	1927	Organizational	Convention Center	Main Street 	BAIPP	Rodeo	











Legal fees by Attorney/Category COMPREHENSIVE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT - April 2022

13



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 24, 2022         AGENDA ITEM: 7 
 
TITLE:   
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
At this time, three (3) minute comments will be taken from the audience on any topic. Anyone in 
attendance wishing to address the Council must complete a citizen comment form and give the 
completed form to the City Secretary prior to the start of the City Council meeting. Alternately, if 
you are unable to attend the council meeting, you may complete a citizen comment form with your 
comments at www.cityofbastrop.org/citizencommentform before 5:00 p.m. on May 24, 2022.   
Comments submitted by this time will be distributed to the city council prior to meeting 
commencement, referenced at the meeting, and included with the meeting minutes.  Comments 
from each individual will be limited to three (3) minutes when read aloud. In accordance with the 
Texas Open Meetings Act, if a citizen discusses any item not on the agenda, City Council cannot 
discuss issues raised or make any decision at this time.  Instead, City Council is limited to making 
a statement of specific factual information or a recitation of existing policy in response to the 
inquiry.   Issues may be referred to City Manager for research and possible future action. 
 
It is not the intention of the City of Bastrop to provide a public forum for the embarrassment or 
demeaning of any individual or group.  Neither is it the intention of the Council to allow a member 
of the public to slur the performance, honesty and/or integrity of the Council, as a body, or any 
member or members of the Council individually or collectively, or members of the City’s staff.  
Accordingly, profane, insulting or threatening language directed toward the Council and/or any 
person in the Council’s presence will not be tolerated. 
 
 

http://www.cityofbastrop.org/CITIZENCOMMENTFORM


 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 24, 2022     AGENDA ITEM: 8A 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve City Council minutes from the May 10, 2022, Regular meeting and 
May 12, 2022, Pre-Budget Planning Workshop. 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED BY: 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary recommends approval of City Council minutes from the May 10, 
2022, Regular meeting and May 12, 2022, Pre-Budget Planning Workshop. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• May 10, 2022, DRAFT Regular Meeting Minutes. 
• May 12, 2022, DRAFT Pre-Budget Planning Workshop Minutes. 

 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  MAY 10, 2022 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 MAY 10, 2022 
 

The Bastrop City Council met in a regular meeting on Tuesday, May 10, 2022, at 6:30:00 p.m. at 
the Bastrop City Hall Council Chambers, located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas.  
Members present were: Mayor Schroeder and Mayor Pro Tem Peterson and Council Members 
Crouch, Rogers, Jackson and Plunkett. Officers present were City Manager, Paul A. Hofmann; 
City Secretary, Ann Franklin; and City Attorney, Alan Bojorquez. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Schroeder called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. with a quorum present. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Citlali Mata Hernandez and Daniel Lopez Perez with Cedar Creek High School Ballet 
Folklorico, led the pledges. 
 
INVOCATION   
Pastor Bernie Jackson, Trinity Zion Church, gave the invocation. 
 
OATH OF OFFICE 
 
4A. Incoming Council Member Cheryl Lee, Place 1 

• Swearing Oath of Office, The Honorable Chris Duggan, State District Judge, District 
423 

• Signature of Official Documents 
• Welcome by Council 
• Comments by Council Member Cheryl Lee 

 
4B. Incoming Council Member John Kirkland, Place 5 

• Swearing Oath of Office, The Honorable Chris Duggan, State District Judge, District 
423 

• Signature of Official Documents 
• Welcome by Council 
• Comments by Council Member John Kirkland 

 
5. ELECTION OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
 
5A. Consider action to elect Mayor Pro Tem. 

A motion was made by Council Member Plunkett to nominate Council Member 
Rogers as Mayor Pro Tem, seconded by Council Member Crouch, motion was 
approved on a 5-0 vote. 

 
Mayor Schroeder recessed the Council Meeting at 6:49 P.M. 
 
RECEPTION FOR NEWLY ELECTED COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
Mayor Schroeder called the Council Meeting back to order at 7:07 P.M. 
 
6A. Mayor’s Report 
 
6B. Council Members’ Report 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  MAY 10, 2022 

Page 2 of 3 
 

6C. City Manager’s Report 
 
6D. Proclamation of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas recognizing May 15-21, 

2022 as Public Works Week for the City of Bastrop, Texas. (Submitted by: Ann 
Franklin, City Secretary) 
The proclamation was read into record by Mayor Schroeder and accepted by Curtis 
Hancock, Public Works Director and Thomas Martinez, Parks Crew Leader/City 
Arborist. 
 

6E. Proclamation of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas recognizing May 15-21, 
as National Police Week for the City of Bastrop, Texas. (Submitted by: Ann Franklin, 
City Secretary) 
The proclamation was read into record by Mayor Schroeder and accepted by Clint 
Nagy, Chief of Police; Vicky Steffanic, Assistant Chief of Police; Christopher 
Chavez, Patrol Sargent; Dylan Judd, Officer; and Jaylen Vendrell-West, Officer.  
 

6F. Proclamation of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas recognizing the month 
of May 2022 as Building Safety Month for the City of Bastrop, Texas. (Submitted by: 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary) 
The proclamation was read into record by Mayor Schroeder and accepted by Shirley 
Ellis, Building Official. 
 

6G. Proclamation of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas recognizing May 14, as 
World Migratory Bird Day for the City of Bastrop, Texas. (Submitted by: Ann Franklin, 
City Secretary) 
The proclamation was read into record by Mayor Schroeder and accepted by Kerry 
Fossler, Curtis Hancock and Thomas Martinez, Parks Crew Leader/City Arborist. 

 
WORK SESSION/BRIEFINGS – NONE 
 
STAFF AND BOARD REPORTS  
 
8A. Receive presentation on the FY 2022 Second Quarterly Report. (Submitted by: 

Rebecca Gleason, Assistant City Manager) 
 Presentation was made by Rebecca Gleason, Assistant City Manager and Trey 

Job, Assistant City Manager.  
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Kerry Fossler 
1903 Main St. 
Bastrop, TX 78602 
713-882-7218 
 
Peggy Dimmick 
216 Trailside Ln 
Bastrop, TX 78602 
512-798-2280 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  MAY 10, 2022 

Page 3 of 3 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  
 
A motion was made by Council Member Plunket to approve Items 10A and 10B as listed 
on the Consent Agenda after being read into the record by City Secretary, Ann 
Franklin.  Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Rogers, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.  
 
10A. Consider action to approve City Council minutes from the April 26, 2022, Regular 

meeting. (Submitted by: Ann Franklin, City Secretary) 
 
10B. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2022-48 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas authorizing as an American Rescue Plan (ARP) program the 
Transfer Lift Station and Force Main wastewater system improvement; providing for a 
repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. (Submitted by: Tracy Waldron, 
Chief Financial Officer) 

 
ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION  
 
11A. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2022-49 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas confirming appointment by the Mayor of Judah Ross to Place 1 of 
the Planning & Zoning Commission, as required in Section 3.08 of the City’s Charter, 
and establishing an effective date. (Submitted by: Ann Franklin, City Secretary) 

 A motion was made by Council Member Plunkett to approve Resolution No. R-2022-
49, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Rogers, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.  

 
11B. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2022-50 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas confirming appointment by the Mayor of Sonya Cote to Place 4 of 
the Main Street Program Advisory Board, as required in Section 3.08 of the City’s 
Charter, and establishing an effective date. (Submitted by: Ann Franklin, City 
Secretary) 

 A motion was made by Council Member Plunkett to approve Resolution No. R-2022-
50, seconded by Council Member Kirkland, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.  

 
11C. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2022-51 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas confirming appointment by the Mayor of Amy Bailey to Place 5 of 
the Cultural Arts Commission, as required in Section 3.08 of the City’s Charter, and 
establishing an effective date. (Submitted by: Ann Franklin, City Secretary) 

 A motion was made by Council Member Lee to approve Resolution No. R-2022-51, 
seconded by Council Member Plunkett, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.  

 
Adjourned at 8:17 p.m. without objection. 

APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 

       Mayor Connie B. Schroeder    City Secretary Ann Franklin 
 
The Minutes were approved on May 24, 2022, by Council Member   motion, Council Member  
second.  The motion was approved on a    vote.  
 



SPECIAL PRE-BUDGET WORKSHOP MINUTES  MAY 12, 2022 

M I N U T E S  O F  S P E C I A L  B A S T R O P  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  P R E - B U D G E T  
W O R K S H O P   
MAY 12, 2022 

 
The Bastrop City Council met in a special pre-budget workshop on Thursday, May 12, 2022, at 
8:30 a.m. at the Bastrop Convention & Exhibit Center, 1408 Chestnut St, Bastrop, Texas.  
Members present were: Mayor Schroeder and Mayor Pro Tem Rogers and Council Members Lee, 
Plunkett, Crouch, and Kirkland. Officers present were City Manager, Paul A. Hofmann; City 
Secretary, Ann Franklin; and City Attorney, Alan Bojorquez. 
. 
BREAKFAST, WELCOME, AND TEAM BUILDING 

 
CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Schroeder called the workshop to order with a quorum being present at 9:10 a.m.  

 
PRE-BUDGET PLANNING WORKSHOP  
 

• Capital Plan and Fiscal Forecast 
 
Mayor Schroeder recessed the workshop at 10:09 a.m. 
 
Mayor Schroeder called the workshop back to order at 10:25 a.m. 
 

• FY2023 Proposed Organizational Issues 
• Council Focus Areas 
• City Council “housekeeping” items  
• Broadband feasibility 
• Bond Election initiative 
• Potential FY2023 Enhancements and Management Projects  

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS - NONE 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schroeder adjourned the Bastrop City Council workshop meeting at 4:13 p.m. 
without objection. 

APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
_____________________________   _______________________________ 

       Mayor Connie B. Schroeder    City Secretary Ann Franklin 
 

 
The Minutes were approved on May 24, 2022, by Council Member   motion, Mayor Pro Tem 
second.  The motion was approved on a   vote.  



 

 
 

     STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   May 24, 2022      AGENDA ITEM: 8B 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2022-52 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas, approving a professional engineering services contract with TRC Engineers, Inc. for the 
Riverwood Water Main Replacement – Phase I to a not to exceed amount of Fifty-Five Thousand 
Dollars ($55,000.00); authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents; providing 
for a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED BY: 
Fabiola de Carvalho, MIAM, Director of Engineering and Capital Project Management 
   
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The City of Bastrop like any other municipality has aging infrastructure that needs replacement.  
 
The water lines on Riverwood Drive and All Jones Street are in need of replacement due to aging 
and deterioration. In addition the lines are undersized, comprised of mixed materials, are 
unreliable, difficult to repair and inadequate to support fire flow to this portion of the City’s water 
system.  

The city applied for a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) grant, which was awarded 
in April, 2022. Because the grant will only cover a section of the work limits, it will be required to 
be constructed in two phases. To do all the area that needs replacement, approximately $1M is 
required. The existing water lines range from 2"-4" in size and are located in the ETJ, but are 
part of the city's water system. This project consists of replacing and upsizing the existing water 
lines to 6", replacing laterals, hydrants, and their appurtenances, which will benefit a total of 21 
families. The project will be designed and constructed in 2 phases. 

Phase 1:  

• Design: $55,000 covered by the grant 
• Grant Administration covered by the grant: $24,000 (total $24,400 with match funds) 
• Construction covered by the grant: $271,000 (total $323,100 with match funds) 
• Grant award: $350,000 
• Total project budget: $402,500 
• City’s Commitment as Match: $52,500  

See project area within the Exhibit A.  
 
The City selected TRC Engineers as part of the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process 
completed in April 2021, Resolution NO. R-2021-46 
 



 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
FY22 Annual Budget 

• Texas Community Development Block Grant (CDBG): $55,000 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution No. R-2022-52 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, approving a 
professional engineering services contract with TRC Engineers, Inc. for the Riverwood Water 
Main Replacement – Phase I to a not to exceed amount of Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars 
($55,000.00); authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents; providing for a 
repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Exhibit A: Professional Services Contract between the City of Bastrop and TRC 
Engineers, Inc. 

• Exhibit B: Resolution No. R-2022-52 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2022-52 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT 
WITH TRC ENGINEERS, INC. TO A NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF FIFTY-
FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($55,000.00) FOR  THE RIVERWOOD WATER 
MAIN REPLACEMENT – PHASE I; AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPALING CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas appointed the City Manager 
as the Chief Administrative Officer of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager is responsible for the proper administration of all affairs 

of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas has the steadfastness to 
ensure the quality of our City water supply; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop will continue to invest on its assets for future 

generations. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1:   That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the Professional 

Services Contract attached as Exhibit A, to a not-to-exceed amount of Fifty-Five Thousand 
Dollars ($55,000.00). 

 
Section 2:    All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in 

conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extend 
of such conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the 
matters resolved herein.  

 
Section 2:      That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, 

and it is so resolved. 



DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas this 24th day of May, 2022. 

 
 
APPROVED: 

 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 
 



1 

CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

PART I - AGREEMENT 

 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT, by the authority of the Texas Government Code Chapter 2254, 

Subchapter A, Professional Services, entered into this 25th day of February, 2022, by and between 

the City of Bastrop, hereinafter called the "City", acting herein by Paul A. Hofmann, City Manager 

hereunto duly authorized, and TRC Engineers, Inc. hereinafter called "Firm", acting herein by Jeff 

Dahm, P.E., Austin Office Practice Leader - DMS. 

 

WITNESSETH THAT: 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop desires to: 

 

Scope 1: develop and submit a water line improvements TxCDBG Community Development 

(CD) Fund grant application; and with funding, 

 

Scope 2: Implement/construct the Riverwood Water Main Replacement project identified in 

the application under the general direction of the Texas Community Development 

Block Grant (hereinafter called “TxCDBG”) Program administered by the Texas 

Department of Agriculture; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop desires to engage TRC Engineers, Inc. to render certain 

engineering services in connection with this 2021 TxCDBG water improvements application and 

with funding the subsequent engineering of the project. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, the parties do mutually agree as follows: 

 

1. Scope of Services 

 

The Firm will perform the services set out in Part II, Scope of Services. 

 

2. Time of Performance 

 

The services of the Firm shall commence on the date of the City’s contract execution 

with the Texas Community Department Block Grant Program. In any event, all of 

the services required and performed hereunder shall be completed no later than the 

completion date in the City’s contract with the Texas Community Department Block 

Grant Program. 

 

3. Local Program Liaison 

 

For purposes of this Agreement, the Mayor or equivalent authorized person will serve 

as the Local Program Liaison and primary point of contact for the Firm.  All required 

progress reports and communication regarding the project shall be directed to this 

liaison and other local personnel as appropriate. 

 

4. Access to Records 

 



 

 

 

2 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Inspectors 

General, the Comptroller General of the United States, the Texas Department of 

Agriculture (TDA), and the City, or any of their authorized representatives, shall have 

access to any documents, papers, or other records of the Firm which are pertinent to 

the TxCDBG award, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts, 

and to closeout the City’s TxCDBG contract with TDA.  

 

5. Retention of Records 

 

The Firm shall retain all required records for three years after the City makes its final 

payment and all pending matters are closed. 

 

6. Compensation and Method of Payment 

 

The maximum amount of compensation and reimbursement to be paid hereunder 

shall not exceed $55,000.00. Payment to the Firm shall be based on satisfactory 

completion of identified milestones in Part III - Payment Schedule of this Agreement.  

 

7. Indemnification 

 

The Firm shall comply with the requirements of all applicable laws, rules and 

regulations, and shall exonerate, indemnify, and hold harmless the City and its 

agency members from and against any and all claims, costs, suits, and damages, 

including attorney’s fees, arising out of the Firm’s performance or nonperformance 

of the activities, services or subject matter called for in this Agreement,  and shall 

assume full responsibility for payments of Federal, State and local taxes on 

contributions imposed or required under the Social Security, worker's compensation 

and income tax laws. 

 

8. Miscellaneous Provisions 

  

a. This Agreement shall be construed under and accord with the laws of the State 

of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in 

Bastrop County, Texas. 

 

b. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 

hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 

successors and assigns where permitted by this Agreement. 

 

c. In any case one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for 

any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such 

invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision 

thereof and this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

 

d. If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce or interpret the terms of 

this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees, 

costs, and necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief to which such 

party may be entitled. 

 



 

 

 

3 

e. This Agreement may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties hereto and 

a writing to be attached to and incorporated into this Agreement.   

 

9. Extent of Agreement 

 

This Agreement, which includes Parts I-IV and Attachment A represents the entire 

and integrated agreement between the City and the Firm and supersedes all prior 

negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement 

may be amended only by written instrument signed by authorized representatives of 

both the City and the Firm.  

 

 IN WITNESS HERE OF, the parties have executed this Agreement by causing the same to 

be signed on the day and year first above written. 

 

 

 CITY OF BASTROP TRC ENGINEERS, INC. 

    

 

 

 

By:   By:   

 Paul A. Hofmann K. Beau Perry, P.E. 

 City Manager Regional Vice President - DMS 

  



 

 

 

4 

PART II 

 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

Scope of Services #1:  The Firm shall provide develop and complete engineering documents 

necessary for a 2021 TxCDBG Program Community Development (CD) Fund application for the 

Riverwood Water Main Replacement project. 

 

Scope of Services #2: With funding, the Firm shall render the following professional services 

necessary for the development of the project: 

 

1. Attend and lead preliminary conferences with the City regarding the requirements of the 

project and provide meeting minutes within 2 days. 

2. Determine necessity for acquisition of any additional real property/easements/right-of-ways 

(ROWs) for the TxCDBG project and, if applicable, furnish to the City: 

a. Name and address of property owners; 

b. Legal description of parcels to be acquired, and sketches/graphic exhibits for 

ROW/easements instruments; and 

3. Make any necessary surveys of existing rights-of-way, topography, utilities, or other field 

data required for proper design of the project.  The Firm will review any tests required and 

act as the City's representative in connection with any such services. 

4. TRC will be responsible for discussions on conflicts with Franchise Utilities as determined 

and marked when calling 811. 

5. Make one (1) monthly visit for a duration of six (6) months, during the construction period, 

to the site to observe the progress and quality of the work, and to determine, in general, if 

the work is proceeding in accordance with the Agreement.  TRC will attend and lead 

construction meeting with the City and contractor regarding the progress of the project and 

provide meeting minutes within 2 days. TRC will review quantities installed with the 

contractor during these meetings for progress Pay Requests.  

6. Submit detailed drawings and plans/specifications to appropriate regulatory agency(ies) and 

obtain clearance. 

7. Submit to the City for review and comments 60%, 90% and 100% complete design submittal, 

including plans and profiles, specifications, contract documents, project manual and OPCC. 

The Firm will submit the review documents to the City through Bluebeam. The Firm will 

compile all comments and Firm’s responses on an excel spreadsheet. And incorporate 

comments on the next submittal design package. 

8. Apply and submit permits on behalf of the City to any permits required.  

9. Prepare bid packet/contract documents/advertisement for bids.  TRC will advertise the 

project on CivCast and address all questions through CivCast or Addendum as necessary.  

TRC will attend the bid opening and provide a bid tab and recommendation of award.  The 

recommendation will include reference checks of a minimum of the three (3) low bidders.  

TRC will attend one (1) City Council meeting for questions if requested.  

10. Incorporate any and all wage rate modifications or supersedes via bid addendum (if 

applicable). 

11. Tabulate, analyze, and review bids for completeness and accuracy. 



 

 

 

5 

12. Conduct pre-construction conference, providing Agenda and Meeting Minutes within 2 days.  

13. Issue Notice to Proceed to construction contractor. 

14.  Subsequent to construction award, the Firm should provide conformed construct contract 

documents to include plans and specifications as follows: 

i. Four (4) plan sets (two (2) 24”x36”, two (2) 12”x18”) and one (2) project 

manual to the CITY. 

ii. One (1) plan set (24”x36”) and one (1) project manual to the contractor. 

iii. Electronic files to the CITY and contractor 

15. Provide in all proposed construction contracts deductive alternatives where feasible, so that 

should the lowest responsive base bid for construction exceed the funds available, deductive 

alternatives can be taken to reduce the bid price. 

16. Design for access by persons with disabilities for those facilities to be used by the public in 

accordance with Public Law 504. 

17. Use TDA-approved forms for instructions to bidders, general conditions, contract, bid bond, 

performance bond, and payment bond. 

18. Consult with and advise the City during construction; issue to contractors all instructions 

requested by the City; and prepare routine change orders if required, at no charge for 

engineering services to the City when the change order is required to correct errors or 

omissions by the Firm; provide price analysis for change orders and recommend approval or 

denial; process change orders approved by the City and the Firm and submit to TDA for 

approval prior to execution with the construction contractor. 

19. Review shop and working drawings furnished by contractors for compliance with design 

concept and with information given in contract documents (contractors will be responsible 

for dimensions to be confirmed and correlated at job site). Approve and/or provide 

comments/recommendations on all shop drawings, change orders, and request for 

information (RFIs) for the Project. Review and determine acceptability of deviations from 

specifications, substitute materials and equipment in consultation with City’s Project 

Manager and make recommendation regarding such deviations or substitutions. Review 

laboratory testing reports, field change requests and change orders and provide comments to 

City.  Provide written responses to requests for information or clarification to City or 

contractor.  Provide and maintain an accurate Change Order Log, Submittal Log and 

Requests for Information Log throughout the duration of the Project and make such logs 

available to the City.  

20. The Firm will perform a review of contractor’s construction schedule in accordance with the 

specifications.  An initial schedule will be reviewed for schedule health and for consistency 

with project phasing and contract time limits.  Comments will be provided to the Contractor 

and the CITY. Monthly progress schedule updates will be reviewed, and comments of 

observations provided for discussion with the contractor. 

21. Resolve all payment requests within 14 days of receipt of signed pay request from the 

construction contractor.  

22. Based on the Firm's on-site observations and review of the contractor's applications for 

payment, determine the amount owed to the contractor in such amounts; such approvals of 

payment to constitute a representation to the City, based on such observations and review, 

that the work has progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of work is in 

accordance with the plans, specifications and contract documents. 



 

 

 

6 

23. Recommend that a 10% retainage is withheld from all payments on construction contracts 

until final acceptance by the City and approval by TDA, unless State or local law provides 

otherwise. 

24. Attend and lead a substantial and final completion walkthrough and provide punch list items 

within 2 days. 

25. Prepare Certificate of Construction Completion and Clean Lien Certificate. A Clean Lien 

Certificate may be prepared for each of the Prime Contractor(s) and each of the 

subcontractor(s).  

26. Conduct interim/final inspections. 

27. Revise contract drawings to show the work as actually constructed, and furnish the City with 

a set of "record drawings" plans in pdf and AutoCAD. 

28. The Firm will provide a copy of the final project record drawing(s) engineering schematic(s), 

as constructed using funds under this contract.  These maps shall be provided in digital format 

containing the source map data (original vector data) and the graphic data in files on machine 

readable media, such as compact disc (CD), which are compatible with computer systems 

owned or readily available to the owner.  The digital copy provided shall not include a digital 

representation of the engineer’s seal but the accompanying documentation from the Firm 

shall include a signed statement of when the map was authorized, that the digital map is a 

true representation of the original sealed document, and that a printed version with the seal 

has been provided to the City.  In addition, complete documentation as to the content and 

layout of the data files and the name of the software package(s) used to generate the data and 

maps shall be provided to the owner in written form.   

 

SUBCONTRACTS 

 

1. No work under this Agreement shall be subcontracted by the Firm without prior approval, in 

writing, from the City.  

2. The Firm shall, prior to proceeding with the work, notify the City in writing of the name of 

any subcontractors proposed for the work, including the extent and character of the work to 

be done by each.  

3. The Firm is responsible for their subcontractor’s work. 

4. The Firm is responsible for managing their own subcontractors. 

5. If any time during progress of the work, the City determines that any subcontractor is 

incompetent or undesirable, the City will notify the Firm who shall take reasonable and 

immediate steps to satisfactorily cure the problem, substitute performance, or cancel such 

subcontract. Subletting by subcontractors shall be subject to the same regulations. Nothing 

contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relation between any subcontractor 

and the City.  

6. The Firm will include in all contracts and subcontracts in excess of $150,000 a provision 

which requires compliance with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued 

pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution 

Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). The provisions shall require reporting of 

violations to TDA and to the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency 

(EPA).  



 

 

 

7 

7. The Firm will include in all contracts and subcontracts in excess of $150,000 provisions or 

conditions which will allow for administrative, contractual or legal remedies in instances 

where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and 

penalties as may be appropriate.  

8. The Firm will include in all contracts and subcontracts in excess of $10,000 provisions 

addressing termination for cause and for convenience by the City including the manner by 

which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. 

9. The Firm will include in all contracts and subcontracts provisions requiring compliance with 

the following, if applicable:  

a.  Prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000, compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act, 

as amended (40 U.S.C.3141-3144, 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor 

regulations (29 CFR part 5); 

b. Prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000, compliance with the Copeland “Anti-

Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations 

(29 CFR part 3) 

c. Contracts greater than $10,000, the inclusion of the Equal Opportunity clause provided 

under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) (Executive Order 11246);  

d. Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968; 

e. Contracts exceeding $100,000, compliance with the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment 

(31 U.S.C. 1352);  

f. For contracts in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or 

laborers, compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 

3701–3708), including work week requirements and safety conditions for workers, as 

supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5); and 

10. The Firm will include in all negotiated contracts and subcontracts a provision which indicates 

that funds will not be awarded under this contract to any party which is debarred, suspended, 

or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal assistance programs 

under Executive Order 12549 and 2 CFR Part 2424. A certification shall be provided and 

received from each proposed subcontractor under this contract and its principals.  

11. The Firm will include in all negotiated contracts and subcontracts a provision to the effect 

that the City, TDA, Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, Comptroller General of the 

United States, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), or any of their 

duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, documents, papers and 

records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract, for the purpose 

of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.  

12. The Firm will include in all contracts and subcontracts a requirement that the contractor 

maintain all relevant project records for three (3) years after the City has made final payment 

to the contractor and all other pending matters are closed. 

 

STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE AND DEFICIENCIES 

 

1. All services of the Firm and its independent professional associates, consultants and 

subcontractors will be performed in a professional, reasonable and prudent manner in 

accordance with generally accepted professional practice. The Firm represents that it has the 



 

 

 

8 

required skills and capacity to perform work and services to be provided under this 

Agreement. 

2. The Firm represents that services provided under this Agreement shall be performed within 

the limits prescribed by the City in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill 

ordinarily exercised by other professional consultants under similar circumstances. 

3. Any deficiency in Firm's work and services performed under this contract shall be subject to 

the provisions of applicable state and federal law. Any deficiency discovered shall be 

corrected upon notice from the City and at the Firm's expense if the deficiency is due to 

Firm's negligence. The City shall notify the Firm in writing of any such deficiency and 

provide an opportunity for mutual investigation and resolution of the problem prior to pursuit 

of any judicial remedy. In any case, this provision shall in no way limit the judicial remedies 

available to the City under applicable state or federal law.  

4. The Firm agrees to and shall hold harmless the City, its officers, employees, and agents from 

all claims and liability of whatsoever kind or character due to or arising solely out of the 

negligent acts or omissions of the Firm, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, and 

others acting for or under the direction of the Firm doing the work herein contracted for or 

by or in consequence of any negligence in the performance of this Agreement, or by or on 

account of any omission in the performance of this Agreement. 

  



 

 

 

9 

PART III 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

 

Scope of Work #1: Firm shall prepare/develop a 2021 TxCDBG Community Development 

(CD) Fund application with completion and submission of application to TDA.  

 

Scope of Work #2: With funding of project, the City shall reimburse the Firm for professional 

services provided upon completion of the following project milestones per the following 

percentages of the maximum contract amount: 

 

Basic Engineering Service Milestone 

 

Basic Fee $50,000.00 

 

1. Completion of preliminary Engineering plans and specifications. 20% 

2. Completion of final plans and specifications, and completion of bid 

advertisements and contract award. 

30% 

3. Start of Construction 35% 

4. Completion of all Interim and Final Inspections 5% 

5. Completion of Record Drawing 5% 

6. TXCDBG Closeout Requirements 5% 

 TOTAL 100% 

 

 

 

 

SPECIAL SERVICES: 

 

The fee for all Special Services (topographical surveying) shall not exceed a total of Five Thousand 

and 00/100 dollars ($5,000.00) upon completion of surveying and necessary field data.  The 

payment for these Special Services shall be paid as a lump sum. 

 

 

  



 

 

 

10 

PART IV 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT, ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

1.  Termination of Agreement for Cause.  If the Firm fails to fulfill in a timely and proper 

manner its obligations under this Agreement, or if the Firm violates any of the covenants, 

conditions, agreements, or stipulations of this Agreement, the City shall have the right to terminate 

this Agreement by giving written notice to the Firm of such termination and specifying the 

effective date thereof, which shall be at least five days before the effective date of such termination. 

In the event of termination for cause, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, 

drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by the Firm pursuant to this Agreement 

shall, at the option of the City, be turned over to the City and become the property of the City.  In 

the event of termination for cause, the Firm shall be entitled to receive reasonable compensation 

for any necessary services actually and satisfactorily performed prior to the date of termination.  

 

 Notwithstanding the above, the Firm shall not be relieved of liability to the City for 

damages sustained by the City by virtue of any breach of the Agreement by the Firm, and the City 

may set-off the damages it incurred as a result of the Firm’s breach of the contract from any 

amounts it might otherwise owe the Firm. 

 

2. Termination for Convenience of the City.  The City may at any time and for any reason 

terminate Firm’s services and work at the City's convenience upon providing written notice to the 

Firm specifying the extent of termination and the effective date. Upon receipt of such notice, Firm 

shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, immediately discontinue the work and placing of orders 

for materials, facilities and supplies in connection with the performance of this Agreement. 

 

 Upon such termination, Firm shall be entitled to payment only as follows: (1) the actual 

cost of the work completed in conformity with this Agreement; plus, (2) such other costs actually 

incurred by Firm as are permitted by the prime contract and approved by the City; (3) plus ten 

percent (10%) of the cost of the work referred to in subparagraph 1. above for overhead and profit. 

There shall be deducted from such sums as provided in this subparagraph the amount of any 

payments made to Firm prior to the date of the termination of this Agreement. Firm shall not be 

entitled to any claim or claim of lien against the City for any additional compensation or damages 

in the event of such termination and payment. 

 

3. Changes.  The City may, from time to time, request changes in the services the Firm will 

perform under this Agreement. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of 

the Firm's compensation, must be agreed to by all parties and finalized through a signed, written 

amendment to this Agreement.  

 

4. Resolution of Program Non-Compliance and Disallowed Costs.  In the event of any 

dispute, claim, question, or disagreement arising from or relating to this Agreement, or the breach 

thereof, including determination of responsibility for any costs disallowed as a result of non-

compliance with federal, state or TxCDBG program requirements, the parties hereto shall use their 

best efforts to settle the dispute, claim, question or disagreement.  To this effect, the parties shall 

consult and negotiate with each other in good faith within 30 days of receipt of a written notice of 

the dispute or invitation to negotiate, and attempt to reach a just and equitable solution satisfactory 

to both parties.  If the matter is not resolved by negotiation within 30 days of receipt of written 

notice or invitation to negotiate, the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the matter by 



 

 

 

11 

mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Commercial Mediation 

Procedures before resorting to arbitration, litigation, or some other dispute resolution procedure.  

The parties may enter into a written amendment to this Amendment and choose a mediator that is 

not affiliated with the American Arbitration Association.  The parties shall bear the costs of such 

mediation equally.  If the matter is not resolved through such mediation within 60 days of the 

initiation of that procedure, either party may proceed to file suit. 

 

5. Personnel. 

 

a. The Firm represents that he/she/it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel 

required in performing the services under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not be 

employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. 

 

b. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the Firm or under its 

supervision and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified and shall be 

authorized or permitted under State and Local law to perform such services. 

 

c. None of the work or services covered by this Agreement shall be subcontracted without 

the prior written approval of the City. Any work or services subcontracted hereunder 

shall be specified by written contract or agreement and shall be subject to each 

provision of this Agreement. 

 

6. Assignability.  The Firm shall not assign any interest on this Agreement, and shall not 

transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written 

consent of the City thereto; Provided, however, that claims for money by the Firm from the City 

under this Agreement may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution 

without such approval. Written notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be furnished 

promptly to the City. 

 

7. Reports and Information.  The Firm, at such times and in such forms as the City may 

require, shall furnish the City such periodic reports as it may request pertaining to the work or 

services undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, the costs and obligations incurred or to be incurred 

in connection therewith, and any other matters covered by this Agreement. 

 

8. Records and Audits.  The Firm shall insure that the City maintains fiscal records and 

supporting documentation for all expenditures of funds made under this contract in a manner that 

conforms to 2 CFR 200.300-.309, 24 CFR 570.490, and this Agreement. Such records must include 

data on the racial, ethnic, and gender characteristics of persons who are applicants for, participants 

in, or beneficiaries of the funds provided under this Agreement. The Firm and the City shall retain 

such records, and any supporting documentation, for the greater of three years from closeout of 

the Agreement or the period required by other applicable laws and regulations. 

 

9. Findings Confidential.  All of the reports, information, data, etc., prepared or assembled by 

the Firm under this contract are confidential and the Firm agrees that they shall not be made 

available to any individual or organization without the prior written approval of the City. 

 

10. Copyright.  No report, maps, or other documents produced in whole or in part under this 

Agreement shall be the subject of an application for copyright by or on behalf of the Firm. 

 



 

 

 

12 

11. Compliance with Local Laws.  The Firm shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances 

and codes of the State and local governments, and the Firm shall save the City harmless with 

respect to any damages arising from any tort done in performing any of the work embraced by this 

Agreement. 

 

12. Conflicts of interest. 

 

 a. Governing Body.  No member of the governing body of the City and no other officer, 

employee, or agent of the City, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in 

connection with administration, construction, engineering, or implementation of 

TxCDBG award between TDA and the City, shall have any personal financial interest, 

direct or indirect, in the Firm or this Agreement; and the Firm shall take appropriate 

steps to assure compliance. 

 

 b. Other Local Public Officials.  No other public official, who exercises any functions or 

responsibilities in connection with the planning and carrying out of administration, 

construction, engineering or implementation of the TxCDBG award between TDA and 

the City, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or indirect, in the Firm or this 

Agreement; and the Firm shall take appropriate steps to assure compliance. 

 

 c. The Firm and Employees.  The Firm warrants and represents that it has no conflict of 

interest associated with the TxCDBG award between TDA and the City or this 

Agreement.  The Firm further warrants and represents that it shall not acquire an 

interest, direct or indirect, in any geographic area that may benefit from the TxCDBG 

award between TDA and the City or in any business, entity, organization or person that 

may benefit from the award.  The Firm further agrees that it will not employ an 

individual with a conflict of interest as described herein. 

 

13. Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689).  The Firm certifies, by 

entering into this Agreement, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, 

or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federally-assisted programs under 

Executive Orders 12549 (1986) and 12689 (1989). The term “principal” for purposes of this 

Agreement is defined as an officer, director, owner, partner, key employee, or other person with 

primary management or supervisory responsibilities, or a person who has a critical influence on or 

substantive control over the operations of the Firm. The Firm understands that it must not make 

any award or permit any award (or contract) at any tier to any party which is debarred or suspended 

or is otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs under 

Executive Order 12549, “Debarment and Suspension.” 

 

 

FEDERAL CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 

 

14. Equal Opportunity Clause (applicable to federally assisted construction contracts and 

subcontracts over $10,000).  During the performance of this contract, the Firm agrees as follows: 

 

a. The Firm will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national 

origin. The Firm will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, 

and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, 

religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall 



 

 

 

13 

include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or 

transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or 

other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The 

Firm agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 

employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this 

nondiscrimination clause. 

 

b. The Firm will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 

behalf of the Firm, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for 

employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 

identity, or national origin. 

 

c. The Firm will not discourage or in any other manner discriminate against any employee 

or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, 

discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another 

employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an 

employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or 

applicants as a part of such employee’s essential job functions discloses the 

compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not 

otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a 

formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or 

action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the 

contractor’s legal duty to furnish information. 

 

d. The Firm will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has 

a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be 

provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Firm's 

commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous 

places available to employees and applicants for employment.  

 

e. The Firm will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 

1965, “Equal Employment Opportunity”, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant 

orders of the Secretary of Labor.  

 

f. The Firm will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 

of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, 

or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the 

administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to 

ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.  

 

g. In the event of the Firm's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this 

contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be 

canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Firm may be declared 

ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts 

in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 

1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in 

Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the 

Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.  

 



 

 

 

14 

h. The Firm will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (a) 

and the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (h) in every subcontract or purchase order 

unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued 

pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such 

provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Firm will take such 

action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency 

may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for 

noncompliance: Provided, however, That in the event a Firm becomes involved in, or 

is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction 

by the administering agency the Firm may request the United States to enter into such 

litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  

 

15. Civil Rights Act of 1964.  Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, no person shall, 

on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, 

be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving 

Federal financial assistance. 

 

16. Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974.  The Firm shall 

comply with the provisions of Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 

1974.  No person in the United States shall on the ground of race, color, national origin, religion, 

or sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination 

under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds made available under this title.  

 

17. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended.  The Firm agrees that no 

otherwise qualified individual with disabilities shall, solely by reason of his/her disability, be 

denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination, including discrimination in employment, 

under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. 

 

18. Age Discrimination Act of 1975.  The Firm shall comply with the Age Discrimination Act 

of 1975 which provides that no person in the United States shall on the basis of age be excluded 

from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 

program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. 

 

19. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) (if contract greater than or equal to 

$100,000).  The Firm certifies that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay 

any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 

any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 

of Congress in connection with obtaining this contract. The Firm shall disclose any lobbying with 

non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. 

 

20. Economic Opportunities for Section 3 Residents and Section 3 Business Concerns. 

 

a. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 

3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u 

(section 3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic 

opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by 

section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income 

persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing. 

 



 

 

 

15 

b. The parties to this Agreement agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 

135, which implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the 

parties to this Agreement certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment 

that would prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulations.  

 

c. The Firm agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with 

which the Firm has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a 

notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the Firm's 

commitments under this section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in 

conspicuous places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training 

and employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the section 3 

preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability 

of apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and 

location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the positions; and the 

anticipated date the work shall begin.  

 

d. The Firm agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to 

compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, 

as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, 

upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 

135. The Firm will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the Firm has notice 

or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 

24 CFR part 135.  

 

e. The Firm will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training 

positions, that are filled (1) after the Firm is selected but before the contract is executed, 

and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 135 

require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the 

Firm's obligations under 24 CFR part 135.  

 

f. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, 

termination of this Agreement for default, and debarment or suspension from future 

HUD assisted contracts.  

 

g. With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing 

assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act 

(25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this Agreement. 

Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities 

for training and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award 

of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations and Indian-owned 

Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of 

section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with section 3 to the maximum extent 

feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b). 

 

 



CITY OF BASTROP
2021 CDBG

APPLICATION
 6" WATER LINE

\\AUSTIN-FP1\INFRASTRUCTURE\WORK IN PROGRESS\BASTROP\XXXXXX 2021 CDBG APPLICATION (WATER PIPELINE)\500 CAD-GIS DRAWINGS\501 DRAWINGS\501.3 EXHIBITS\2021 BASTROP CDGB 6 INCH WATER LINE EXHIBIT.DWG - 4/29/21

505 E. HUNTLAND DRIVE, STE. 250 AUSTIN, TX 78752
T.B.P.E. FIRM REGISTRATION # F-8632

(512) 454 - 8716

TRC ENGINEERS, INC.

HW
Y 

30
4

LOOP 150

RIVERWOOD DR

1890 LF 6" WATER LINE
ALONG RIVERWOOD DR 830 LF 6" WATER LINE

ALONG RIVERWOOD DR

1180 LF 6" WATER LINE
ALONG AL JONE ST

BASTROP CITY LIMITS

BASTROP ETJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3500

AutoCAD SHX Text
1750

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE : 1" = 3500'



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  May 24, 2022     AGENDA ITEM: 9A 
 
TITLE:  
Hold a public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2022-14 of 
the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, annexing Burleson Crossing East, for 12.95 acres 
of land out of the Nancy Blakey Survey, Abstract No. 98, located east of Edward Burleson Lane 
and north of State Highway 71, as shown in Exhibit A, providing for findings of fact, adoption, 
establishing zoning and character district, repealer, severability, filing and enforcement; 
establishing an effective date; and proper notice and meeting, and move to include on the June 
14, 2022 Regular Agenda for the second reading. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, Director of Planning & Development 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The applicant has submitted a request for annexation of 12.95 acres in accordance with the 
Chapter 43 Development Agreement and Addendum that was approved on October 18, 2011.  
The Development Agreement requires the annexation of the property prior to development, after 
a sale of the property, or by 2056 (45 years).  A Municipal Service Plan was adopted as part of 
the agreement but must be updated if more than 10 years old. 
 
Notice of the public hearing was posted in the Bastrop Advertiser in accordance with the Texas 
Local Government Code, Chapter 43, Subchapter C-3 “Annexation of Area on Request of 
Owners”. Per Section 2.3.003 of the Bastrop Building Block (B³) Code, the default zoning upon 
annexation is Place Type 2 – Rural.  Staff is recommending extending the Cattleman’s Character 
District (Chapter 4: Character Districts) which is the designation on the part of the parcel within 
the City Limits.  Extending the city limits of Bastrop will not extend the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, 
as the Development Agreement area is part of the City Boundary, as show in Attachment 1.  
Chapter 43 Development Agreements can be considered the city boundary for annexation and 
ETJ purposes. This annexation request is accompanied by a Zoning Concept Scheme.  The 
Zoning Concept Scheme cannot be adopted until the annexation is approved by City Council. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2022-14 as 
presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Ordinance 2022-04 
• Exhibit A: Property Sketch and Metes & Bounds Description 
• Exhibit B: Municipal Service Plan 
• Attachment 1: Location Map 
• Attachment 2: Applicant’s Letter 
• Attachment 3: Chapter 43 Development Agreement & Addendum 



1 

ORDINANCE 2022-14 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS, ANNEXING BURLESON CROSSING EAST, FOR 
12.95 ACRES OF LAND OUT OF THE NANCY BLAKEY SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 98, LOCATED EAST OF EDWARD BURLESON LANE 
AND NORTH OF STATE HIGHWAY 71, AS SHOWN IN EXHIBIT A, 
PROVIDING FOR FINDINGS OF FACT, ADOPTION, ESTABLISHING 
ZONING AND CHARACTER DISTRICT, REPEALER, SEVERABILITY, 
FILING AND ENFORCEMENT; ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING. 

WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop, Texas (City) is a Home-Rule City acting under its 
Charter adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution 
and Chapter 9 of the Texas Local Government Code; and   

WHEREAS, on or about November 8, 2021, the applicant, on behalf of the Erhard 
Legacy Partners, submitted a request for voluntary annexation of the property in the area 
described in Exhibit “A” (the “property”), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein for 
all purposes; and, 

WHEREAS, City Council has entered into a written agreement with the owners of land 
in the area for the provision of services in the area; and, 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapter 43 
Subchapter C-3, public notice was given, and a public hearing was held before the City 
Council regarding the requested annexation; and 

WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001 provides the City general 
authority to adopt an Ordinance or police regulation that is for the good government, peace or 
order of the City and is necessary or proper for carrying out a power granted by law to the City; 
and 

WHEREAS, the base zoning district is established per Section 2.3.003 “Zoning Upon 
Annexation” as P2, Place Type 2 Rural, the Character District established will extend 
Cattleman’s Character District; and, 

WHEREAS, after consideration of public input received at the hearing, the information 
provided by the petitioners, and all other information presented, City Council finds it necessary 
and proper to enact this Ordinance. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 



2 
 

Section 1: The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as 
findings of fact as if expressly set forth herein.  
 

Section 2:   The property in the area described in Exhibit “A”, which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein for all purposes, is hereby annexed and brought into the municipal 
boundaries (i.e., corporate limits) of the City of Bastrop, Texas, and is made an integral part, 
hereof. The official map and boundaries of the City are hereby amended and revised so as to 
include the area annexed, and to reflect the expansion of the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction 
resulting from such annexation. 

 
A service plan prepared in accordance with applicable provisions of state law 

pertaining to annexation is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein for all 
intents and purposes. The owners and inhabitants of the area herein annexed are entitled to all 
of the rights and privileges of other citizens of the City and are hereby bound by all acts, 
ordinances and other legal actions now in full force and effect and those that may be hereafter 
adopted or enacted. 
 

Section 3:  The base zoning district established is P2 Rural and the Character District 
established is Cattleman’s. 

 
Section 4:   All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or 

inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
regulated, herein. 

 
Section 5: If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstance is held invalid, that invalidity or the unenforceability will not affect any other 
provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid 
provision.  

 
Section 6: The City Secretary is hereby instructed to include this Ordinance in the 

records of the City and to have maps prepared depicting the new municipal boundaries and 
extraterritorial jurisdiction. The City Secretary is hereby instructed to file a certified copy of 
this Ordinance and the updated maps with the Bastrop County Clerk.  

 
Section 7: The City shall have the power to administer and enforce the provisions of 

this ordinance as may be required by governing law. Any person violating any provision of this 
ordinance is subject to suit for injunctive relief as well as prosecution for criminal violations, 
and such violation is hereby declared to be a nuisance. Nothing in this ordinance shall be 
construed as a waiver of the City’s right to bring a civil action to enforce the provisions of this 
ordinance and to seek remedies as allowed by law and/or equity.  

 
Section 8: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon passage and 

publication.  
 



3 
 

Section 9: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and that public notice of the time, place, and 
purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government 
Code, Chapter 551.  

 
READ & APPROVED on First Reading on this the 24th day of May, 2022. 
 
READ & ADOPTED on the Second Reading on this the 14th day of June, 2022. 
  
 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
     ___________________________ 
     Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 
  



4 
 

Exhibit “A” 
DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO BE ANNEXED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  



5 
 

Exhibit “B” 
 

ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 



NANCY BLAKEY SURVEY,           NOVEMBER 19, 2021
ABSTRACT NO. 98         PAGE 1 OF 2 
BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS

ZONING DESCRIPTION

BEING 12.95 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, SITUATED IN THE NANCY BLAKEY SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 98, OUT OF THE REMAINDER OF A CALLED 30.00 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO 
ERHARD LEGACY PARTNERS, LTD., A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT 
NUMBER 201502919, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.B.C.TX.) 
AND DESCRIBED AS 30.00 ACRES, IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 14, O.P.R.B.C.TX.; SAID 12.95 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS;

BEGINNING AT A CONCRETE MONUMENT (GRID NORTHING: 10,018,765.44 U.S. SURVEY FEET, 
GRID EASTING: 3,240,377.69 U.S. SURVEY FEET) ON THE  SOUTH LINE OF A TRACT OF LAND 
OWNED BY LLYOD F. KETHA, DESCRIBED AS A 322.78 ACRE TRACT IN BASTROP COUNTY 
APPRAISAL DISTRICT RECORDS (NO RECORDING INFORMATION), FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER 
OF THIS TRACT AND THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 8, THE SETTLEMENT ON THE 
COLORADO, A SUBDIVISION OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 259-B, PLAT RECORDS OF 
BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS (P.R.B.C.TX.);

THENCE SOUTH 03 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, WITH THE EAST LINE OF THIS 
TRACT AND THE WEST LINE OF SAID SETTLEMENT ON THE COLORADO SUBDIVISION, A  
DISTANCE OF 997.77 FEET TO A CALCULATED POSITION FOR THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THIS 
TRACT;

THENCE WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF THIS TRACT AND OVER AND ACROSS THE REMAINDER OF 
SAID 30.00 ACRE TRACT THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES AND DISTANCES:

1) NORTH 89 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 343.04 FEET TO 
A CALCULATED POSITION FOR AN ANGLE POINT, AND

2) SOUTH 88 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 12 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 247.87 FEET TO 
A CALCULATED POSITION ON THE EAST LINE OF BURLESON CROSSING, A SUBDIVISION 
OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 14A, P.R.B.C.TX., ALSO BEING THE EAST LINE OF  
EDWARD BURLESON ROAD, FOR THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THIS TRACT;



NANCY BLAKEY SURVEY,           NOVEMBER 19, 2021
ABSTRACT NO. 98         PAGE 2 OF 2 
BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS

THENCE WITH THE WEST LINE OF THIS TRACT, THE EAST LINE OF SAID BURLESON CROSSING 
SUBDIVISION, AND THE EAST LINE OF SAID EDWARD BURLESON ROAD THE FOLLOWING THREE 
(3) COURSES AND DISTANCES:

1) NORTH 02 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 44 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 884.40 FEET TO 
A 5/8-INCH IRON ROD WITH CAP STAMPED “LJA SURVEY” SET AT THE BEGINNING OF A 
CURVE TO THE RIGHT,

2) WITH SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH 
OF 39.23 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 89 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 31 SECONDS, AND A 
CHORD THAT BEARS NORTH 42 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 32 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE 
OF 35.33 FEET TO A 5/8-INCH IRON ROD WITH CAP STAMPED “LJA SURVEY” SET, AND

3) NORTH 02 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 68.91 FEET TO A 
5/8-INCH IRON ROD WITH CAP STAMPED “LJA SURVEY” SET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 
SAID KETHA 322.78 ACRE TRACT, FOR THE COMMON NORTH CORNER OF THIS TRACT 
AND SAID BURLESON CROSSING SUBDIVISION;

THENCE NORTH 87 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST, WITH THE NORTH LINE OF THIS 
TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID KETHA 322.78 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 537.08 FEET 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 12.95 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS.

BEARING BASIS:
ALL BEARINGS SHOWN ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, GRID 
NORTH, CENTRAL ZONE (4203), NAD83. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE SURFACE AND MAY BE 
CONVERTED TO GRID BY DIVIDING BY A SURFACE ADJUSTMENT FACTOR OF 0.99997. UNITS: 
U.S. SURVEY FEET.

_______________________________________
MATT OVERALL, RPLS # 6864
LJA SURVEYING, INC.
7500 RIALTO BLVD, BUILDING II, SUITE 100
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78735
TEXAS FIRM NO. 10194382
DATE: 11/19/2021

MATT OVERALL

6864



7/16/2021

File: Mapcheck_12.95AC.ndpScale: 1 inch= 113 feet
Tract 1: 12.9507 Acres, Closure: n00.0000e 0.00 ft. (1/999999), Perimeter=3112 ft.

01 s03.5300e 991.77

02 n89.5658w 343.04

03 s88.0212w 247.87

04 n02.1344w 884.40

05 Rt, r=25.00, delta=089.5431, arc=39.23, chord=n42.4332e 35.33

06 n02.1529w 68.91

07 n87.5726e 537.08

s
0
3
°
5
3
'0
0
"e

9
9
1
. 7
7

n89°56'58"w

343.04

s88°02'12"w

247.87

n
0
2
°
1
3
' 4
4
"w

8
8
4
. 4
0

5

n
0
2
°
1
5
' 2
9
"w

6
8
.9
1

n87°57'26"e

537.08



City of Bastrop      Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan        Page 1 of 11 

CITY OF BASTROP 
MUNICIPAL SERVICE PLAN 

FOR ANNEXATION OF +/- 12.911 ACRES IN THE A98 NANCY BLAKEY SURVEY 
ADJACENT TO THE CITY OF BASTROP MUNICIPAL LIMITS 

Owner Robert E. Duff Childrens’ Trust & 
J. Bradley Duff Childrens’ Trust
c/o John B. Duff 
Parcel Acreage +/-12.911 Acres 

This Municipal Services Plan (“Plan”) is entered into on 14th day of June by and between the 
City of Bastrop, Texas, a home-rule municipality of the State of Texas (“City”) 
and ___________________________ (“Owner”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Section 43.0671 of the Local Government Code permits the City to annex an 
area if each owner of land in an area requests the annexation; 

WHEREAS, where the City elects to annex such an area, the City is required to enter 
into a written agreement with the property owner(s) that sets forth the City services to be 
provided for the Property on or after the effective date of annexation; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Bastrop has directed staff to proceed with 
procedures for the annexation of land generally comprised of approximately 12.911 acres 
within the A98 Nancy Blakey Survey (Number 4) in Bastrop County, such property being 
more accurately described and set forth in Exhibit “A” which is attached and incorporated 
herein (“Property”); 

WHEREAS, the Property consists of undeveloped land and is agriculturally exempt and 
a topographical map of the Property is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; 

WHEREAS, this Plan is made by the City pursuant to Sections 43.056 of the Texas 
Local Government Code (“LGC”);  

WHEREAS, the provisions of this Plan were made available for public inspection and 
explained to the public at the public hearing held by the City on May 24, 2022 in accordance 
with Sections 43.056 and 43.0671 of the LGC; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in exchange for the mutual covenants, conditions and promises 
contained herein, City and Owner agree as follows: 

The parties agree that the foregoing recitals are true and correct and form the basis upon which 
the parties have entered into this Plan. 



 
 

City of Bastrop           Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan                            Page 2 of 11 

 
TERM OF SERVICE PLAN 

 
Pursuant to Section 43.056 of the Local Government Code, this Plan shall be in effect for a ten 
(10) year period, commencing on the effective date of the ordinance approving the annexation. 
Renewal of the Plan shall be at the discretion of the City Council and must be accomplished by 
ordinance. 

 
INTENT 

 
It is the intent of the City of Bastrop that services under this Plan shall provide full municipal 
services as required and defined by the Texas Local Government Code. 
 
FIRE 
 

Existing Services: ESD #2 
 
Services to be Provided: The City of Bastrop intends to submit a petition to remove the area 
from ESD #2 territory, per the Health and Safety Code, Section 775.022 (a) to become the sole 
provider of emergency services to the annexed area.  Until the petition process is complete, 
fire suppression will continue to be provided from ESD #2, as provided by such service 
provider’s authorized service plans and approved areas, and as approved by the citizens in the 
election for ESD services for this tract. Primary fire response by ESD #2 will be provided by 
Bastrop Station No. 1 located on 802 Chestnut in Bastrop, Texas. 

 
ESD #2 fire suppression services may, however, be supplemented by services provided by the 
Bastrop Fire Department and ESD #1 pursuant to mutual aid and/or interlocal policies, and 
agreements. If so, such fire response services will be provided from Bastrop Fire Department 
(Bastrop Station No. 2) located on 120 Corporate Drive in Bastrop, Texas, or ESD #1, Still 
Forest Station (Bluebonnet No. 1) located on 213 Still Forest Drive in Cedar Creek, Texas, or 
future stations located in proximity to the Property. Adequate supplemental fire suppression 
activities by the Bastrop Fire Department may be afforded to the Property within City’s current 
budget appropriation. 

 
In addition, fire prevention activities will be provided by the City of Bastrop’s Fire Marshall’s 
office, as needed. 

 
ESD Service areas are shown on attached Exhibit “C.” 

 
POLICE 

 
Existing Services: Bastrop County Sheriff’s Department 

 
Services to be Provided: Upon annexation, the City of Bastrop Police Department will extend 
regular and routine patrols to the Property. Thus, law enforcement protection will be provided 



 
 

City of Bastrop           Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan                            Page 3 of 11 

to this Property in the same manner as it is currently provided to other similarly situated land 
within the corporate limits of the City. These services include routine police patrols and 
responses to calls, handling of complaints and incident reports, service by special units, such as 
traffic enforcement, criminal investigations, narcotics, gang suppression, and special tactics 
team. In addition, the City Code Enforcement and Animal Control Services will be provided 
by the City of Bastrop to the Property, as appropriate. It is anticipated that the implementation 
of City’s Police Department, Animal Control, and Code Enforcement activities can be 
effectively accommodated within the City’s current budget and staff appropriation. 

 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE 

 
Existing Services: Bastrop County/Acadian EMS 

 
Services to be Provided: Bastrop County/Acadian EMS will continue to provide emergency and 
safety services to the Property, pursuant to existing agreements. 
 
BUILDING INSPECTION 

 
Existing Services: None 

 
Services to be Provided: Upon annexation, the City of Bastrop’s Building Inspection 
Department will provide Building Code Enforcement Services. These services will include 
issuing building permits as well as issuing electrical, HVAC and plumbing permits, for any 
new construction and remodeling. Upon annexation, the Building Inspection Department will 
also assist in issuance and enforcement activities related to all other applicable City of Bastrop 
Codes and regulations which apply to building construction within the City of Bastrop. It is 
anticipated that the implementation of City’s Building Inspection Department activities can be 
effectively accommodated within the City’s current budget and staff appropriation. 

 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT - SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT 

 
Existing Services: None 

 
Services to be Provided: The Planning and Development Department’s responsibility for 
regulating development and land use through the administration of the City of Bastrop Zoning 
Ordinance will extend to this Property on the effective date of the annexation. The annexed 
tract will also continue to be regulated under the requirements of the City of Bastrop 
Subdivision Ordinance. These services can be provided within the department’s current 
budget. The Plan’s services include: site plan review, zoning approvals, sign regulations, 
platting, and construction services. For a complete list and description of all Planning, Zoning, 
Subdivision and Development services that will be provided by the City, see the City’s Code 
of Ordinances, Chapter 3, Chapter 10, and Chapter 14. It is anticipated that the implementation 
of these activities can be effectively accommodated within the City’s current budget and staff 
appropriation. 

 



 
 

City of Bastrop           Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan                            Page 4 of 11 

 
LIBRARY 

 
Existing Services: None. 

 
Services to be Provided: Upon annexation, the City of Bastrop’s municipal library use 
privileges will continue to be provided by the City to persons residing in the Property. It is 
anticipated that the implementation of these Library activities can be effectively 
accommodated within the City’s current budget and staff appropriation. 

 
HEALTH CODE SERVICE 

 
Existing Services: Bastrop County 

 
Services to be Provided: Upon the effective date of the annexation, the Bastrop County Health 
Department will continue to oversee the enforcement of the State, County, and City of 
Bastrop’s health ordinances and regulations, for example those related to inspections of 
commercial kitchens, mobile food vendors, food preparation establishments, and handling 
operations. 

 
The City will perform other enforcement of the City of Bastrop’s health and sanitation 
ordinances and regulations, including but not limited to weed, brush control, and control over 
junked and abandoned vehicles. This service will be provided by the City’s Code 
Enforcement Department and Police Department, and shall begin in this Property on the 
effective date of the annexation. Additionally, the City’s control of dilapidated structures will 
be handled by the City pursuant to its regulations and Code. It is anticipated that the 
implementation of these activities can be effectively accommodated within the City’s current 
budget and staff appropriation. 

 
STREET 

 
Existing Services: State of Texas (“TxDOT”) and Bastrop County 

 
Services to be Provided: Upon annexation, the City of Bastrop’s Public Works Department 
will maintain public streets over which the City has jurisdiction. Maintenance to the street 
facilities will continue to be provided in accordance with the City’s policies and procedures for 
City streets and roadways. Bastrop County shall continue to be responsible for County Roads, 
and TxDOT shall continue to be responsible for State of Texas highways and farm to market 
roadways, pursuant to their statutory authorities. 

 
As new subdivisions and development occurs within the Property, the developers of property 
will be required to dedicate appropriate right-of-way and construct City streets in accordance 
with the City of Bastrop’s Subdivision Code (Bastrop Building Block (B³) Code), regulations, 
and policies that are in place at the time of the development. Upon completion of, dedication 
to, and the City’s acceptance of, new streets and public rights-of-way, the City shall provide 



 
 

City of Bastrop           Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan                            Page 5 of 11 

on-going operation and maintenance for those streets, rights-of way, and roadways. 
Emergency street maintenance to street facilities not otherwise maintained by the County or 
TxDOT, under their respective governmental authority, will be provided by the City, as of the 
effective date of the annexation. Routine maintenance of City streets and roadways will be 
scheduled as part of the City’s annual street maintenance program, in accordance with the 
current policies and procedures of the City. It is anticipated that the implementation of these 
activities can be effectively accommodated within the City’s current budget and staff 
appropriation. 

 
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT 

 
Existing Services: Bastrop County 

 
Services to be Provided: Upon annexation, the City Public Works Department and Planning 
and Development Department will provide maintenance on existing public drainage systems 
and floodplain management in the Property. The same standard of drainage maintenance and 
floodplain regulations provided to other residents of the City, as per the City’s regulations and 
Code in effect at the time of development, shall be provided to property owners within the 
Property. Developers will provide storm water drainage and meet floodplain requirements as 
per the City’s Code, regulations, and policies, and such facilities will be inspected by the 
City’s Engineer at the time of completion of such facilities. The City will maintain public 
drainage facilities within the City right-of-way, as per the City’s Code, regulations, and 
policies. It is anticipated that the implementation of these activities can be effectively 
accommodated within the City’s current budget and staff appropriation. 
 
STREET LIGHTING 

 
Existing Services: None 

 
Services to be Provided: Upon annexation, the City of Bastrop will maintain public street 
lighting over which the City has jurisdiction, and as part of this municipal service, will 
coordinate any request for improved street lighting with the appropriate and certificated 
electric provider, in accordance with State and local laws, and the City’s and other providers’ 
policies and agreements. It is the policy of the City of Bastrop that adequate street lighting for 
the protection of the public and property be installed in all new subdivisions. Installation 
procedures and acceptable standards for street lights shall be governed by the utility standards 
of the City of Bastrop in effect at the time of subdivision construction or additions thereto. It is 
anticipated that the implementation of these activities can be effectively accommodated within 
the City’s current budget and staff appropriation. 

 
WATER SERVICE 

 
Existing Services: City of Bastrop 

 
Services to be Provided: Water service to the Property will be provided by City of Bastrop 



 
 

City of Bastrop           Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan                            Page 6 of 11 

Water Department in accordance with the applicable State law and City Codes, regulations, 
and/or policies applicable to the certified service areas. When property develops, water service 
shall be provided in accordance with State law or contractual agreements in effect and 
controlling the areas to be served. When applicable, extension of service by the City shall 
comply with the City’s Code, regulations, and policies. It is anticipated that the 
implementation of these activities can be effectively accommodated within the City’s current 
budget and staff appropriation. 

 
Water CCN area is shown on attached Exhibit “D.” 

 
SANITARY SEWER SERVICE/WASTEWATER SERVICE 

 
Existing Services: None – On-Site Septic Facilities 

 
Services to be Provided: Sanitary sewer service to the Property of proposed annexation will be 
provided in accordance with applicable State and local regulations and policies and in accord 
with all applicable laws, and Codes. As property develops in the future, the sanitary sewer 
service shall be provided in accordance with the then existing City policies, Codes, 
regulations, and policies in effect at that time and as applicable to similarly situated tracts 
located within the City’s corporate limits, including, when applicable, the City’s then existing 
extension Ordinance and/or policy. 

 
Wastewater CCN area is shown on attached Exhibit “E.” 

 
SOLID WASTE SERVICES 

 
Existing Services: Varies, by contract. 

 
Services to be Provided: If, at the date of annexation, controlling private solid waste 
service contracts are in place between property owners and service providers within the 
Property, property owners may elect to continue to have such services pursuant to the contracts 
for up to 2 years following annexation. At the end of two (2) years, or earlier if desired by the 
property owners, solid waste services to the Property will be provided as per the City’s then 
existing franchises, contracts, or agreements. At this time, solid waste collection in the City of 
Bastrop is provided by Waste Connections, pursuant to a franchise ordinance controlling the 
terms of such service. Solid waste collection and disposal services shall comply with existing 
City policies and regulations. City of Bastrop services available for the City’s residential 
customers (via Waste Connections) currently includes garbage, recycling, and yard trimmings 
collection. It is anticipated that the implementation of these activities can be effectively 
accommodated within the City’s current budget and staff appropriation. 

 
PARKS AND RECREATION 

 
Existing Services: None 

 



 
 

City of Bastrop           Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan                            Page 7 of 11 

Services to be Provided: No City parks, playgrounds, and/or swimming pools exist within the 
Property, as of the time of annexation. At the time, such parks and recreational facilities are 
developed in the Property, the City of Bastrop’s standards and policies in force within the City 
limits at that time will be followed in maintaining and expanding recreational facilities to serve 
the Property. Upon annexation, the owners and residents of property located within the 
Property shall be entitled to the use of all City of Bastrop parks and recreational facilities, 
subject to the same restrictions, fees, and availability that pertains to the use of those facilities 
by other citizens of the City. It is anticipated that the implementation of these activities can be 
effectively accommodated within the City’s current budget and staff appropriation. 

 
BUSINESS LICENSES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Existing Services: None 

 
Services to be Provided: At the time of annexation, existing businesses shall be grandfathered 
for continuing operation. Otherwise, upon annexation, the provisions of Chapter 4 of the City 
Code of Ordinances relating to business licenses and regulations (Carnivals Circuses and Other 
Exhibitions; Electrician’s Licenses; Gross Receipts Charge or Street Rental; Peddlers and 
Solicitors; Taxicabs, Buses and Other Vehicles for Hire; Horse Drawn Carriages and other 
Non- Motorized Vehicles for Hire; Sexually Oriented Businesses; and Alcoholic Beverages) 
shall apply in the Property. It is anticipated that the implementation of these activities can be 
effectively accommodated within the City’s current budget and staff appropriation. 
 
ELECTRIC SERVICE 

 
Existing Services: Bluebonnet Electric Cooperative 

 
Services to be Provided: Bluebonnet Electric will continue to provide electric utility service to 
all areas in which it is the authorized provider, pursuant to its authority granted by the State 
and/or the Public Utility Commission of Texas. 

 
Bluebonnet’s Electric CCN area is shown on attached Exhibit “F.” 
 
TRAFFIC ENGINEERING 

 
Existing Services: None 

 
Services to be Provided: The City of Bastrop’s Public Works Department will provide, after 
the effective date of annexation, any additional traffic control devices as may be deemed 
necessary by the City. 

 
Traffic engineering, upon development in the Property, shall comply with City of Bastrop 
Codes, regulations, and policies in effect at that time. It is anticipated that the implementation 
of these activities can be effectively accommodated within the City’s current budget and staff 
appropriation. 



 
 

City of Bastrop           Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan                            Page 8 of 11 

 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
All other applicable municipal services will be provided to the Property in accordance with the 
City of Bastrop’s established policies governing extension of municipal services to newly 
annexed and similarly situated areas. 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS, AVAILABILITY, AND LEVEL OF SERVICES 

 
The Property annexed in 2022 will be included with all other areas of the City for future 
planning for any new or expanded facilities, functions, and services to be funded by future 
capital improvements programs of the City. The priorities assigned by these plans are driven 
by a desire to maintain an equitable level of service to all areas of the City, with the same 
population density, land use, and topographical characteristics, and in accord with State and 
local laws. 

 
Nothing in this plan shall require that the City provide a uniform level or municipal service to 
each area of the City, including Property, if different characteristics of topography, land use, 
and population densities are sufficiently distinct to justify a different level of service by the 
City, or when other service providers areas of service and/or other existing contractual 
agreements provide for such service. 

 
AMENDMENTS 

 
The City Council may amend the Service Plan to conform to the changed conditions or 
subsequent occurrences pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code or accommodate 
significant changes in the population and density characteristics of the 2022 Annexation Area. 

 
USE OF PROPERTY 

 
In accordance with Texas Local Government Code Section 43.002, Continuation of Land Use, 
all legal uses of property in the 2022 Annexation Area shall be allowed by the City to continue 
in the manner in which the property was being used on May 23, 2003. 

 
CONFLICTS 

 
In the event that any provision of this Service Plan conflicts with any other plan, 
comprehensive plan, or program of the City of Bastrop, the provision contained in this Service 
Plan shall control. 
 
STAFFING 

 
Staffing of City services will be provided to the level necessary to provide equal services to all 
residents. 
 



 
 

City of Bastrop           Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan                            Page 9 of 11 

 
 
SERVICE LEVEL  
 
The City will provide the Property with a level of services, infrastructure, and infrastructure 
maintenance that is comparable to the level of services, infrastructure, and infrastructure 
maintenance available in other parts of the City with topography, land use, and population density 
similar to those reasonably contemplated or projected for the Property. 
 
AUTHORITY  
 
City and Owner represent that they have full power, authority and legal right to execute, deliver 
and perform their obligations pursuant to this Plan. Owner acknowledges that approval of the 
Annexation Case is within the sole jurisdiction of the City Council. Nothing in this Plan 
guarantees favorable decisions by the City Council. 
 
SEVERABILITY  
 
If any part, term, or provision of this Plan is held by the courts to be illegal, invalid, or otherwise 
unenforceable, such illegality, invalidity, or unenforceability will not affect the validity of any 
other part, term or provision, and the rights of the parties will be construed as if the part, term, or 
provision was never part of the Plan. 

 
GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE  
 
The parties to this Plan covenant and agree that in any litigation relating to this Plan, the terms 
and conditions of the Plan will be interpreted according to the laws of the State of Texas and 
construed in conformity with the provisions of Texas Local Government Code Chapter 43. Venue 
shall be located in Bastrop County, Texas. 
 
NO WAIVER  
 
The failure of either party to insist upon the performance of any term or provision of this Plan or 
to exercise any right granted hereunder shall not constitute a waiver of that party’s right to insist 
upon appropriate performance or to assert any such right on any future occasion. 
 
GOVERNMENTAL POWERS  
 
It is understood that by execution of this Plan, the City does not waive or surrender any of its 
governmental powers or immunities. 
 
COUNTERPARTS  
 
This Plan may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original and constitute one and the same instrument. 

 



 
 

City of Bastrop           Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan                            Page 10 of 11 

 
CAPTIONS  
 
The captions to the various clauses of this Plan are for informational purposes only and shall not 
alter the substance of the terms and conditions of this Plan. 
 
AGREEMENT BINDS AND BENEFITS SUCCESSORS AND RUNS WITH THE LAND  
 
This Plan is binding on and inures to the benefit of the parties, their successors, and assigns. The 
terms of this Plan constitute covenants running with the land comprising the Property, is binding 
on the Owner and the City, and is enforceable by any current or future owner of any portion of 
the Property. 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT  
 
This Plan constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior oral and 
written agreements between said parties. This Plan shall not be amended unless executed in 
writing by both parties. 

 
EXECUTED in multiple originals, and in full force and effect as of the Effective Date. 

 
CITY: 
City of Bastrop, Texas 
a Texas home-rule municipal corporation 

Attest: 
By:        By:      
Name: Ann Franklin      Name: Paul A. Hofmann 
Title: City Secretary      Title: City Manager 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF BASTROP § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2022, by 
Paul A. Hofmann, City Manager of the City of Bastrop, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 
 

By: _____________________________ 
 
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 
 

OWNER: 
Robert E. Duff Childrens’ Trust & J. 
Bradley Duff Childrens’ Trust 



 
 

City of Bastrop           Duff Development Tract 1--12.9ac 
Annexation Municipal Service Plan                            Page 11 of 11 

        
By:      

       Name: John B. Duff  
       Title: Representative 
 
State of Texas  § 
County of Bastrop § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of _______________, 20__, 
by _________, ___________ of City of Bastrop, a Texas Home-Rule municipality, on behalf of 
said municipality. 
 
By: _____________________________ 
 
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
State of Texas § 
County of ________ § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _____________, 20__, by 
____________________, __________________________ of [Name of individual signing, title 
(if any)] on behalf of said ____________________________ [insert name of company or 
individual where applicable]. 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 
Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 

 



NANCY BLAKEY SURVEY,    NOVEMBER 19, 2021
ABSTRACT NO. 98         PAGE 1 OF 2 
BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS

ZONING DESCRIPTION

BEING 12.95 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, SITUATED IN THE NANCY BLAKEY SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 98, OUT OF THE REMAINDER OF A CALLED 30.00 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO 
ERHARD LEGACY PARTNERS, LTD., A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT 
NUMBER 201502919, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.B.C.TX.) 
AND DESCRIBED AS 30.00 ACRES, IN VOLUME 640, PAGE 14, O.P.R.B.C.TX.; SAID 12.95 ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS;

BEGINNING AT A CONCRETE MONUMENT (GRID NORTHING: 10,018,765.44 U.S. SURVEY FEET, 
GRID EASTING: 3,240,377.69 U.S. SURVEY FEET) ON THE  SOUTH LINE OF A TRACT OF LAND 
OWNED BY LLYOD F. KETHA, DESCRIBED AS A 322.78 ACRE TRACT IN BASTROP COUNTY 
APPRAISAL DISTRICT RECORDS (NO RECORDING INFORMATION), FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER 
OF THIS TRACT AND THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 8, THE SETTLEMENT ON THE 
COLORADO, A SUBDIVISION OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 259-B, PLAT RECORDS OF 
BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS (P.R.B.C.TX.);

THENCE SOUTH 03 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, WITH THE EAST LINE OF THIS 
TRACT AND THE WEST LINE OF SAID SETTLEMENT ON THE COLORADO SUBDIVISION, A  
DISTANCE OF 997.77 FEET TO A CALCULATED POSITION FOR THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THIS 
TRACT;

THENCE WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF THIS TRACT AND OVER AND ACROSS THE REMAINDER OF 
SAID 30.00 ACRE TRACT THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES AND DISTANCES:

1) NORTH 89 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 343.04 FEET TO
A CALCULATED POSITION FOR AN ANGLE POINT, AND

2) SOUTH 88 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 12 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 247.87 FEET TO
A CALCULATED POSITION ON THE EAST LINE OF BURLESON CROSSING, A SUBDIVISION
OF RECORD IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 14A, P.R.B.C.TX., ALSO BEING THE EAST LINE OF
EDWARD BURLESON ROAD, FOR THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THIS TRACT;

Exhibit A



NANCY BLAKEY SURVEY,           NOVEMBER 19, 2021
ABSTRACT NO. 98         PAGE 2 OF 2 
BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS

THENCE WITH THE WEST LINE OF THIS TRACT, THE EAST LINE OF SAID BURLESON CROSSING 
SUBDIVISION, AND THE EAST LINE OF SAID EDWARD BURLESON ROAD THE FOLLOWING THREE 
(3) COURSES AND DISTANCES:

1) NORTH 02 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 44 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 884.40 FEET TO 
A 5/8-INCH IRON ROD WITH CAP STAMPED “LJA SURVEY” SET AT THE BEGINNING OF A 
CURVE TO THE RIGHT,

2) WITH SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH 
OF 39.23 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 89 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 31 SECONDS, AND A 
CHORD THAT BEARS NORTH 42 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 32 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE 
OF 35.33 FEET TO A 5/8-INCH IRON ROD WITH CAP STAMPED “LJA SURVEY” SET, AND

3) NORTH 02 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 68.91 FEET TO A 
5/8-INCH IRON ROD WITH CAP STAMPED “LJA SURVEY” SET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 
SAID KETHA 322.78 ACRE TRACT, FOR THE COMMON NORTH CORNER OF THIS TRACT 
AND SAID BURLESON CROSSING SUBDIVISION;

THENCE NORTH 87 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST, WITH THE NORTH LINE OF THIS 
TRACT AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID KETHA 322.78 ACRE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 537.08 FEET 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 12.95 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS.

BEARING BASIS:
ALL BEARINGS SHOWN ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, GRID 
NORTH, CENTRAL ZONE (4203), NAD83. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE SURFACE AND MAY BE 
CONVERTED TO GRID BY DIVIDING BY A SURFACE ADJUSTMENT FACTOR OF 0.99997. UNITS: 
U.S. SURVEY FEET.

_______________________________________
MATT OVERALL, RPLS # 6864
LJA SURVEYING, INC.
7500 RIALTO BLVD, BUILDING II, SUITE 100
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78735
TEXAS FIRM NO. 10194382
DATE: 11/19/2021

MATT OVERALL

6864



7/16/2021

File: Mapcheck_12.95AC.ndpScale: 1 inch= 113 feet
Tract 1: 12.9507 Acres, Closure: n00.0000e 0.00 ft. (1/999999), Perimeter=3112 ft.

01 s03.5300e 991.77

02 n89.5658w 343.04

03 s88.0212w 247.87

04 n02.1344w 884.40

05 Rt, r=25.00, delta=089.5431, arc=39.23, chord=n42.4332e 35.33

06 n02.1529w 68.91

07 n87.5726e 537.08

s
0
3
°
5
3
'0
0
"e

9
9
1
. 7
7

n89°56'58"w

343.04

s88°02'12"w

247.87

n
0
2
°
1
3
' 4
4
"w

8
8
4
. 4
0

5

n
0
2
°
1
5
' 2
9
"w

6
8
.9
1

n87°57'26"e

537.08



W SH 71 FR

W SH 71 RP

W SH 71 FR
W SH 71 FR

¬«71

¬«304

¬«71
W SH 71 FR

BLAKEY LN

KATY B LN

SETTLEM
ENT DR

PATTO
N

 LN

ED
W

AR
D

 B
U

R
LE

SO
N

 L
N

BLAIR AVE

JESSICA PL

CHARLES BLVD

ANNIKA WAY

PATTO
N

 C
V

N
 LO

R
I C

IR

BILLS CIR

CAYLOR CV

W SH 71 FR

Exhibit B 
Location Map

1 inch = 500 feet
0 250 500125

Feet

Date: 5/10/2022
The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   ³

Topographic Map

jbills
Polygonal Line



W SH 71 FR

W SH 71 RP

W SH 71 FR
W SH 71 FR

¬«71

¬«304

¬«71
W SH 71 FR

BLAKEY LN

KATY B LN

SETTLEM
ENT DR

PATTO
N

 LN

ED
W

AR
D

 B
U

R
LE

SO
N

 L
N

BLAIR AVE

JESSICA PL

CHARLES BLVD

ANNIKA WAY

PATTO
N

 C
V

N
 LO

R
I C

IR

BILLS CIR

CAYLOR CV

W SH 71 FR

Exhibit C 
Fire Service Areas

1 inch = 500 feet
0 250 500125

Feet

Date: 5/10/2022
The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   ³

Emergency Service ZonesLegend
BCESD 2

BCESD 1

City of Bastrop Fire

jbills
Polygonal Line



W SH 71 FR

W SH 71 RP

W SH 71 FR
W SH 71 FR

¬«71

¬«304

¬«71
W SH 71 FR

BLAKEY LN

KATY B LN

SETTLEM
ENT DR

PATTO
N

 LN

ED
W

AR
D

 B
U

R
LE

SO
N

 L
N

BLAIR AVE

JESSICA PL

CHARLES BLVD

ANNIKA WAY

PATTO
N

 C
V

N
 LO

R
I C

IR

BILLS CIR

CAYLOR CV

W SH 71 FR

AQUA WSC

CITY OF BASTROP

Exhibit E 
Water CCN Map

1 inch = 500 feet
0 250 500125

Feet

Date: 5/10/2022
The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   ³

Water CCNLegend
Water CCN

AQUA WSC
CITY OF BASTROP

jbills
Polygonal Line



W SH 71 FR

W SH 71 RP

W SH 71 FR
W SH 71 FR

¬«71

¬«304

¬«71
W SH 71 FR

BLAKEY LN

KATY B LN

SETTLEM
ENT DR

PATTO
N

 LN

ED
W

AR
D

 B
U

R
LE

SO
N

 L
N

BLAIR AVE

JESSICA PL

CHARLES BLVD

ANNIKA WAY

PATTO
N

 C
V

N
 LO

R
I C

IR

BILLS CIR

CAYLOR CV

W SH 71 FR

Exhibit D 
Wastewater CCN Map

1 inch = 500 feet
0 250 500125

Feet

Date: 5/10/2022
The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   ³

Wastewater CCNLegend
Wastewater CCN

CITY OF BASTROP

jbills
Polygonal Line



W SH 71 FR

W SH 71 RP

W SH 71 FR
W SH 71 FR

¬«71

¬«304

W SH 71 FR

BLAKEY LN

KATY B LN

SETTLEM
ENT DR

PATTO
N

 LN

ED
W

AR
D

 B
U

R
LE

SO
N

 L
N

BLAIR AVE

JESSICA PL

CHARLES BLVD

ANNIKA WAY

BILLS CIR

CAYLOR CV

W SH 71 FR

Exhibit F 
Electric CCN Map

1 inch = 500 feet
0 250 500125

Feet

Date: 5/10/2022
The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   ³

Electric Service Territory
Legend

Electric Bluebonnet

jbills
Polygonal Line



W SH 71 FR

SETTLEM
ENT DR

BLAKEY LN

ED
W

AR
D

 B
U

R
LE

SO
N

 L
N

TRAIL DRIVE CIR

WAGON WHEEL CIR

Attachment 1
Location Map

¬«304

¬«71
¬«150

FM
 9

69

0 200 400100

Feet

Date: 5/11/2022
The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     ³

Proposed Annexation 
Burleson Crossing EastLegend

Annexation Proposed

Existing City Limit



TALLEY WILLIAMS 
512.404.2234 

TWilliams@mwswtexas.com 

   221 West 6th Street, Suite 1300, Austin, TX 78701 • 512.404.2200 • fax 512.404.2244 • www.mwswtexas.com 

November 4, 2021 
Via Electronic Delivery 
City of Bastrop 
Planning Department 
1311 Chestnut Street 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 

Re: Proposed Rezoning of Approximately 19.837 Acres of Land Within the City of Bastrop 
(the “City”) generally Located East of Edward Burleson Lane and North of State Highway 71 (the 
“Property”). 

On behalf of, and as the designated agents of, the owner of the Property, this letter serves 
as the formal request for a Zoning Concept Scheme (Rezoning) change for the Property. The 
Property is designated as BCAD ID 77734 and consists of a portion along State Highway 71 that 
is currently designated as a P5 (Core) Place Type Zoning District, with the remainder of the 
Property located in City’s ETJ and therefore not annexed or zoned.  

We are planning a high-quality commercial expansion of the incredibly successful Burleson 
Crossing retail development on the west side of Edward Burleson Lane (the “Project”). In order to 
expand the commercial development of Burleson Crossing, which would include over 100,000 
square feet of additional retail development that will contribute to the City’s ad valorem and sales 
tax, it is necessary to zone the unzoned portion of the Property to Place Type Zoning District.  

The proposed project will be an expansion of the previously constructed Burleson Crossing 
development, which was constructed (i) pursuant to a Ch. 380 Agreement that contained specific 
design guidelines and parameters and (ii) prior to the B3 Code’s enactment. Due to the previously 
existing parking layout, infrastructure design, and traffic patterns, using the proposed P5 (Core) 
Place Type will necessitate some warrants that will be resolved with staff during the annexation 
and zoning approval process.  

For the above listed reasons, we believe that the P5 (Core) Place Type (with necessary warrants) 
for the Property allows for proper development of the area and promotes healthful and responsible 
development within the City that will continue to provide employment for Bastrop residents, and 

Attachment 2

mailto:TWilliams@mwswtexas.com


 
TALLEY WILLIAMS 

512.404.2234 
TWilliams@mwswtexas.com 

 
 

 
  

             221 West 6th Street, Suite 1300, Austin, TX 78701 • 512.404.2200 • fax 512.404.2244 • www.mwswtexas.com 

tax revenue for the City.  
 
In addition, pursuant to that certain Chapter 43 Texas Local Government Code Development 
Agreement dated October 18, 2011 by and between the City and Robert E. Duff, the submittal of 
the zoning application for the Project constitutes a petition for voluntary annexation by the owner 
of the Property.  
 
We look forward to working with you on this project.  
 

Sincerely, 
 

Talley J. Williams  
Talley Williams 
Partner 
 

cc: Steve Durhman  

mailto:TWilliams@mwswtexas.com






Section 3. The Owner acknowledges that if any plat or related development document 

is filed in violation of this Agreement, or if the Owner commences development of the 

Property, or any portion thereof, in violation of this Agreement, then in addition to the 

City's other remedies, such act will constitute a petition for voluntary annexation by the 

Owner, and the Property will be subject to annexation at the discretion of the City 

Council. The Owner agrees that such annexation shall be voluntary and the Owner 

hereby consents to such annexation as though a petition for such annexation had been 

tendered to the City by the Owner. 

If annexation proceedings begin pursuant to this Section, the Owner acknowledges that 

this Agreement serves as an exception to Local Government Code Section 43.052, 

requiring a municipality to use certain statutory procedures under an annexation plan. 

Furthermore, the Owner hereby waives any and all vested rights and claims that they 

may have under Section 43.002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local Government 

Code that would otherwise exist by virtue of any actions Owner has taken in violation of 

Section 2 herein. 

Section 4. Pursuant to Sections 43.035(b)(1)(8) of the Texas Local Government Code, 

the City is authorized to enforce all of the City's regulations and planning authority that 

do not materially interfere with the Owner's use of the property for agriculture, wildlife 

management, or timber, in the same manner the regulations are enforced within the 

City's boundaries. The City states and specifically reserves its authority pursuant to 

Chapter 251 of the Texas Local Government Code to exercise eminent domain over 

property that is subject to a Chapter 43 and/or a Chapter 212 development agreement. 

Section 5. The term of this Agreement (the "Term") is forty-five (45) years from the date 

that the City Manager's signature to this Agreement is acknowledged by a public notary, 

which shall occur after the Agreement is fully executed by all Owners of the Property. 

The Owner, and all of the Owner's heirs, successors and assigns shall be deemed to 

have filed a petition for voluntary annexation before the end of the Term, for annexation 

of the Property to be completed on or after the end of the Term. Prior to the end of the 

Term, the City may commence the voluntary annexation of the Property. In connection 

with annexation pursuant to this section, the Owner hereby waives any vested rights 

iUthey may have under Section 43.002(a)(2) and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local 

Government Code that would otherwise exist by virtue of any plat or construction any of 

the Owners may initiate during the time between the expiration of this Agreement and 

the institution of annexation proceedings by the City. 

3 











ADDENDUM 

TO A 

CHAPTER43TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN R. E. DUFF AND THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 

This First Addendum to a previously executed Development Agreement ("Addendum") 

is entered into pursuant to Section 43.035 and Section 212.172 of the Texas Local 

Government Code, by and between the City of Bastrop, Texas (the "City") and Robert 

E. Duff, the undersigned property owner(s) (the "Owner"). The term "Owner" includes

all owners of the Property, and Owner's heirs, assigns and successors in interest, as

noted herein. The Owner and the City are referred to jointly herein as the "Parties."

WHEREAS, the Owner and the City have previously executed and entered into a 

Development Agreement ("Agreement") related to a ±12.911 acre parcel of real 

property (the "Property") located in Bastrop County, Texas, which is more particularly 

described on Exhibit "A" to the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner and the City mutually desire to enter into this Addendum, for the 

purpose of modifying the Agreement, as set forth herein below, to reflect a subsequently 

agreed upon provision, and 

WHEREAS, the Owner and the City acknowledge that this Addendum is binding upon 

the Owner and the City and their respective successors and assigns for the term of the 

Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, upon execution by all Parties, this Addendum is to be appended to the 

Agreement, which is to be recorded by the City of Bastrop, Texas, in the Real Property 

Records of Bastrop County, Texas. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS 

CONTAINED HEREIN, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Part 1. The following provision shall be added to Section 1 of the Agreement: 

"The City agrees that if a portion of the Property is sold or otherwise conveyed 

and/or annexed, the balance of this Property shall remain subject to this Development 

Agreement. Further, such partial sale or conveyance and/or resulting annexation shall 

not trigger the annexation of the entire remaining Property, but will trigger only 

annexation of the portion sold and/or conveyed by Owner." 

1 



Part 2. All other provision of the Agreement shall remain as stated in the Agreement, 
and are not otherwise modified, altered, or superseded by this Addendum. In the event 
of a conflict, the Agreement shall control. 

Part 3. This Addendum may be separately executed in individual counterparts and, 
upon execution, shall constitute one and same instrument. 

Part 4. This Addendum shall survive in the same manner as the Agreement, as set 
forth therein. 

Printed Name: Robert E. Duff 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BASTROP § 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _ _____.)_Q-=--____ day of 
October, 2011, by Robert E. Duff, Owner. 

�,,,1111,,,, 

.:i"'
�

��.Y�f.e� THERESA JOANN DORST 1 

f i '{j Notary Public, State of Texas
�:.; •• \� My Commission Expires

1 � �,,,, ... ,1,,� May 31, 2015 

My Commission Expires On: 

Notary Public, State of Texas 

2 





 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  May 24, 2022           AGENDA ITEM: 9B 
 
TITLE:  

Hold public hearing and consider action on the first reading of Ordinance 2022-15 of the City 
Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas, approving the Burleson Crossing East Zoning Concept 
Scheme, changing the zoning for 12.95 acres out of the Nancy Blakey Survey Abstract 98, from 
P2 Rural to P5 Core and establishing a plan on 19.81 acres, located east of Edward Burleson 
Land and north of State Highway 71, within the city limits of the City of Bastrop, as shown in 
Exhibit A, consideration of warrants and providing for findings of fact, adoption, repealer, 
severability and enforcement, proper notice and meeting; and establishing an effective date and 
move to include on the June 14, 2022 Consent Agenda for the second reading.   
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jennifer C. Bills, Director of Planning & Development 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The applicant has submitted an application for a Zoning Concept Scheme for Burleson Crossing 
East (Exhibit A).  The development is proposed to be Place Type 5 - Core zoning for a retail 
shopping center.  The attached Background Memo contains staff analysis. 
 
Warrants 
With the ZCS request, the applicant has submitted 28 requests that propose some alternative 
standards, or request to not follow the adopted code.  They cover four main requirements of the 
P5 form: Block Grid Requirements, Driveways, Building & Parking Placement, and Streets, 
Sidewalks and Civic Space. 
 
The applicant has provided additional information since the Planning & Zoning Commission that 
is included in this packet (Attachment 12) and will be available at City Council for presentation 
by the applicant. 
 
PLANNING  & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on March 31, 2022.  The Commission 
voted 5-2 to recommend denial of the Zoning Concept Scheme.  A vote of 4 out of 5 City Council 
members will be required to approve the zoning request. 
 
DIRECTOR RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold public hearing and consider action to approve, with conditions the first reading of Ordinance 
2022-14 as presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Background Memo 

• Ordinance 2022-14 

• Exhibit A: Zoning Concept Scheme 

• Attachment 1: Location Map 

• Attachment 2: Applicant’s Project Description Letter 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

• Attachment 3: Applicant’s Warrant Requests and Responses with Planning Determination 

• Attachment 4: Applicant’s Street, Driveway, and Sidewalk Layout 

• Attachment 5: Applicant State Effect of 720’ Farm Lot Grid 

• Attachment 6: Required Street Grid Right-of-Way 

• Attachment 7: Preliminary Traffic Impact  

• Attachment 8: Property Owner Notice & Responses 

• Attachment 9: Zoning Map 

• Attachment 10: Future Land Use Map 

• Attachment 11:  Letter from Applicant to Delay action to May 24, 2022 meeting 

• Attachment 12:  Additional Information from Applicant After March 31, 2022 P&Z Meeting 



TO:  Paul A. Hofmann, City Manager    

From:  Jennifer C. Bills, Director of Planning & Development 

Date:  May 24, 2022 

Subject:  Burleson Crossing East Zoning Concept Scheme 

=========================================================================================== 

ITEM DETAILS: 
Site Address: Northeast corner of State Highway 71 and Edward Burleson Drive 

(Attachment 1) 
Total Acreage: 19.81 acres 
Acreage Rezoned 12.95 acres 
Legal Description: 19.81 acres out of the Nancy Blakey Survey 
  
Property Owner: Erhard Legacy Partners LTD 
Agent Contact: Kevin Pierce/Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart, & Williams 
  
Existing Use: Vacant/Undeveloped 
Existing Zoning: P5 Core (existing inside city limits) / P2 Rural (upon annexation) 

(Attachment 9) 
Proposed Zoning: P5 Core 
Character District: Cattleman’s 
Future Land Use: General Commercial (Attachment 10) 
Site Address: Northeast corner of State Highway 71 and Edward Burleson Drive 

(Attachment 1) 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The applicant has submitted an application for a Zoning Concept Scheme for Burleson Crossing East (Exhibit A).  
The development is proposed to be all Place Type 5 – Core zoning for commercial uses such as retail and 
restaurant.  
 
Place Type 5 – Core is defined in the code as:  
 

“Higher density mixture of Building Types that accommodate commercial, retail, offices, row houses, and 
apartments. It has a tight network of Streets, with wide sidewalks, steady Street Tree plantings, and 
buildings set close to the sidewalks. P5 is a highly walkable area. A continuous line of buildings is critical 
to define the Public Frontage and allow for visible activity along the Street edge.” 

 
The Future Land Use Plan shows this area as General Commercial:   
 

“The General Commercial character area supports local and regional businesses that rely on heavy traffic  
and the visibility that is associated with being located near major roadways. General Commercial 
developments typically involve varying development intensities, from smaller locally owned shops to big 
box retailers. These areas are predominantly auto-oriented, with large accessory parking areas. While 
General Commercial development will continue to be auto-oriented, improved street-side and parking 
lot landscaping, buffers, appropriately designed and scaled signage, bicycle and pedestrian 



accommodations, higher quality building materials, and access management techniques (e.g., limited 
access points and inter-parcel connectivity) will help to improve overall development quality and 
appearance. 

 
The proposed site is anchored by one large building with several pad sites along SH 71.  In P5 Core, the block 
perimeter maximum is 1,320 feet. This is the distance around one building block, which is a block length of 330 
feet. For a complete farm lot grid, the perimeter is 2,880 feet which is a lot length of 720 feet. The zoning concept 
scheme proposes the extension of Blakey Lane and Wagon Wheel Drive, which connect Blakey to Settlement 
Drive, and Wagon Wheel to Edward Burleson Drive, creating a 720-foot block break running north/south.  To 
complete the 720-farm lot going east, the plan proposes to use a private driveway for the required 720’ block 
break east of Edward Burleson Drive. Using the private drive, the block perimeters are 2,590 feet (north) and 2,855 
feet (south).  Using the public street grid, the perimeters are 2,940 feet and 4,015 feet.  Staff recommends that 
the eastern private drive be dedicated as a public street, which will meet the farm lot grid. See diagram below.  
  

 
 
For P5, the development is required to provide public streets every 330 feet to create the building block grid.  
The applicant has three drive aisles in the southern farm lot that somewhat mimic the building blocks.  There 
are some pedestrian walkways provided, but they are not well defined in relation to the drive aisles and do not 
show street trees. 

Public:  approx. 
2,940 feet 

Public:  approx. 4,015 
feet 

Private East:  approx. 
2,590 feet 

Private East:  approx. 
2,855 feet 

North 



 
Zoning Concept Schemes also take into account the variety of place type zoning districts in a pedestrian shed. 
Changing the zoning to P5 increases the area to 65.74%, which provides more than the recommended 25% 
allocation of P5 zoning in this pedestrian shed.  However, this does meet the Future Land Use Plan General 
Commercial Character Area. The applicant is requesting that the 10% Civic Space be waived but has not provided 
a justification or alternative. 
 
Landscape plans for the overall style and Street Type compliance are also considered.  Page 8 of the proposed 
ZCS conceptually addresses the requirements.  With the landscape plan, the frontage along SH 71 and all local 
streets should be landscaped with Street Trees and sidewalks.  The east driveway should be publicly dedicated 
as a street and provide the required sidewalks and street trees. Compliance with this regulation is verified upon 
review of the Public Improvement Plans and Site Development Plans. 
 
The applicant’s proposal contains several deviations from the B³ Code requirements.  The applicant provided 
28 Warrant Requests, which describe their development issues, but do not provide appropriate justification 
based on the B³ Code Intents.  This should include information on how a warrant would provide 1) Fiscal 
sustainability, 2) Geographic Sensitivity, and 3) Perpetuate Authentic Bastrop.   
 
Warrant Request Summary (Attachment 3 for more detail): 

 Applicant Request/Concern Staff Analysis 
Block Grid Requirements 

B³ Code   
5.2.002(b) Max block 
perimeter length of 
1,320 ft 

Use private drives for 330’ and 
eastern 720’ grid. 

Has not met intents.  Must meet 720’ block grid.  
Would support an internal private block 
perimeter of 1,320 feet, with clearly established 
private drive aisles, with 6-foot pedestrian 
walkways on one side of the drive aisles, with 
lighting and street trees. 

5.2.002(c) 330' x 330' 
block size 

Use private drives for 330’ 

7.4.002 (a) 330' max 
block length, 1,320' max 
block perimeter 
 

Use private drives for 330’ and 
eastern 720’ grid 

5.2.002(d) 20' wide 
midblock pedestrian 
walkway for blocks that 
exceed (b) 
and (c) 

Eliminate 20’ wide pedestrian 
walkway on larger than 330’ blocks 

Has not met intents.  Would support an internal 
private block perimeter of 1,320 feet, with clearly 
established private drive aisles, with 6-foot 
pedestrian walkways on one side of the drive 
aisles, with lighting and street trees. 

7.4.002(b) 20' 
Pedestrian Way if block 
length exceeds 330' 

Allow 30' wide private drives without 
street trees and sidewalks, to be 
utilized as boundary of blocks rather 
than public streets 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   



   
Driveways 

6.3.005(d) (1) Requires 
all vehicular access to be 
taken from alleys, if 
alleys are provided 

Private drives would be considered 
alleys, prohibiting access from public 
streets. 

Private drive aisle provided at the 330-foot block 
level would be considered in lieu 
of the publicly dedicated street and not an alley. 
Warrant not needed. 

6.3.005(d) (3) For Corner 
Lots, driveways must be 
located in the Secondary 
Frontage 

Take access from primary and 
secondary frontages. Wants 
determination at zoning. 

Denied. Reviewed at Site Development Plan and 
traffic should take access off Secondary 
Frontages based on the 720' grid. 

6.3.005(d) (4) Driveways 
shall be located as far as 
practical from adjacent 
public streets 

This is an ambiguous statement and 
requirement.  Wants warrant to be 
determined with Zoning in order to 
define driveway requirements so as to 
market major large retailers 

Denied at this time. Will determine spacing at Site 
Development Plan. 

6.3.005 (d) (5) Mid‐block 
lots with more than 40' 
of frontage are only 
allowed 
one driveway, with a 
max width of 24' for two‐
way drives 

Driveway access to public streets shall 
meet 200' spacing between 
centerlines. Wants warrant to be 
determined with Zoning in order to 
define driveway requirements so as to 
market major large retailers 

Denied at this time. Will determine total number 
of driveways at Site Development Plan but are 
willing to entertain multiple driveways that meet 
spacing 
requirements. 6.3.005 (d) (6) For lots with 

more than 80' of 
frontage, driveway 
spacing shall 
be 300' 
   

Building & Parking Placement 
6.3.003(a)(3) Building 
façade to be located 
within 30' of street 
corner and parking 
prohibited in First Layer 

Cannot meet because they are a retail 
shopping center with parking and 
loading areas.  Eliminate requirement 
and first layer not provided.  Wants 
determination at zoning. 

Denied at this time. This warrant review is 
appropriate at the time of Site Development 
Plan. 

6.3.006(b) (5) Requires 
parking to be located in 
the 2nd or 3rd Layer 

Allow parking in any Layer (eliminate 
layers).  Wants warrant to be 
determined with Zoning to ensure that 
parking meets retailer requirements, 
and an adequate number of spaces 
can be provided. 

Has not met intents.  More detail on pedestrian 
access to each building and specific architectural 
features that will be provided in lieu of providing 
interaction between the public and private 
realms is needed that will be determined at SDP. 

6.5.003 ‐ D Limits 
Parking to Layer 3 

B³ Technical Manual 
Section 2.1.006(a) - 
Requires parking and 
drive aisles to be 
located within Layer 2 or 
3 

Parking in any Layer.  Major Retailers 
expect their customers to be able to 
park in front of the front of the 
building for convenience, especially 
for customers with physical 
challenges 

Has not met intents. All of the building shown 
(except for lot 3) show at least one side with no 
parking between the building and the street 
ROW.  Applicant has not established a first layer 
anywhere that meets code. 



6.3.006(b) (8)  Parking to 
be screened either by 
building or other 
screening material 
 

Limit screening to be required from 
Wagon Wheel, Edward Burleson, and 
SH 71, and to include landscaping to a 
height of three feet 

Partially Approved. Screening will be provided 
from all public streets (including East Road) at a 
height 
of 3 feet. 

6.3.006(b) (9)  Prohibits 
parking to be located 
within the rear setback 

Limit this requirement to be from 
eastern property line along adjacent 
properties only 

Denied at this time. Setbacks will be determined 
by the ICC requirements (no zoning rear setback, 
just layers). 

6.3.008(d) Max first floor 
story of a Commercial 
building cannot exceed 
25' 
from floor to ceiling 

Allow ceiling heights to exceed 25' Has not met intents. Willing to discuss alternative 
based on architectural elevations and features 
that meet the intent to be human scale during the 
site development plan process. 

6.3.009(b) Building 
frontage façade must be 
parallel to the ROW 
Frontage 
Line 

Eliminate requirement.  Wants 
warrant to be determined with Zoning 
to ensure that buildings facing Wagon 
Wheel do not have to meet this 
requirement. 

Has not met intents. Not needed. All buildings 
shown can be parallel to a public street (with East 
Road) that is not Wagon Wheel. 

6.3.009(d)  First floor of 
Commercial buildings 
shall have 70% minimum 
glazing 

Limit glazing to 70% of the building 
front for small multi‐tenant buildings, 
25% of the building front for larger 
retail buildings, an no glazing would 
be required for free‐standing single 
use buildings such as restaurants and 
banks. 
The building fronts shall be either the 
primary side of the building facing a 
public street, or the side of the 
building facing the parking area 
servicing that building, whichever 
front the tenant / user has the 
storefront entrance. Wants warrant to 
be determined with the Zoning as the 
project cannot be marketed to 
potential retailers without a clear 
understanding of what glazing is 
required. 

Has not met intents. This warrant cannot be 
considered until the Site Development Plan 
review with actual building elevations provided. 

6.5.003 ‐ A 80% of the 
frontage width, 
requires the building to 
be located between 2'‐
15' from the 
ROW / Frontage 

Allow façade to frontage width ratio 
to be reduced to 60% and measured 
cumulatively for entire block, not 
individual lots. Remove building 
placement requirement relative to 
ROW. Wants warrant to be 
determined with Zoning in order to 
ensure that parking meets retailer 
requirements, and an adequate 
number of spaces can 

Has not met intents. Willing to discuss a 
reduction to 60% during Site Development Plan. 



be provided. Shopping Center cannot 
be planned or marketed otherwise 

 

Street, Sidewalks, and Civic Space 
7.3.003 ‐ Reg Comm 
Street Cross-section 16' 
wide sidewalks along 
both sides of road, trees 
every 30' on 
center both sides of road 

Propose 10' wide sidewalks along one 
side of Wagon Wheel, and along the 
project side of Edward Burleson and 
SH 71. Allow more variation in tree 
spacing as determined by Landscape 
Architect, 

Partially Approved. A 10' sidewalk will also be 
required along the 720' grid street 
to the east. 

B³ Tech Manual 
3.2.008(c) 

P5 street sidewalks to be min. 10' 
wide and located wholly within the 
street ROW. 

Approved. 

7.3.003 ‐ Connector 
Street Trees every 30' on 
center along both sides 
of the road 

Allow more variation in tree spacing 
as determined by Landscape 
Architect, to be consistent and similar 
to the requirements established in the 
Burleson Crossing Chapter 380 
Agreement 

Denied at this time. This warrant review is 
appropriate at the time of Public Improvement 
Plan. Staff would be amenable to changing the 
spacing requirement, but the number of trees 
required will still be determined on a 30 
foot spacing for the length of the street. 
 

B³ Tech Manual 
3.2.013(a)(1) Street 
trees shall be 4" caliper 
and spaced every 30' on 
center 

Allow more variation in tree spacing 
and tree size with 2" minimum, as 
determined by Landscape Architect 

Per Section 7.3.014 of the B³ Code, 2-inch trees 
are acceptable as long as they are a 
minimum height of 10 feet.  Spacing will be 
reviewed during Public Improvement Plans. 

B³ Tech Manual 
3.2.013(a)(4) Provide 
plants: 
A. With healthy, normal 
root systems. 
B. That have been grown 
for at least 2 years under 
climatic conditions 
similar to those where 
scheduled for planting. 
C. That have been grown 
in properly spaced 
blocks. 
D. That have been 
transplanted or root 
pruned at least twice, 
and at least once in the 
past three years. 
E. That have a habit of 
growth normal for the 
species. 

Requires plant material to meet very 
strict nursery / propagation 
Standards. Required standards 
further limits the availability of 
procuring a widely varying and diverse 
mix of plant material and species.  
Allow plants to be procured from any 
competent wholesale nursery 
supplier.   

Denied. Can be reviewed at Site Development 
Plan review 



F. With symmetrical 
growth typical for the 
variety and species. 
Match plants for 
symmetry of a grouping 
where required.  
 
7.3.013(d)(1) Requires 
an additional 7' of ROW 
on each side of a road if 
P5 is located on both 
sides of the road 

Propose no additional ROW for 
Wagon Wheel. Edward Burleson was 
platted with a 10' ROW Reserve on the 
opposite side of the street. Any 
additional ROW required along the 
project side of Burleson shall be 
determined and 
commensurate with any proposed 
improvements to Burleson 

Meets the intent and is consistent with the 
existing ROWs. The 55.5-foot ROW is sufficient 
for the extension of Wagon Wheel, which is a 60' 
ROW. 

Article 7.5 – 10% Civic 
Space 

Eliminate Civic Space Have not met intent.  Meet Civic space 
requirement with private open space, such as 
open green lawns, bus stop plazas along the 
streets, outdoor seating and benches 

B³ Technical Manual 
3.2.001(b) Requires 
pedestrian shed to have 
certain place type 
percentages 

Allow P5 to exceed the maximum 
pedestrian shed requirement 

Partially Approved, if providing private civic 
space. 

To support the warrant requests to not provide the Farm Lot grid, the applicant has provided an exhibit to 
demonstrate that with his current layout of building, providing the eastern road as a public street would cause 
the layout to lose one building and part of another. 

Drainage 
A Zoning Concept Scheme must be accompanied by a Conceptual Drainage Plan to ensure that the proposed 
development is feasible. A Conceptual Drainage Plan has been reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. The 
site includes one central location for detention.  The maximum impervious cover allowed in Place Type 5 is 80%.  

Annexation 
The north 12.95 acres is currently in a Development Agreement approved in 2011.  The property owner is 
required to annex the property into the city limits prior to development.  The annexation of the property has 
been requested.  The property will be annexed as P2 Rural. City Council will consider and approve the 
annexation prior to considering the rezoning from P2 to P5. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
A notice was placed in the Austin American Statesman on May 6, 2022 Property owner notifications were sent to 
11 adjacent property owners on March 12, 2022 and May 11, 2022 (Attachment 8). At the time of this report, two 
written responses have been received in favor, one from the property owner, one from an adjacent owner.  One 
speaker was in favor at the P&Z meeting. 
 
 
 



POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Texas Local Government Code 
Sec. 211.006. PROCEDURES GOVERNING ADOPTION OF ZONING REGULATIONS AND DISTRICT BOUNDARIES. (a) 
The governing body of a municipality wishing to exercise the authority relating to zoning regulations and zoning 
district boundaries shall establish procedures for adopting and enforcing the regulations and boundaries. A 
regulation or boundary is not effective until after a public hearing on the matter at which parties in interest and 
citizens have an opportunity to be heard. Before the 15th day before the date of the hearing, notice of the time 
and place of the hearing must be published in an official newspaper or a newspaper of general circulation in the 
municipality. 

Notice was published in the Austin American Statesman and notice was sent to property owners within 200 feet of 
the property boundary. 

(b)  In addition to the notice required by Subsection (a), a general-law municipality that does not have a zoning 
commission shall give notice of a proposed change in a zoning classification to each property owner who would 
be entitled to notice under Section 211.007(c) if the municipality had a zoning commission.  That notice must be 
given in the same manner as required for notice to property owners under Section 211.007(c).  The governing 
body may not adopt the proposed change until after the 30th day after the date the notice required by this 
subsection is given. 

N/A. Bastrop is not a general-law municipality. 

(c)  If the governing body of a home-rule municipality conducts a hearing under Subsection (a), the governing body 
may, by a two-thirds vote, prescribe the type of notice to be given of the time and place of the public hearing.  
Notice requirements prescribed under this subsection are in addition to the publication of notice required by 
Subsection (a). 

Notice of the meeting was posted at least 72 hours in advance. 

(d)  If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed 
change must receive, in order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the 
governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 percent of either: 

(1)  the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or 

(2)  the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed change and 
extending 200 feet from that area. 

(e)  In computing the percentage of land area under Subsection (d), the area of streets and alleys shall be included. 

At the time of this report, no protest has been received. If a valid protest is received, a three-fourths vote of the 
City Council members would be required to approve the rezoning request.  

(f)  The governing body by ordinance may provide that the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all its 
members is required to overrule a recommendation of the municipality's zoning commission that a proposed 
change to a regulation or boundary be denied. 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=211.007
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=211.007


If the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial of the zoning request, the City Council must have a 
minimum vote of 4 out of 5 members to approve the zoning request. 

At least 5 members of the Planning & Zoning Commission must vote to make an official recommendation to the 
City Council.  Failure to reach five vote means no official recommendation can be forwarded, but this does not 
impact the City Council’s vote requirement to approve or deny the request. 

The Planning & Zoning Commission voted to recommend denial by a vote of 5-2. A three-fourths vote of City Council 
(4 out of 5 members) is required to approve the zoning request. 
 
Compliance with 2036 Comprehensive Plan: 

Future Land Use Plan – The General Commercial character area supports local and regional businesses that 
rely on heavy traffic volumes and the visibility that is associated with being located near major roadways. 
General Commercial developments typically involve varying development intensities, from smaller locally 
owned shops to big box retailers. These areas are predominantly auto-oriented, with large accessory parking 
areas. While General Commercial development will continue to be auto-oriented, improved street-side and 
parking lot landscaping, buffers, appropriately designed and scaled signage, bicycle and pedestrian 
accommodations, higher quality building materials, and access management techniques (e.g., limited access 
points and inter-parcel connectivity) will help to improve overall development quality and appearance. 
 

•  In some instances, a general commercial development may be proposed adjacent to or overlaying a 
future thoroughfare identified by the Major Thoroughfare Plan; but, the City is not in a position to 
reserve or acquire the street right-of-way. Where applicable, require that the site plan align buildings 
and internal driveways so that thoroughfare connections can be made in the future, and without 
obstructing pedestrian access between parking areas and buildings. 

o The east drive aisle should be publicly dedicated. Internally, the development’s driveways 
should include pedestrian improvements to mimic the 330-foot building block grid and provide 
pedestrian access. 
 

• Manage vehicular access by limiting the number and location of curb cuts, requiring cross-access 
easements (particularly for out-parcels) and providing minimum driveway throat lengths for motor 
vehicle queuing.  

o With the installation of the new public streets, this will minimize curb cuts onto the main 
arterials.  

 
• For new general commercial development, include improved standards for building form and 

architecture such as minimum roof line articulation, prohibitions against large expanses of blank walls, 
screened utilities, etc. 

o The buildings throughout the development should provide the required encroachments on the 
primary and secondary facades. 
 

• Require planned general commercial and out-parcels to be arranged in a manner so that buildings are 
oriented toward and frame the street.  

o The buildings should be oriented to the public streets. In lieu of this, the internal drive aisles 
should be designed to mimic the street cross sections with parallel parking and sidewalks, and 
the front of the buildings oriented towards these aisles. 
 



• Increase minimum landscaping standards (i.e., large tree, small trees or shrubs, and ground covers) in 
required yards and parking lots. Require or incentivize native or xeriscape (i.e., low water) landscaping 
and / or the use of low impact development (LID) best practices to offset storm water management 
requirements. 

o The proposed ZCS does not provide street trees or landscaping along State Highway 71.  This 
should be included as well as trees along the internal drive aisles. 
 

• Do not require minimum lot sizes as long as all other minimum requirements (e.g., parking, 
landscaping, setbacks, etc.) can be met without the need for a variance. 

o The B³ Code does not have minimum lot sizes or parking minimums. 
 

• Construct sidewalks along all public and private rights-of-way and include designated and safe 
sidewalk connections to the main entrance of the building. 

o The ZCS should include well established internal drive aisles, in addition to the public 720-foot 
farm lot grid and provide the required sidewalks. 

 
Compliance with Bastrop Building Block (B³) Code: 
B³ CODE INTENT (See Executive Summary) 
The code is built around three core intents: 
 

• Fiscal Sustainability 
New development and redevelopment must be done with a focus on the intersection of the Public and 
Private Realms.  This is the area where city and utility infrastructure are maintained in an efficient manner 
and the commercial development creates a complete neighborhood. 
 
This area of town provides existing street connections and a geography that allows opportunity to meet the 
B³ Code.  With the extension of Blakey Lane and Wagon Wheel Drive, the development can extend and connect 
to the existing infrastructure.  At minimum, the east driveway should be dedicated as a public street, which 
will provide the basic built form that has existed in Bastrop since establishing the Iredell Map in 1920.  Internal 
public streets or at minimum, drive aisles with pedestrian walkways and crosswalks, will need to be provided 
to create a multimodal environment.  The Master Transportation Plan calls for both Blakey Lane and Wagon 
Wheel Drive to connect back to the existing Riverside Grove neighborhood, thereby creating a complete 
neighborhood. 
 

• Geographically Sensitive Developments  
Development will retain its natural form and visual character, which is derived from the topography and 
native environment. 
 
This area does not provide any geographic or built conditions that would prohibit or challenge the 
requirements of the B³ Code. 
 

• Perpetuation of Authentic Bastrop 
The B³ Code will perpetuate the built form that has been predominate over the City’s 189-year history. The 
recent trend of allowing parking and automobile traffic as the predominate feature has created a pattern 



that is contrary to the historical building patterns of the city and creates sites/buildings that are not 
adaptable and sustainable in the long-term. 
 
The proposed ZCS is not perpetuating the built form that has withstood the changes over the city’s history but 
is continuing the style of development predominate in the 1990/2000’s, which creates an auto-oriented 
development that ignores pedestrians, does not create a walkable/visible streetscape with the building 
placement, and creates excessive parking which leads to increased drainage detention and management. 
 
B³ Code ARTICLE 5.1 INTENT OF DEVELOPMENT PATTERNS 
(b) The Development Pattern type will be used to guide the creation of the Zoning Concept Scheme and 
Neighborhood Regulating Plan (see Article 2-3 Neighborhood Regulating Plans in B3 Technical Manual) 
configurations suitable for different geographies and Character Districts. 
 
The Character District of this project is Cattleman’s, which allows for Traditional Neighborhood Development 
(TND) using the standard building block pattern, or Village Center Development, which focuses the 
development around a pedestrian center with the vehicular traffic kept to a street network at the outer edges 
of the development. The development is proposing the TND form. 
 
SEC. 5.2.002 TND STANDARDS 
1. Detail the block perimeters, block lengths, pedestrian shed area, place type allocations per B³ Code 
3.2.002b. 
 
In P5 Core, the block perimeter maximum is 1320 feet. This is the distance around one building block, which 
is a block length of 330 feet. The zoning concept scheme does not meet this requirement. The applicant has 
attempted to meet the farm lot (720-foot grid) requirement using four public streets and one private driveway 
to form a partial farm lot; however, the development does not meet the 330-foot building block grid even 
with private drive aisles.  
 
A quarter-mile radius around the development creates the pedestrian shed for the area. The goal of a 
pedestrian shed is to ensure the neighborhood created is walkable. Allocations of various place types provide 
variety in a neighborhood to promote a complete neighborhood. Changing the place type to P5 Core increases 
the P5 Place Type allocation for this pedestrian shed to 66.74%.   
 
DIRECTOR ANALYSIS & RECOMMENDATION: 
This Zoning Concept Scheme does not meet the B³ Code for the following reasons: 

• Does not provide the publicly dedicated building block or farm lot grid.   
o The eastern drive aisle should be a publicly dedicated street.   
o Internal to the farm lots, the 330-foot grid is required.  Staff will entertain a recommendation for 

creating private drive aisles mimicking the 300-foot grid with parallel parking and pedestrian 
walkways with landscaping.  

o If the full 330-foot grid is not provided, a Traffic Impact Analysis will be required to for the 
development during the Preliminary Infrastructure Plan review. The Applicant has provided 
preliminary traffic counts (Attachment 7) that show that with improvements to State Highway 71 
(deceleration/turning lanes, restriping lanes under the overpass) several intersections go from a 
service level C/D to F.  The applicant provided a scenario that shows extending Blakey Lane east 



to Jessica Place and Old Austin Highway, which would bring most intersections back to a C service 
level, however the applicant has not proposed providing any funding for these improvements.   

 
 
 

• Buildings are not oriented towards public streets and do not meet the lot occupation standards. 
o Buildings should be oriented and provide required encroachments on the public streets.  If an 

acceptable private aisle grid is provided, Staff may recommend that the buildings orient to these 
aisles with appropriate pedestrian improvements and landscaping. 

• Civic Space has not been provided.  Staff recommends the applicant include a plan for internal civic space 
within the development, i.e. picnic areas, bus stops, plazas, -2 etc. 

• The landscape plan should provide street trees along all public streets.  Compliance with this requirement 
will be determined during the Public Improvement Plan review. 

 
PLANNING  & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on March 31, 2022.  The Commission voted 5-2 to 
recommend denial of the Zoning Concept Scheme.  The Commission was concerned about the number of warrants 
requested by the applicant and would have liked to see more of them resolved at the staff review level prior to 
consideration.  There were several questions regarding the Chapter 380 and Development Agreement for the 
existing Burleson Crossing.  This agreement does not cover this area and no incentive agreement is being 
considered.  A Chapter 43 Development Agreement does exist on this property, which requires the property to be 
annexed prior to development and follow the zoning and subdivision standards in place at that time. 
 
DIRECTOR RECOMMENDATION: 
Hold public hearing and consider action on a recommendation to approval, with conditions, the Burleson Crossing 
East Zoning Concept Scheme, changing the zoning for 12.95 acres out of the Nancy Blakey Survey from P2 Rural 
to P5 Core and establishing a plan on 19.81 acres, attached as Exhibit A, located at the northeast corner of State 
Highway 71 and Edward Burleson Drive, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas and forward to the June 14, 2022, 
City Council meeting for second reading. 
 
Conditions: 

• The 720-foot Farm Lot grid must be provided with public streets. 
• The 330-foot Building Block grid must be provided with defined drive aisle and comprehensive pedestrian 

network with street trees and lighting. 
• A first layer must be identified for each building that relates to the 720’ public streets or the 330’ internal 

private drive network.  
• Civic space (1.9 acres) is provided as private civic space determined on the site development plan. 
• Other warrant requests not recommended for approval can be requested during the Public Improvement 

Plan or Site Development Plan reviews. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Exhibit A: Zoning Concept Scheme 
• Attachment 1: Location Map 
• Attachment 2: Applicant’s Project Description Letter 
• Attachment 3: Applicant’s Warrant Requests and Responses with Planning Determination 
• Attachment 4: Applicant’s Street, Driveway, and Sidewalk Layout 
• Attachment 5: Applicant State Effect of 720’ Farm Lot Grid 



• Attachment 6: Required Street Grid Right-of-Way 
• Attachment 7: Preliminary Traffic Impact  
• Attachment 8: Property Owner Notice & Responses 
• Attachment 9: Zoning Map 
• Attachment 10: Future Land Use Map 
• Attachment 11:  Additional Information From Applicant After March 31, 2022 P&Z Meeting 

 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE 2022-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE BURLESON CROSSING EAST ZONING 
CONCEPT SCHEME, CHANGING THE ZONING FOR 12.95 ACRES 
OUT OF THE NANCY BLAKEY SURVEY ABSTRACT 98, FROM P2 
RURAL TO P5 CORE AND ESTABLISHING A PLAN ON 19.81 ACRES, 
LOCATED EAST OF EDWARD BURLESON LAND AND NORTH OF 
STATE HIGHWAY 71, WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS,  AS SHOWN IN EXHIBIT A, PROVIDING FOR FINDINGS OF 
FACT, ADOPTION, REPEALER, SEVERABILITY AND 
ENFORCEMENT, PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop, Texas (City) is a Home-Rule City acting under 

its Charter adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas 
Constitution and Chapter 9 of the Texas Local Government Code; and   
 

WHEREAS, on or about November 8, 2021, the Erhard Legacy Partners, Ltd 
submitted a request for zoning modifications; and, 

 
WHEREAS, City Council has reviewed the request for zoning modifications, and 

finds the request to be reasonable and proper under the circumstances; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Staff has reviewed the request for zoning modifications, and 

finds it to be justifiable based upon the Future Land Use Designation for this Property 
is General Commercial, which allows for a wide range of commercial and retail uses; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the 12.95 acres of the Nancy Blakey Survey, Abstract 98 were 

annexed into the city limits of Bastrop on June 14, 2022, with the default zoning of P2 
Rural, as established in the Bastrop Building Block (B³) Code, Section 2.3.003 “Zoning 
Upon Annexation”; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapter 211, 

public notice was given, and a public hearing was held before the City of Bastrop 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) on March 31, 2022, and made the 
recommendation for denial of the rezoning request by a vote of 5-2; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 211, a 

three-fourths vote of City Council is required to approve a zoning request when the 
Planning & Zoning Commission has recommended denial; and 
 



2 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapter 211, 
public notice was given, and a public hearing was held before the City Council regarding 
the requested zoning modification; and 
 

WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001 provides the City 
general authority to adopt an Ordinance or police regulations that are for good 
government, peace or order of the City and is necessary or proper for carrying out a 
power granted by law to the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, after consideration of public input received at the hearing, the 

information provided by the Applicants, and all other information presented, City Council 
finds that it necessary and proper to enact this Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BASTROP, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1:    The Property, 12.95 acres out of land out of the Stephen F. Austin 
Survey, Abstract 2 is rezoned from P2 Rural to P5 Core, and a Zoning Concept Scheme 
is established on 19.81 acres, located east of Edward Burleson Lane and north of State 
Highway 71, within the City Limits of Bastrop, Texas as more particularly shown on 
Exhibit A. 

 
Section 2: The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by 

reference as findings of fact as if expressly set forth herein.  
 

Section 3:   All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or 
inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of 
such conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to 
the matters regulated, herein. 

 
Section 4: If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, that invalidity or the unenforceability will not 
affect any other provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect 
without the invalid provision.  

 
Section 5: The City shall have the power to administer and enforce the 

provisions of this ordinance as may be required by governing law. Any person violating 
any provision of this ordinance is subject to suit for injunctive relief as well as 
prosecution for criminal violations, and such violation is hereby declared to be a 
nuisance. Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed as a waiver of the City’s right to 
bring a civil action to enforce the provisions of this ordinance and to seek remedies as 
allowed by law and/or equity.  
 

Section 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551.  



3 
 

 
Section 7: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon passage and 

publication.  
 
 
READ & ACKNOWLEDGE on First Reading on this the 24th day of May 2022. 
 
READ & ADOPTED on Second Reading on this the 14th day of June 2022. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
     ___________________________
     Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Alan Bojorquez, City Attorney 
 



Number Description

REVISIONS / CORRECTIONS

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

7 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\S
ub

m
itt

al
 S

he
et

s\
Zo

ni
ng

 p
la

n 
se

t\C
V0

1.
dw

g

La
st

 M
od

ifi
ed

:  
N

ov
. 2

2,
 2

1 
- 1

7:
26

Pl
ot

 D
at

e/
Ti

m
e:

 N
ov

. 2
3,

 2
1 

- 1
3:

22
:3

0

U
se

r: 
cs

te
dm

an
I:\

A1
41

 B
as

tro
p\

40
7 

- B
ur

le
so

n 
Ea

st
\S

ub
m

itt
al

 S
he

et
s\

Zo
ni

ng
 p

la
n 

se
t\C

V0
1.

dw
g

La
st

 M
od

ifi
ed

:  
N

ov
. 2

2,
 2

1 
- 1

7:
26

Pl
ot

 D
at

e/
Ti

m
e:

 N
ov

. 2
3,

 2
1 

- 1
3:

22
:3

0

U
se

r: 
cs

te
dm

an

LJA Engineering & Surveying, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

5316 Highway 290 West
Suite 150

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

BURLESON CROSSING EAST
ZONING CONCEPT PLAN

City of Bastrop
Approval- Date

Revise (R) Add (A) Void (V)
Sheet No.'s

LOCATION MAP
(N.T.S.)

SHT. 01 OF 10
CV1

SUBMITTAL DATE:  _OCTOBER 4TH, 2021_

N
icole

Charles

C
.R

. 3
03

MarinoWheel

Caylor

Be
lin

da

Outfitter

Shoreline

Patton

D
uff

C
ounty R

oad 244

Settlem
ent

Blair

Riverwood

Katy B

State Highway 71

Lo
ri

Charles

FM
 2

0

Pheasant

FM
 969

Schaefer

Bryant

R
em

ington

H
un

te
rs

 C
ro

ss
in

g

Elizabeth

Jo
rd

an

Schaefer

Annika

Bills

Trail

State Hwy 71

Jessica

Jennifer

Old Austin

Serenity

St
at

e 
H

w
y 

30
4

Drive

Wagon

FM
 969

TO AUSTIN

TO BASTROP

B
U

R
LE

SO
N

 C
R

O
SS

IN
G

 E
A

ST
ZO

N
IN

G
 C

O
N

C
EP

T 
PL

AN
A

14
1-

40
1-

40
7

LOCATION
PROJECT

PROPOSED UTILITY PROVIDERS
WATER AND WASTEWATER :    CITY OF BASTROP - TREY JOB (512) 332-8932
ELECTRIC :    BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE - RODNEY GERIK (979) 542-8527
GAS :    CENTERPOINT/ENTEX - WENDY LAMB (830) 643-6938
TELEPHONE:    AT&T
CABLE:    TIME-WARNER

DEVELOPER :

 ENGINEER :

SURVEYOR :

LJA ENGINEERING INC.
5316 HIGHWAY 290 W. SUITE 150
AUSTIN TEXAS 78735
CONTACT PERSON :  S. DANNY MILLER, P. E
PHONE # (512) 439-4700
FAX # (512) 439-4716

BASTROP RETAIL PARTNERS, LP.
c/o DURHMAN AND BASSETT REALTY GROUP, INC.
100 EAST ANDERSON LANE, SUITE 200
AUSTIN, TX. 78752
PHONE # (512) 833-6444
FAX #  (512) 833-6448

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

NOTES:

1.  THIS PROJECT IS LOCATED IN AN UNNAMED TRIBUTARY OF THE COLORADO RIVER.

2.  THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON LIES WITHIN ZONE "X" (AREAS DETERMINED TO BE
OUTSIDE 500-YEAR FLOOD-PLAIN), AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON
MAP NO. 48021C0355E, DATED JANUARY 19, 2006, FOR BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS
AND INCORPORATED AREAS.

OWNER:

FRN-F-1386

LJA SURVEYING INC.
5316 HIGHWAY 290 W. SUITE 150
AUSTIN TEXAS 78735
CONTACT PERSON :  MATT OVERALL
PHONE # (512) 439-4700
FAX # (512) 439-4716

ERHARD LEGACY PARTNERS, LTD.
11111 WILCREST GREEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
HOUSTON, TEXAS 77042

19.81 ACRES IN THE NANCY BLAKEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 98
BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS

SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
01 COVER SHEET
02 OVERALL AERIAL VIEW
03 ZONING CONCEPT PLAN
04 BUILDING ELEVATION PLAN
05 SITE LAYERS CONCEPT PLAN
06 CONCEPTUAL DRAINAGE PLAN
07 CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
08 LANDSCAPE CONCEPT PLAN
09 LANDSCAPE CONCEPTUAL PLAN
10 PEDESTRIAN SHED MAP & CALCULATIONS



EDWARD BURLESON LN

BLAKEY LN

STATE HIGHWAY 21
OLD AUSTIN HWY

FM
 3

04
ED

W
AR

D
 B

U
R

LE
SO

N
 L

N

D
U

FF
 D

R

SETTLEM
ENT DR.

544.90'
611.60'

N87°41'50"E 541.73'

STATE HWY. 71

ED
W

AR
D

 BU
R

LESO
N

 LAN
E

70.00'

57.00'

180.00'

60.00'

65.00' R
O

W

40.00'
PVM

T

92.00'

113.00'

BLAKEY LANE

251.83'

244.25'

193.00'

195.00'

124.98'

195.67'

193.98'

74.65'

77.22'

100.00'

50.00'

0

SCALE IN FEET

200100200 400

LJA Engineering, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

7500 Rialto Boulevard
Building II, Suite 100

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

ZONING CONCEPT PLAN

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

7 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\S
ub

m
itt

al
 S

he
et

s\
Zo

ni
ng

 p
la

n 
se

t\a
ria

l S
IT

E 
PL

AN
.d

w
g 

N
ov

 2
3,

 2
02

1 
- 1

:2
2p

m

OVERALL AERIAL VIEWFRN-F-1386

BURLESON CROSSING EAST

SHT. 02 OF 10



ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

70.00'

57.00'

180.00'

60
.0

0'

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

92.00'

113.00'

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

0.
69

4 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
8

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX 1.

72
6 

AC
R

ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
9,

 1
0,

 1
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

3.
14

2 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

ES
TA

TE
S

LO
T 

12
A

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

1.
99

9 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
5 

C
O

R
E

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

LO
T 

8-
A

1.
61

9 
AC

R
ES

LO
T 

9-
A

1.
37

2 
AC

R
ES

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

19.81 ACRE TRACT

ERHARD LEGACY PARTNERS, LTD.REMAINDER OF A CALLED 30.00 ACRES
DESCRIBED IN

DOCUMENT NO. 201502919
O.P.R.B.C.TX.

AND
VOLUME 640, PAGE 14

AUGUST 4, 1992
O.P.R.B.C.TX

ZONING: DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

SI
G

N

STOP

FF
 =

 3
75

.5
0

IB
C 

BA
N

K

STOP

STOP

STO
P

STOP

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

STOP

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

25
1.

83
'

244.25'

193.00'

19
5.

00
'

124.98'

19
5.

67
'

19
3.

98
'

74.65'

77
.2

2'

10
0.

00
'

50.00'

0

SCALE IN FEET

502550 100

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

SHEET NO.

OF SHEETS

A141-0401-405

BU
R

LE
SO

N
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

PL
AN

S 
FO

R
 S

IT
E 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

BY
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

LJ
A

 E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 &
 S

ur
ve

yi
ng

, I
nc

.

Au
sti

n, 
Te

xa
s  

78
73

5

53
16

 H
igh

wa
y 2

90
 W

es
t

Su
ite

 15
0

Ph
on

e 5
12

.43
9.4

70
0

Fa
x 5

12
.43

9.4
71

6
D

R
AW

N
 B

Y:

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

AM
E:

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

JOB NUMBER:

Pl
ot

 D
at

e/
Ti

m
e:

 F
eb

. 1
1,

 2
2 

- 1
5:

17
:5

7

FR
N-

F-
13

86
EA

ST
 T

R
AC

T 
- S

EP
TE

M
BE

R
 2

02
1

PAD B
 1.85 ACRES

PAD A
1.38 ACRES

PAD H
DET. POND

RETAIL
7,906 S.F.

REQ'D PKG @
1:250 = 32 SP.

PROV.  = 32 SPACES

RETAIL 43,000 SF
REQ'D PKG
@ 1:250 S.F.

= 172 SPACES
PROV. = 174 SP.

10.138
ACRES

0.064
ACRE
ESMT.

5,710 S.F. REST.
REQ'D PKG
@ 1:100 S.F.
= 58 SPACES

PROV. = 69 SP.

58,475 SF
REQ'D PKG
@ 1:250 S.F.

= 234 SPACES

 RETAIL 37,935 SF
REQ'D PKG @
1:250 =152 SP.

PROV. =  533 SP.

REST. 4,000 SF
REQ'D PKG
@ 1:100 S.F.
= 40 SPACES

PROV. = 40 SP.

5.648
ACRES

1.00
ACRE
PAD C

BUILDING E

BUILDING C

BUILDING A

BUILDING B

BUILDING D

4,000 S.F. REST.
REQ'D PKG
@ 1:100 S.F.
= 40 SPACES

PROV. = 90 SP.

RETAIL. 4,400 SF
REQ'D PKG
@ 1:250 S.F.
= 18 SPACES

PROV. = 20 SP.

2/11/2022

SIDEWALK CONNECTION
TO BE DETERMINED

AT SITE PLAN



LJA Engineering, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

7500 Rialto Boulevard
Building II, Suite 100

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

ZONING CONCEPT PLAN

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

7 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\S
ub

m
itt

al
 S

he
et

s\
Zo

ni
ng

 p
la

n 
se

t\S
IT

E 
PL

AN
.d

w
g 

N
ov

 2
3,

 2
02

1 
- 1

:2
3p

m

FRN-F-1386

BURLESON CROSSING EAST

BUILDING ELEVATION PLAN
SHT. 04 OF 10

MAX. BUILDING
HEIGHT = 60'

MAX. BUILDING
HEIGHT = 30'

MAX. BUILDING
HEIGHT = 30'

MAX. BUILDING
HEIGHT = 60'

MAX. BUILDING
HEIGHT = 60'

MAX. BUILDING
HEIGHT = 60'

MAX. BUILDING
HEIGHT = 60'



W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

SETTLEMENT DR.

TR
AI

L 
DR

IV
E 

CI
R

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

SETTLEMENT DR.

TR
AI

L 
DR

IV
E 

CI
R

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

32
2.

78
8 

AC
R

ES

A9
8 

BL
AK

EY
, N

AN
C

Y 
TR

AC
T 

2

ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E SI

G
N

STOP
STOP

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXX

LOT 5
1.26 AC.

LOT 3
4.56 AC. LOT 2

1.40 AC.

LOT 1
2.05 AC.

LOT 4
0.85 AC.

LOT 6
8.87 AC.

BUILDING A
COMMERCIAL

3,450SF
HT = 30' MAX

PROP.
DETENTION

POND 'A'

BUILDING H
COMMERCIAL

5,000SF
HT = 30' MAX

BUILDING B
COMMERCIAL

11,900SF
HT = 30' MAX

COMMERCIAL
HT = 60' MAX
BUILDING F

37,600SF

COMMERCIAL
HT = 60' MAX
BUILDING G

61,200SF

BUILDING E
COMMERCIAL

10,800SF
HT = 30' MAX

BUILDING D
COMMERCIAL

17,900SF
HT = 60' MAX

BUILDING C
COMMERCIAL

24,250SF
HT = 60' MAX

EXIST. PUBLIC STREET
(TO BE WIDENED)

EXIST. PUBLIC STREET

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

TR
EE

T
(E

XT
EN

SI
O

N
 O

F 
BL

AK
EY

 L
N

.)

PR
O

P. PU
BLIC

 LO
C

AL

C
O

N
N

EC
TO

R
 STR

EET

(W
AG

O
N

 W
H

EEL EXTEN
SIO

N
)

P5

P5

P5

P5

P5

P5

SETTLEMENT DR.

20
'

20'

20'

20
'

20'

20'

38.19'

43
.1

0'

31
4.

37
'

54.00'

95.57'

P5 PLACE TYPE

PROP. SIDEWALK

BLOCK DIMENSIONS

BUILDING
FRONTAGE BUILDING FACADE DIRECTION

LOT 1
LOT 2
LOT 3
LOT 4
LOT 5
LOT 6
TOTAL

LOT
FRONTAGE

360LF
245
47
271
261
347

1,531

BUILDING
FRONTAGE

78LF
170
217
180
100
458

1,202

21.66%
69.39%
461.70%
66.42%
38.31%

131.99%
78.51%

SCALE IN FEET

0 603060 120

LJA Engineering, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

7500 Rialto Boulevard
Building II, Suite 100

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

ZONING CONCEPT PLAN

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

7 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\S
ub

m
itt

al
 S

he
et

s\
Zo

ni
ng

 p
la

n 
se

t\L
AY

ER
S 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
.d

w
g 

N
ov

 2
3,

 2
02

1 
- 1

:2
4p

m

FRN-F-1386

BURLESON CROSSING EAST

BU
IL

D
IN

G
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

BU
IL

D
IN

G
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

BU
IL

D
IN

G
FR

O
N

TA
G

E
BU

IL
D

IN
G

FR
O

N
TA

G
E

BUILDING
FRONTAGE

BUILDING
FRONTAGE

BU
IL

D
IN

G
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

1ST LAYER - 2' TO 15' FROM FRONTAGE

2ND LAYER - 20' BEHIND 1ST LAYER

3RD LAYER - REST OF LOT

LEGEND

20
'

20'

20'

20
'

20'

20
'

SITE LAYERS CONCEPT PLAN
SHT. 05 OF 10

14
12

.8
2'

600.00'

89.96'

10
8.

19
'

38
.3

6'

455.21'

SE
C

O
N

D
AR

Y 
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

SECONDARY FRONTAGE SECONDARY
FRONTAGE

SE
C

O
N

D
AR

Y
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

SECONDARY
FRONTAGE



376

376 37
5

37
3

37
3

37
5

37
4

377

37
5

37
5

37
6

374

375

376

374

374

37
3

374

375

375

376

37
5

37
6

37
5

377

376

37
3

37
1

37
4

375

375

375

374

375

37
4

37
4

TR
U

C
KW

EL
L

37
1

37
2

37
3

37
4

37
5

37
5

37
3

37
3

37
4

37
6

37
6

37
7

375

375

373 373

37
4

374

374

37
4

375

372

372

372

372

373
374

375

37
5

373

37
4

374

37
4

37
6

37
7

374

37
3

37
3

374

37
2

375

37
3

37
4374

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST
ST

ST

35
4

ST

SI
G

N
SI

G
N

FF
 =

 3
75

.5
0

IB
C 

BA
N

K

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

STOP

10
3K

 D
EE

P
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXX

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

TR
AI

L 
DR

IV
E 

CI
R

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

TR
AI

L 
DR

IV
E 

CI
R

15
' W

.E
.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

20
' E

.E
. (

19
23

/1
31

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

W

N
87

°4
1'

50
"E

 5
41

.7
3'

32
2.

78
8 

AC
R

ES

A9
8 

BL
AK

EY
, N

AN
C

Y 
TR

AC
T 

2

ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST

SCALE IN FEET

0 603060 120

LEGEND

DRAINAGE AREA NUMBER

PROPERTY LINE

DRAINAGE AREA

10

FLOW DIRECTION ARROW

Q
Q

25

100

Q25 = 16.64 cfs

Q100 = 23.62 cfs

TC PATH

SF

SCF

SHEET FLOW

SHALLOW CONCENTRATED FLOW

2.59 ACRES
AND ACREAGE

NOTES:

1. THIS IS A CONCEPTUAL DRAINAGE PLAN FOR THE PROPOSED BURLESON
CROSSING EAST SITE ONLY.  MORE DETAILED INFORMATION IS BEING
PROVIDED AS PART OF THE SEPARATELY PREPARED DRAINAGE CONCEPT
PLANS.

ST ST

ST ST

ST ST

PROPOSED STORM SEWER TO CONVEY ONSITE
FLOWS TO PROPOSED BURLESON CROSSING EAST
DETENTION POND

PROPOSED 4' X 2' RBC STORM SEWER AND 36"
STORM PIPE TO DRAIN TO EXISTING 36" STORM
SEWER, BURLESON CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS

EXISTING 36" STORM SEWER, BURLESON
CROSSING SUBDVISION IMPROVEMENTS, DRAINS
TO EXISTING BURLESON CROSSING DETENTION
POND.

LJA Engineering, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

7500 Rialto Boulevard
Building II, Suite 100

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

ZONING CONCEPT PLAN

FRN-F-1386

BURLESON CROSSING EAST

CONCEPTUAL DRAINAGE PLAN
SHT. 06 OF 10



N
87

°4
1'

50
"E

 5
41

.7
3'

ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E SI

G
N

STOP

FF
 =

 3
75

.5
0

IB
C 

BA
N

K

STOP

STOP

STO
P

STOP

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

STOP

VAN

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

0.
69

4 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
8

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX 1.

72
6 

AC
R

ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
9,

 1
0,

 1
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

3.
14

2 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

ES
TA

TE
S

LO
T 

12
A

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

1.
99

9 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
5 

C
O

R
E

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

LO
T 

8-
A

1.
61

9 
AC

R
ES

LO
T 

9-
A

1.
37

2 
AC

R
ES

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

19.81 ACRE TRACT

ERHARD LEGACY PARTNERS, LTD.REMAINDER OF A CALLED 30.00 ACRESDESCRIBED IN
DOCUMENT NO. 201502919

O.P.R.B.C.TX.
AND

VOLUME 640, PAGE 14
AUGUST 4, 1992

O.P.R.B.C.TX
ZONING: DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE
ZONING: P5 CORE

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST ST
ST

ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

WW

W
L

WW ► WW ► WW ► WW ► WW ►
WW

WW

WW

W
W

◄

W
W

◄

WW ►WW
WW

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

35
4

ST

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL
WL

WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

EX.
0.064
ACRE
ESMT.

PROP. PUBLIC 12" WL

PR
O

P.
 P

U
BL

IC
 1

2"
 W

L
PR

O
P.

 P
U

BL
IC

 1
2"

 W
L

PR
O

P.
 P

U
BL

IC
 1

2"
 W

L

PR
O

P.
 P

U
BL

IC
 1

2"
 W

L
PROP. PUBLIC 12" WL

PROP. W
WL SVC.

PROP. ST

WWL CO

PROP. S
T

PR
O

P.
 S

T
PR

O
P.

 S
T

PR
O

P.
 S

T

PR
O

P.
 S

T

PROP. ST

PROP. ST

SCALE IN FEET

0 502550 100

LJA Engineering, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

7500 Rialto Boulevard
Building II, Suite 100

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

ZONING CONCEPT PLAN

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

7 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\S
ub

m
itt

al
 S

he
et

s\
Zo

ni
ng

 p
la

n 
se

t\u
til

ity
 p

la
n.

dw
g 

N
ov

 2
3,

 2
02

1 
- 1

:2
6p

m

FRN-F-1386

BURLESON CROSSING EAST

WWL CO
WWL CO

WWL CO

WWL CO

WWMHWWMH

ST INLETST INLET

ST INLET

ST INLET
ST INLET

ST INLET

ST INLET

ST INLET

ST INLET

ST INLET

ST INLET

ST INLET

ST INLET

JB

ST MH

ST INLET

ST INLET

CONNECT TO EXIST, 12" WL

CONNECT TO EXIST, 36" SSL

CONNECT TO EXIST. 8" WWL

CONNECT TO EXIST, 12" WL

LEGEND

STORM SEWER LINE

WASTEWATER LINE

WATER VALVE

STORMSEWER MANHOLE

WASTEWATER MANHOLE

WATER LINE

WW

WL

EXISTINGPROPOSED

ST
ST

WW

WWL CO

CONNECT TO EXIST. 8" WWL

CONNECT TO EXISTING 8" WWL

CONNECT TO EXISTING 8" WWL

CONNECT TO EXIST, 12" WL

WWL CO

WWL CO

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

PR
O

P.
 W

W
L

PR
O

P.
 W

W
L

CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
SHT. 07 OF 10

15.00'D.E.

PROP.
D.E.

PROP. PUBLIC WWL
PROP.  WWL

15
' W

L
ES

M
T.

15' WL
ESMT.

15
' W

L
ES

M
T.

15' WL
ESMT.

15' W
W

L
ESM

T.



WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST ST
ST

ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

WW

W
L

WW ► WW ► WW ► WW ► WW ►
WW

WW

WW

W
W

◄

W
W

◄

WW ►WW
WW

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

35
4

ST

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL
WL

WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

SI
G

N

STOP

FF
 =

 3
75

.5
0

IB
C 

BA
N

K

STOP

STOP

STO
P

STOP

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

STOP

VAN

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

N
87

°4
1'

50
"E

 5
41

.7
3'

ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

70.00'

57.00'

180.00'

60
.0

0'

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

92.00'

113.00'

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E

25
1.

83
'

244.25'

193.00'

19
5.

00
'

124.98'

19
5.

67
'

19
3.

98
'

74.65'

77
.2

2'

10
0.

00
'

50.00'

LOT 5
1.26 AC.

LOT 3
4.56 AC.

LOT 2
1.40 AC.

LOT 1
2.05 AC.

LOT 4
0.85 AC.

LOT 6
8.87 AC.

BUILDING D BUILDING C

BUILDING A
COMMERCIAL

3,450SF
HT = 30' MAX

BUILDING E

BUILDING G

BUILDING F

PROP.
DETENTION

POND 'A'

COMMERCIAL

COMMERCIAL

61,200SF

37,600SF

COMMERCIAL
17,900SF

COMMERCIAL
24,250SF

COMMERCIAL

10,800SF

BUILDING H
COMMERCIAL

5,000SF
HT = 30' MAX

HT = 60' MAX HT = 60' MAX

HT = 30' MAX

HT = 60' MAX

HT = 60' MAX

BUILDING B
COMMERCIAL

11,900SF
HT = 30' MAX

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

0.
69

4 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
8

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX 1.

72
6 

AC
R

ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
9,

 1
0,

 1
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

3.
14

2 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

ES
TA

TE
S

LO
T 

12
A

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

1.
99

9 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
5 

C
O

R
E

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

LO
T 

8-
A

1.
61

9 
AC

R
ES

LO
T 

9-
A

1.
37

2 
AC

R
ES

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

19
.8

1 
A

C
R

E 
TR

A
C

T
ER

H
AR

D
 L

EG
AC

Y 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 L
TD

.
R

EM
AI

N
D

ER
 O

F 
A 

C
AL

LE
D

 3
0.

00
 A

C
R

ES
D

ES
C

R
IB

ED
 IN

D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
N

O
. 2

01
50

29
19

O
.P

.R
.B

.C
.T

X.
AN

D
VO

LU
M

E 
64

0,
 P

AG
E 

14
AU

G
U

ST
 4

, 1
99

2
O

.P
.R

.B
.C

.T
X

ZO
N

IN
G

: D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
AG

R
EE

M
EN

T

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE
ZONING: P5 CORE

SCALE IN FEET

0 502550 100

LJA Engineering, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

7500 Rialto Boulevard
Building II, Suite 100

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

ZONING CONCEPT PLAN

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

7 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\S
ub

m
itt

al
 S

he
et

s\
Zo

ni
ng

 p
la

n 
se

t\l
an

ds
ca

pe
 P

LA
N

.d
w

g 
N

ov
 2

2,
 2

02
1 

- 4
:0

0p
m

FRN-F-1386

BURLESON CROSSING EAST

LANDSCAPE CONCEPT PLAN
SHT. 08 OF 10

POND
MAINT.
ACCESS

10' SUP

10' SUP

10' SUP
10' SUP 10' SUP 10' SUP

Wrought Iron
Fence

Private Realm -  Parking Trees, Shrubs, Turf Grass and/or Mulch

 
* Public Realm - Street Trees / Planting & Turf

 Private Realm - Shading Trees, Ornamental Trees, Shrubs, Turf Grass
and/or Mulch

Private Realm - Turf Grass with shrubs.

Public Realm - Turf Grass Only

* Owner agrees to select public realm street trees per Table 2.1.003 - Preferred Plant List, but
owner shall be allowed to choose which types.

POND 
BOTTOM - 

TURF



THIS IMAGE/DEPICTION/DRAWING IS CONCEPTUAL IN NATURE AND IS PROVIDED
FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. THIS IMAGE/DEPICTION/DRAWING IS ONLY
PROVIDED TO DEMONSTRATE THE QUALITY OF THE DESIGN AND MATERIALS THAT
MAY BE USED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND NOT THE EXACT IMPROVEMENTS THAT
WILL BE CONSTRUCTED.

LJA Engineering, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

7500 Rialto Boulevard
Building II, Suite 100

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

ZONING CONCEPT PLAN

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

7 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\S
ub

m
itt

al
 S

he
et

s\
Zo

ni
ng

 p
la

n 
se

t\l
an

ds
ca

pe
 P

LA
N

.d
w

g 
N

ov
 2

3,
 2

02
1 

- 1
0:

03
am

FRN-F-1386

BURLESON CROSSING EAST

LANDSCAPE CONCEPTUAL PLAN
SHT. 09 OF 10



W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

SETTLEMENT DR.

TR
AI

L 
DR

IV
E 

CI
R

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

SETTLEMENT DR.

TR
AI

L 
DR

IV
E 

CI
R

0.
69

4 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
8

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

1.
29

4 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
1B

1.
68

1 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
6-

7

1.
72

6 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
9,

 1
0,

 1
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

3.
00

6 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

ES
TA

TE
S

LO
T 

2A

3.
14

2 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

ES
TA

TE
S

LO
T 

12
A

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

0.
35

1 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
1

1.
99

9 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
5 

C
O

R
E

2.
27

4 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
1-

C
, 1

-D

15
' W

.E
.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

LO
T 

4-
A

12
.7

56
 A

C
R

ES

LO
T 

7-
B

1.
76

1 
AC

R
ES

LO
T 

8-
A

1.
61

9 
AC

R
ES

LO
T 

9-
A

1.
37

2 
AC

R
ES

LO
T 

10
-A

1.
02

4 
AC

R
ES

LO
T 

11
-B

1.
24

3 
AC

R
ES

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10' BLDG LINE

20' BLDG LINE

20
' B

LD
G

 L
IN

E

10
' B

LD
G

 L
IN

E

LO
T 

7-
A

2.
29

1 
AC

R
ES

LO
T 

11
-C

0.
63

6 
AC

R
ES

15
' W

.E
.

(5
/1

4A
)

15
' W

.W
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

20
' E

.E
.

(1
92

3/
13

1)

20
' E

.E
. (

19
23

/1
31

)

W
.E

. R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

TH
IS

 P
LA

T

25
' P

.U
.E

.
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
TH

IS
 P

LA
T

15
' W

.W
.E

.
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
TH

IS
 P

LA
T

25
' P

.U
.E

.
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
TH

IS
 P

LA
T

N02°13'17"W 513.19'

S02°13'17"E 498.26'
15.00'

69
.6

5'

ESMT. VACATED ESMT. VACATED
PER THIS PLATESMT. VACATED

PER THIS PLAT

ES
M

T.
 V

AC
AT

ED
PE

R
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

T

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

19.81 ACRE TRACT

ERHARD LEGACY PARTNERS, LTD.REMAINDER OF A CALLED 30.00 ACRESDESCRIBED IN
DOCUMENT NO. 201502919

O.P.R.B.C.TX.
AND

VOLUME 640, PAGE 14
AUGUST 4, 1992

O.P.R.B.C.TXZONING: DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE
ZONING: P5 CORE

61
.1

 A
C

R
E 

TR
A

C
T

BU
R

LE
SO

N
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G
PL

AT
 B

O
O

K 
5,

 P
AG

E 
14

A 
P.

R
.B

.C
.T

.X
.

N
87

°4
1'

50
"E

 5
41

.7
3'

32
2.

78
8 

AC
R

ES

A9
8 

BL
AK

EY
, N

AN
C

Y 
TR

AC
T 

2

ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

70.00'

57.00'

180.00'

60
.0

0'

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

92.00'

113.00'

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E

25
1.

83
'

244.25'

193.00'

19
5.

00
'

124.98'

19
5.

67
'

19
3.

98
'

74.65'

77
.2

2'

10
0.

00
'

50.00'

W
L

W
L

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

WW

WW ► WW ►
WW

WW

WW

W
W

◄

WW
WW

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST ST ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST
ST

ST

35
4

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL WL WL WL

WL WL WL WL WL WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

20
' B

LD
G

 L
IN

E

10
' B

LD
G

 L
IN

E

SI
G

N
SI

G
N

SI
G

N

BL
AK

EY
 D

R
IV

E

STOP

FF
 =

 3
75

.5
0

IB
C 

BA
N

K

STOP

STOP

STOP

STO
P

STO
P

STOP

STOP

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

STOPSTOPSTOP

STOP

LO
AD

IN
G

ONLY

10
3K

 D
EE

P

VAN

VAN

18
,5

50
 S

F
R

ET
AI

L
PR

O
P.

FF
 =

 3
75

.0
0

87
 S

PA
C

ES

2,
83

0 
SF

O

VAN

ONE WAY

18
,5

50
 S

F
R

ET
AI

L

71
7

PR
O

P.

FF
 =

 3
75

.0
0

87
 S

PA
C

ES

15
,2

56
 S

F
F

FF
 =

 3
75

.6
0

D
D

4,
22

7s
f

58
 S

PA
C

ES

D

20
' B

LD
G

 L
IN

E

10
' B

LD
G

 L
IN

E

10' BLDG LINE

20
' B

LD
G

 L
IN

E

10
' B

LD
G

 L
IN

E

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXX

W

1+
00

1+
00

LOT 5
1.26 AC.

LOT 3
4.56 AC. LOT 2

1.40 AC.

LOT 1
2.05 AC.

LOT 4
0.85 AC.

LOT 6
8.87 AC.

BUILDING A
COMMERCIAL

3,450SF
HT = 30' MAX

PROP.
DETENTION

POND 'A'

BUILDING H
COMMERCIAL

5,000SF
HT = 30' MAX

BUILDING B
COMMERCIAL

11,900SF
HT = 30' MAX

COMMERCIAL
HT = 60' MAX
BUILDING F

37,600SF

COMMERCIAL
HT = 60' MAX
BUILDING G

61,200SF

BUILDING E
COMMERCIAL

10,800SF
HT = 30' MAX

BUILDING D
COMMERCIAL

17,900SF
HT = 60' MAX

BUILDING C
COMMERCIAL

24,250SF
HT = 60' MAX

P4 MIX
(298,819SF - 8.57%)

P5 CORE
(2,326,024SF - 66.74%)

P2 RURAL
(103,017SF - 2.95%)

DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT
252,012SF - 7.23%)

R.O.W.
504,928SF - 14.51%)

SCALE IN FEET

0 10050100 200

LJA Engineering, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

7500 Rialto Boulevard
Building II, Suite 100

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

ZONING CONCEPT PLAN

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

7 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\S
ub

m
itt

al
 S

he
et

s\
Zo

ni
ng

 p
la

n 
se

t\c
ha

r d
is

tri
ct

 S
IT

E 
PL

AN
.d

w
g 

N
ov

 2
3,

 2
02

1 
- 1

:2
7p

m

FRN-F-1386

BURLESON CROSSING EAST

80 ACRES AREA

PEDESTRIAN SHED MAP &
CALCULATIONS

SHT. 10 OF 10



W SH 71 FR

W SH 71 FR¬«71

¬«30
4

¬«71

W SH 71 FR

BLAKEY LN

SETTLEM
ENT DR

ED
W

AR
D

 B
U

R
LE

SO
N

 L
N

PATTO
N

 LN

TRAIL DRIVE CIR

BLAIR AVE

WAGON WHEEL CIR

W SH 71 FR

Attachment 1
Location Map

The Colony MUD

¬«304

¬«71
¬«150

FM
 9

69

W SH 71 FR

BLAKEY LN

RIVERWOOD DR

C
AR

TER
 ST

BLAIR AVE

AGNES ST

HUNTERS POINT DR

JESSICA PLD
U

FF D
R

CHARLES BLVD
BE

AR
 H

U
N

TE
R

 D
R

N 
HA

SL
ER

 B
LV

D

PATTO
N

 LN

ES
KE

W
 S

T

AGNES ST

1 inch = 400 feet
0 250 500125

Feet

Date: 12/2/2021
The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.     ³

Zoning Concept Scheme
Burleson Crossing East



TALLEY WILLIAMS 
512.404.2234 

TWilliams@mwswtexas.com 

   221 West 6th Street, Suite 1300, Austin, TX 78701 • 512.404.2200 • fax 512.404.2244 • www.mwswtexas.com 

November 4, 2021 
Via Electronic Delivery 
City of Bastrop 
Planning Department 
1311 Chestnut Street 
Bastrop, Texas 78602 

Re: Proposed Rezoning of Approximately 19.837 Acres of Land Within the City of Bastrop 
(the “City”) generally Located East of Edward Burleson Lane and North of State Highway 71 (the 
“Property”). 

On behalf of, and as the designated agents of, the owner of the Property, this letter serves 
as the formal request for a Zoning Concept Scheme (Rezoning) change for the Property. The 
Property is designated as BCAD ID 77734 and consists of a portion along State Highway 71 that 
is currently designated as a P5 (Core) Place Type Zoning District, with the remainder of the 
Property located in City’s ETJ and therefore not annexed or zoned.  

We are planning a high-quality commercial expansion of the incredibly successful Burleson 
Crossing retail development on the west side of Edward Burleson Lane (the “Project”). In order to 
expand the commercial development of Burleson Crossing, which would include over 100,000 
square feet of additional retail development that will contribute to the City’s ad valorem and sales 
tax, it is necessary to zone the unzoned portion of the Property to Place Type Zoning District.  

The proposed project will be an expansion of the previously constructed Burleson Crossing 
development, which was constructed (i) pursuant to a Ch. 380 Agreement that contained specific 
design guidelines and parameters and (ii) prior to the B3 Code’s enactment. Due to the previously 
existing parking layout, infrastructure design, and traffic patterns, using the proposed P5 (Core) 
Place Type will necessitate some warrants that will be resolved with staff during the annexation 
and zoning approval process.  

For the above listed reasons, we believe that the P5 (Core) Place Type (with necessary warrants) 
for the Property allows for proper development of the area and promotes healthful and responsible 
development within the City that will continue to provide employment for Bastrop residents, and 

Attachment 2

mailto:TWilliams@mwswtexas.com


 
TALLEY WILLIAMS 

512.404.2234 
TWilliams@mwswtexas.com 

 
 

 
  

             221 West 6th Street, Suite 1300, Austin, TX 78701 • 512.404.2200 • fax 512.404.2244 • www.mwswtexas.com 

tax revenue for the City.  
 
In addition, pursuant to that certain Chapter 43 Texas Local Government Code Development 
Agreement dated October 18, 2011 by and between the City and Robert E. Duff, the submittal of 
the zoning application for the Project constitutes a petition for voluntary annexation by the owner 
of the Property.  
 
We look forward to working with you on this project.  
 

Sincerely, 
 

Talley J. Williams  
Talley Williams 
Partner 
 

cc: Steve Durhman  

mailto:TWilliams@mwswtexas.com


Burelson Crossing East
Warrant Requests

B3 Code Section Description Development Issue Proposed Alternative Warrant Determination  Response
5.2.002(b)

5.2.002(c)

5.2.002(d)

6.3.003(a)(3)

6.3.005(d) (1)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

6.3.006(b) (5)

6.3.006(b) (8)

6.3.006(b) (9)

6.3.008(d)

6.3.009(b)

6.3.009(d)

6.5.003 ‐ A

6.5.003 ‐ D

7.3.003 ‐ Reg Comm

7.3.003 ‐ Connector

7.3.013(d)(1)

Partially Approved.  A 10' sidewalk will also be required along the 720' grid street 
to the east.

Denied at this time.   This warrant review is appropriate at the time of Public 
Improvement Plan.  Staff would be ameniable to changing the spacing 
requirement, but the number of trees required will still be determined on a 30 
foot spacing for the length of the street.

Approved.  The 55.5 foot ROW is sufficient for the extension of Wagon Wheel, 
which is a 60' ROW.

Denied.  Willing to discuss alternative based on artitectural elevations and features 
that meet the intent to be human scale during the site development plan process.

Denied.   Not needed.  All buildings shown can be parallel to a public street that is 
not Wagon Wheel.

Denied.  This warrant cannot be considered until the Site Development Plan 
review with actual building elevations provided.

Denied.  Willing to discuss a reduction to 60% during Site Development Plan.

Denied at this time. Can be determined during SDP, once an interal 330' drive aisle 
grid is depicted that shows interal pedestrian 

Denied at this time.  Will determine spacing at Site Development Plan.

Denied at this time.  Will deterime total number of driveways at Site Development 
Plan but are willing to entertain mutliple driveways that meet spacing 
requirements.

Denied.  More detail on pedestrian access to each building and specific 
architectural features that will be provided in lieu of providing interaction between 
the public and private realms is needed that will be determined at SDP.

Partially Approved.  Screening will be provided from all  public streets at a height 
of 3 feet.

Denied.  Setbacks will be deternimed by the ICC requirements.

1,320 block provided by private drive aisle with sidewalks and trees ‐ Approved.
2,880 farm lot provided with private drive aisle ‐ Denied.  It does not meet TxDOT 
spacing for driveways on SH 71.
The B³ Code requires a maximum block perimeter of 1,320 feet in P‐5.  For this 
proposed development, staff would support an internal private block perimeter of 
1,320 feet, with clearly established private drive aisles, with 6 foot pedestrian 
walkways on one side of the drive aisles.  The 2,880 foot farm lot perimter must 
be provided with publically dedicated streets that meet the B³ Code 
requirements in Chapter 7.

Partially approved. All private drives that are taking the place of the 330 grid will 
have trees and a six foot sidewalk.

Denied at this time.   This warrant review is appropriate at the time of Site 
Development Plan.

Private drive aisle provided at the 330 foot block level would be considered in lieu 
of the publically dedicated street and not an alley. Warrant not needed.
Denied.  Reviewed at Site Development Plan and bas Traffic should take access off 
of Secondary Frontages based on the 720' grid.

Propose no additional ROW for Wagon Wheel.  Edward Burleson was platted 
with a 10' ROW Reserve on the opposite side of the street.  Any additional 
ROW required along the project side of Burleson shall be determined and 
commensurate with any proposed improvements to Burleson

Limit this requirement to be from eastern property line along adjacent 
properties only
Allow ceiling heights to exceed 25'

Limit glazing to 70% of the building front for small multi‐tenant buildings, 
25% of the building front for larger retail buildings, an no glazing would be 
required for free‐standing single use buildings such as restuarants and banks.  
The building fronts shall be either the primary side of the building facing a 
public street, or the the side of the building facing the parking area servicing 
that building, whichever front the tenant / user has the storefront entrance. 

Allow any building facades to be parrallel to street ROW, or all the bulding 
front to deviate from being parallel to street ROW's

Allow façade to frontage width ratio to be reduced to 60% and measured 
cumulatively for entire block, not individual lots.  Remove building placement 
requirement relative to ROW.

Proposed driveways shall meet the minimum seperation from a public street 
of 40 feet, as required by this section

Allow parking in any Layer

Limit screening to be required from Wagon Wheel, Edward Burleson and SH 
71, and to include landscaping to a height of three feet

Driveway access to public streets shall meet 200' spacing between 
centerlines.  Driveways utilized for fire or truck access, shall be wide enough 
to meet IFC requirements, and to allow safe manueverability by truck traffic.  
Driveways with large volume of traffic may be widened as necessary to 
accomodate traffic volume.

Allow 30' wide private drives without street trees and sidewalks, to be 
utilized as boundary of blocks rather than public streets, as shown on 
Concept Site Plan.  A public street in this location would encourage cut‐
through traffic that would conflict with proposed service traffic and create a 
safety issue.

Propose a 6' walkway within median between parking rows across Lot 6, 
Provide additional pedestrian connectivity throughout site and to public 
ROW's.  Alternate pedestrian connectivity will be provided but is not required 
to align with proposed public or private drives.
Eliminate this requirement

Allow vehicular access from either alleys or public streets

To provide adequate traffic circulation, access should be taken from primary 
and secondary frontages

Requires parking to be located in the 2nd or 3rd Layer

Requires all parking to be screened either by building or other 
screening material
Prohibits parking to be located within the rear setback

Mid‐block lots with more than 40' of frontage are only allowed 
one driveway, with a max width of 24' for two‐way drives

For lots with more than 80' of frontage, driveway spacing shall 
be 300'

Max block perimeter length of 1,320 ft

330' x 330' block size

Requires all vehicular access to be taken from alleys, if alleys are 
provided

For Corner Lots, driveways must be located in the Secondary 
Frontage
Driveways shall be located as far as practical from adjacent 
public streets

Building façade to be located within 30' of street corner and 
parking prohibited in First Layer

20' wide midblock pedestrian walkway for blocks that exceed (b) 
and (c)

Due to the nature of this project (Retail Shopping Center), limiting block perimeter and block size 
is too restrictive and does not allow major retailers to utilize their prototypical buildings and site 
plans.  Eastern driveway will be used for loading and servicing the shopping center by 18 wheeler 
trucks.  Using the Eastern driveway as a City Street would create a safety issue between non‐
shopping center traffic and 18 wheeler trucks and other service vehicles, as the street could be 
used as a cut through street.  The additional ROW requested to meet the 330 foot grid would 
prevent many anchors and small tenant buildings from the shopping center due to the reduced 
parking and inadquate service / loading areas.  

This is an ambiguous statement and requirement

For a Retail Shopping Center of this nature, limiting access would limit options for customers and 
thus create internal traffic congestion

Trees every 30' on center along both sides of the road

Max first floor story of a Commercial building cannot exceed 25' 
from floor to ceiling

First floor of Commercial buildings shall have 70% minimum 
glazing 

Limits Parking to Layer 3

Major Retailers expect their customers to be able to park in front of the front of the building for 
convenience, especially for customers with physical challenges

By definition, all parking areas would be required to be screened from view up to six feet in 
height, along public streets and adjacent lots and properties

For a Retail Shopping Center of this nature, many lot lines could potentially cross shared parking 
areas
Many major retailers standard prototypical buildings have ceiling heights greater than 25'.  This 
would deter those retailers from this shopping center.

As written, this would require the area of all four sides of a building to be glazed with 70% glazing, 
which is problematic for the sides and rears of any retail building

Major Retailers expect their customers to be able to park in front of the front of the building for 
convenience, especially for customers with physical challenges

20' pedestrian walkway, with landscaping, would eliminate 2 rows of parking

For a Retail Shopping Center of this nature with large corner lots, this requirement cannot be met 
due to the parking and service / loading area needs of the retailers

Many proposed private drives would qualify as an alley, thus prohibiting access from public 
streets.

Major Retailers require lots to have more than 80 feet of frontage.  Limiting access to one 
driveway would create internal traffic congestion.  Fire Code requires driveways to be 25' wide.  
Driveways with large volumes of traffic would be limited to one lane out, which would create 
traffic congestion

Due to the definition of "building frontage" and surrounding conditions, this project would require 
at least one public road to be curvilinear, thus making this requirement architecturally difficult to 
meet and would limit architectural articulation and creativity.

To measure this for each individual lot is problematic, especially for smaller single building lots like 
restuarants that require substantial parking area relative to building

Requires that front façade be at least 80% of the frontage width, 
requires the building to be located between 2'‐15' from the 
ROW / Frontage

Building frontage façade must be parallel to the ROW Frontage 
Line

This would require 70' of ROW for Wagon Wheel rather than 56', and would increase Edward 
Burleson from 60' to 67'.  

Requires an additional 7' of ROW on each side of a road if P5 is 
located on both sides of the road

Allow parking in any Layer

16' wide sidewalks along both sides of road, trees every 30' on 
center both sides of road

16' wide sidewalks are excessively wide for this type of project and would not be consistent with 
adjacent shopping center.  Trees evenly spaced at 30' would detract from a native / natural 
landscape scheme.

Propose 10' wide sidewalks along one side of Wagon Wheel, and along the 
project side of Edward Burleson and SH 71.  Allow more variation in tree 
spacing as determined by Landscape Architect, to be consistent and similar to 
the requirements established in the Burleson Crossing Chapter 380 
Agreement.

Allow more variation in tree spacing as determined by Landscape Architect, 
to be consistent and similar to the requirements established in the Burleson 
Crossing Chapter 380 Agreement.

Trees evenly spaced at 30' would detract from a native / natural landscape scheme

The bold Warrant Determination would require the Eastern Driveway to be 
a public street, thereby creating the issues outlined.  

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to define the 
project constraints and to properly plan and market the Shopping Center to 
potential retailers.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to define 
driveway requirements so as to market major large retailers

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to define 
driveway requirements so as to market major large retailers

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to define 
driveway requirements so as to market major large retailers

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to ensure that 
parking meets retailer requirements and an adequate number of spaces can 
be provided.  Shopping Center cannot be planned or marketed otherwise

ICC doesn't address parking within setbacks or regulate zoning setbacks.

Architectural elevations can be developed to meet human scale 
independantly of allowing 25' ceiling heights.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning to ensure that buildings 
facing Wagon Wheel do not have to meet this requirement.

As codified, the glazing requirement is a deterent for a number of potential 
retailers.  This warrant needs to be determined with the Zoning as the 
project cannot be marketed to potential retailers without a clear 
understanding of what glazing is required.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to define the 
project constraints and to properly plan and market the Shopping Center to 
potential retailers.
This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to ensure that 
parking meets retailer requirements and an adequate number of spaces can 
be provided.  Shopping Center cannot be planned or marketed otherwise

Encouraging pedestrian traffic along the Eastern Driveway in the close 
proximity to the loading and servicing area of the shopping center is 
unnecessary as there are no pedestrian destinations along that route, and 
creates potential safety issues with service trucks.

Attachment 3



Burelson Crossing East
Warrant Requests

B3 Code Section Description Development Issue Proposed Alternative Warrant Determination  Response
7.4.002(a)

7.4.002(b)

Art. 7.5

B3 Tech. Manual

2.1.006(a)

3.2.008(c)

3.2.013(a)(1)

3.2.013(a)(4)

3.2.001(b)

This list of warrants includes only those code sections that can be identified at this stage, and thus may not be all inclusive of warrants ultimately needed for the project.  Additional Warrant Requests may be made in the future as the project progresses through the subdivision 
and site development phases of the project.

Denied.  All of the building shown (except for lot 3) show at least one side with no 
parking between the building and the street ROW.  

Approved.

Per Section 7.3.014 of the B³ Code, 2 inch trees are acceptable as long as they are a 
minimum height of 10 feet.
Denied.  Can be reviewed at Site Development Plan review

Partially Approved, if providing private civic space.

Partially Approved. The B³ Code requires a maximum block perimeter of 1 320 feet 
in P‐5 For this proposed development staff would support an internal private block 
perimeter of 1,320 feet, with clearly established private drive aisles, with 6 foot 
pedestrian walkways on one side of the drive aisles.  The 2,880 foot farm lot 
perimter must be provided with publically dedicated streets that meet the B³ 
Code requirements in Chapter 7.

Denied.  The Civic Space requirement is approximately 157,251.6 square feet.   
Staff recommends providing a mix of private civic spaces as open green lawns, bus 
stop plazas along the streets, outdoor seating and benches.  Provide a proposal on 
the Conceptual Plan.

Allow plants to be procured from any competant wholesale nursery supplier

Allow P5 to exceed the maximum pedestrian shed requirement

P5 street sidewalks to be min. 10' wide and located wholly 
within the street ROW.

For a Retail Shopping Center of this nature, sidewalks along both sides of Wagon Wheel is 
redundant and provides no additional connectivity.  Requiring sidewalks to be contained within 
ROW limits the ability to incorporate sidewalks into a native landscape scheme

Require one 10' sidewalk along one side of Wagon Wheel.  Allow all street 
sidewalks to meander out of ROW, but to be incorporated into a sidewalk 
easement as necessary

Trees evenly spaced at 30' would detract from a native / natural landscape scheme.  4" caliper 
trees are very scarce at this time due to last year's freeze and other conditions
Required standards further limits the availability of procuring a widely varying and diverse mix of 
plant material and species
With the adjacent existing developments to this project that would be classified as P5 Place Types, 
this requirement cannot be met

Allow parking in any Layer

Allow more variation in tree spacing and tree size with 2" minimum, as 
determined by Landscape Architect

Though this project slightly exceeds 13.6 acres, it is considered a relatively small shopping center 
and thus cannot accommodate a dedicated civic space

Major Retailers expect their customers to be able to park in front of the front of the building for 
convenience, especially for customers with physical challenges

Due to the nature of this project (Retail Shopping Center), limiting block perimeter and block size 
is too restrictive and does not allow major retailers to utilize their prototypical buildings and site 
plans.

Street trees shall be 4" caliper and spaced every 30' on center

Requires plant material to meet very strict nursery / propagation 
standards

330' max block length, 1,320' max block perimeter

20' Pedestrian Way if block length exceeds 330'

Requires a Civic Space for development over 13.6 acres

Requires parking and drive aisles to be located within Layer 2 or 
3

Requires pedestrian shed to have certain place type percentages

Allow 30' wide private drives without street trees and sidewalks, to be 
utilized as boundary of blocks rather than public streets, as shown on 
Concept Site Plan.  A public street in this location would encourage cut‐
through traffic that would conflict with proposed service traffic and create a 
safety issue.

Propose considering the existing public space constructed with the Burleson 
Crossing shopping center, which consists of a +/‐ 9000 SF gathering space, 
stage, lighting, and historical educational plaques, as consideration for the 
civic space requirement for this project.  According to the management for 
Burleson Crossing, that public space has not be reserved or used by the 
public since constructed over ten years ago.  

The bold Warrant Determination would require the Eastern Driveway to be 
a public street, thereby creating the issues outlined.  

The Civic Space requirement quoted is approximately 3.6 acres, or 20% of 
the gross area of the site.  We're not aware of a bus service provider in 
Bastrop other than CARTS, which doesn't run specific bus routes.  

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to ensure that 
parking meets retailer requirements and an adequate number of spaces can 
be provided.  Shopping Center cannot be planned or marketed otherwise as 
Layer 1 is defined as that space between the front of the building and the 
public realm, not just any building side.  



ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

70.00'

57.00'

180.00'

60
.0

0'

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

92.00'

113.00'

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

0.
69

4 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
8

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX 1.

72
6 

AC
R

ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
9,

 1
0,

 1
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

3.
14

2 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

ES
TA

TE
S

LO
T 

12
A

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

1.
99

9 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
5 

C
O

R
E

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

LO
T 

8-
A

1.
61

9 
AC

R
ES

LO
T 

9-
A

1.
37

2 
AC

R
ES

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

19.81 ACRE TRACT

ERHARD LEGACY PARTNERS, LTD.REMAINDER OF A CALLED 30.00 ACRES
DESCRIBED IN

DOCUMENT NO. 201502919
O.P.R.B.C.TX.

AND
VOLUME 640, PAGE 14

AUGUST 4, 1992
O.P.R.B.C.TX

ZONING: DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

SI
G

N

STOP

FF
 =

 3
75

.5
0

IB
C 

BA
N

K

STOP

STOP

STO
P

STOP

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

STOP

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

25
1.

83
'

244.25'

193.00'

19
5.

00
'

124.98'

19
5.

67
'

19
3.

98
'

74.65'

77
.2

2'

10
0.

00
'

50.00'

0

SCALE IN FEET

502550 100

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

SHEET NO.

OF SHEETS

A141-0401-405

BU
R

LE
SO

N
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

PL
AN

S 
FO

R
 S

IT
E 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

BY
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

LJ
A

 E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 &
 S

ur
ve

yi
ng

, I
nc

.

Au
sti

n, 
Te

xa
s  

78
73

5

53
16

 H
igh

wa
y 2

90
 W

es
t

Su
ite

 15
0

Ph
on

e 5
12

.43
9.4

70
0

Fa
x 5

12
.43

9.4
71

6
D

R
AW

N
 B

Y:

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

AM
E:

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

JOB NUMBER:

Pl
ot

 D
at

e/
Ti

m
e:

 M
ar

. 0
3,

 2
2 

- 0
8:

20
:2

6

FR
N-

F-
13

86
EA

ST
 T

R
AC

T 
- M

AR
C

H
 2

02
2

3/3/2022

SIDEWALK CONNECTION
TO BE DETERMINED

AT SITE PLAN

PUBLIC DRIVE

PRIVATE DRIVE

SIDEWALKS

jbills
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4



W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

0.
69

4 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
8

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX 1.

72
6 

AC
R

ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
9,

 1
0,

 1
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

3.
14

2 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

ES
TA

TE
S

LO
T 

12
A

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
4 

M
IX

1.
99

9 
AC

R
ES

SE
TT

LE
M

EN
T 

O
N

 T
H

E 
C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 
1

ZO
N

IN
G

: P
5 

C
O

R
E

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

LO
T 

8-
A

1.
61

9 
AC

R
ES

LO
T 

9-
A

1.
37

2 
AC

R
ES

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

19.81 ACRE TRACT

ERHARD LEGACY PARTNERS, LTD.REMAINDER OF A CALLED 30.00 ACRES
DESCRIBED IN

DOCUMENT NO. 201502919
O.P.R.B.C.TX.

AND
VOLUME 640, PAGE 14

AUGUST 4, 1992
O.P.R.B.C.TX

ZONING: DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE

SI
G

N

STOP

FF
 =

 3
75

.5
0

IB
C 

BA
N

K

STOP

STOP

STO
P

STOP

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

STOP

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

N
87

°4
1'

50
"E

 5
41

.7
3'

N2°15'34.31"W 1494.97'

A9
8 

BL
AK

EY
, N

AN
C

Y 
TR

AC
T 

2

ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

70.00'

57.00'

180.00'

60
.0

0'

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

92.00'

113.00'

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E

25
1.

83
'

244.25'

193.00'

19
5.

00
'

124.98'

19
5.

67
'

19
3.

98
'

74.65'

77
.2

2'

10
0.

00
'

50.00'

70.00'

57.00'

92.00'

87.78'

124.98'

19
5.

67
'

19
3.

98
'

0

SCALE IN FEET

502550 100

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

SHEET NO.

OF SHEETS

A141-0401-405

BU
R

LE
SO

N
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

PL
AN

S 
FO

R
 S

IT
E 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

BY
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

LJ
A

 E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 &
 S

ur
ve

yi
ng

, I
nc

.

Au
sti

n, 
Te

xa
s  

78
73

5

53
16

 H
igh

wa
y 2

90
 W

es
t

Su
ite

 15
0

Ph
on

e 5
12

.43
9.4

70
0

Fa
x 5

12
.43

9.4
71

6
D

R
AW

N
 B

Y:

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

AM
E:

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

JOB NUMBER:

Pl
ot

 D
at

e/
Ti

m
e:

 M
ar

. 0
8,

 2
2 

- 1
3:

35
:5

8

FR
N-

F-
13

86
EA

ST
 T

R
AC

T 
- S

EP
TE

M
BE

R
 2

02
1

3/8/2022

SIDEWALK CONNECTION
TO BE DETERMINED

AT SITE PLAN

Attachment 5



W
AG

O
N W

HEEL

W
AG

O
N W

HEEL

0.694 AC
R

ES

SETTLEM
EN

T O
N

 TH
E C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 8
ZO

N
IN

G
: P4 M

IX1.726 AC
R

ES

SETTLEM
EN

T O
N

 TH
E C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 9, 10, 11
ZO

N
IN

G
: P4 M

IX

3.142 AC
R

ES

SETTLEM
EN

T ESTATES
LO

T 12A
ZO

N
IN

G
: P4 M

IX

1.999 AC
R

ES

SETTLEM
EN

T O
N

 TH
E C

O
LO

R
AD

O
LO

T 1
ZO

N
IN

G
: P5 C

O
R

E

20' T.E./P.U
.E.

LO
T 8-A

1.619 AC
R

ES

LO
T 9-A

1.372 AC
R

ES

20' T.E./P.U
.E.

20' T.E./P.U
.E.

20' T.E./P.U
.E.

10' R
.O

.W
.

R
ESER

VE/P.U
.E.

(5/14A)

25' B.L.
(5/14A)

20' T.E./P.U
.E.

(5/14A)

BASTR
O

P C
O

U
N

TY ( ETJ)
BASTR

O
P C

ITY LIM
ITS

19.81 ACRE TRACT

ERHARD LEGACY PARTNERS, LTD.
REMAINDER OF A CALLED 30.00 ACRES

DESCRIBED IN
DOCUMENT NO. 201502919

O.P.R.B.C.TX.
AND

VOLUME 640, PAGE 14
AUGUST 4, 1992

O.P.R.B.C.TX

ZONING: DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTZONING: P5 CORE

ZONING: P5 CORE
ZONING: P5 CORE ZONING: P5 CORE

322.788 AC
R

ES

A98 BLAKEY, N
AN

C
Y TR

AC
T 2

STATE H
W

Y. 71

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

70.00'

57.00'

180.00'

60.00'

65.00'
ROW

40.00'
PVMT

92.00'

113.00'

251.83'

244.25'

193.00'

195.00'

124.98'

195.67'

193.98'

74.65'

77.22'

100.00'

50.00'

85.97'

55.50'
R

O
W

142.13'

55.50'

ROW

BLAKEY LAN
E

LOT 5

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

LOT 4

LOT 6

BUILDING A
COMMERCIAL

3,450SF
HT = 30' MAX

PROP.
DETENTION

POND 'A'

BUILDING H
COMMERCIAL

5,000SF
HT = 30' MAX

BUILDING B
COMMERCIAL

11,900SF
HT = 30' MAX

COMMERCIAL
HT = 60' MAX
BUILDING F

37,600SF

COMMERCIAL
HT = 60' MAX
BUILDING G

61,200SF

BUILDING E
COMMERCIAL

10,800SF
HT = 30' MAX

BUILDING D
COMMERCIAL

17,900SF
HT = 60' MAX

BUILDING C
COMMERCIAL

24,250SF
HT = 60' MAX

TOTAL R.O.W. AREA = 144,893 SF (3.326 AC.)

SCALE IN FEET

0 502550 100

Attachment 6



CSJ 0265-04-051

R.O.W. MAP

AS PER TxDOT

ACCESS DENIED

153'*

322'*

 See Chapter 2, Section 5 For Variance Process.
 For Spacing Less Than  Minimum A Variance Is Required.  
 TxDOT Access Management Manual Table 2-1.  
*Minimum Spacing 425' Spacing As Per

JESSICA PL.

BLAKEY LANE

E
D

W
A

R
D
 

B
U

R
L
E
S

O
N
 

L
A

N
E

D
U

R
R
 

D
R
IV

E

E
X

T
E

N
S
IO

N
F

U
T

U
R

E

Radius=2864.789'

Radius=2864.789'

S
E
T

T
L
E

M
E

N
T
 

D
R
.

905+00

910+00

915+00

920+00

925+00

930+00

935+00

940+00

945+00

950+00

955+00

960+00

1
1

L
J

A
 E

n
g
in

e
e
r
in

g
, 
In

c
.

F
R

N
 -
 F
-1

3
8
6

A
L
T
 
1

SCALE:

1 : 100 H

E
D

W
A

R
D
 

B
U

R
L
E
S

O
N
 

L
A

N
E
 

A
T
 

S
H
 

7
1

T
H

O
R

O
U

G
H

F
A

R
E
 

A
L
T

E
R

N
A

T
IV

E
S

LEGEND

TxDOT CONTROL OF ACCESS LINE

EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY LINE

PROPOSED RIGHT OF WAY LINE

PROPOSED DRIVEWAY 

FUTURE PAVEMENT

PROPOSED PAVEMENT

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W
.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

PROP. R.O.W.

PROP. R.O
.W.

PROP. R.O
.W.

P
R

O
P
. 

R
.O
.W

.

80'

80'

55.5'

55.5'

Radius=60'

Radius=600'

80'

E
X
IS

T
. 

R
.O
.W

.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

71
TEXAS

71
TEXAS

TEXAS

304

100+00

105+00

110+00

115+00

120+00

1
2
5

+
0
0

1
3
0

+
0
0

1
3
5

+
0
0

1
4
0

+
0
0

Attachment 7

dmiller
Typewritten Text
DRAFT / CONCEPTUAL




S
E
T

T
L
E

M
E

N
T
 

D
R
.

B
U

R
L
E
S

O
N
 

L
A

N
E

E
D

W
A

R
D
 

935+00

940+00

945+00

$
D

A
T

E
$

$
$
$
$
$

D
G

N
$

S
P

E
C
I

F
I

C
A

T
I

O
N
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$

S
Y

S
T
I

M
E
$
$
$
$
$

LJA Engineering, Inc.
FRN - F-1386

0' 100'50'25'

SCALE: 1"=100'

LEGEND

EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY LINE

PROPOSED SIDEWALK/PED RAMP 

PROPOSED PAVEMENT

EXISTING PAVEMENT

EXIST. R.O.W.

100'425' 360'

100'

TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING DRIVEWAY

TEXAS

304

BURLESON CROSSING

OPTION 1

RIGHT TURN LANE

SITE DRIVEWAY

71
TEXAS

dmiller
Typewritten Text
DRAFT / CONCEPTUAL




Vol LOS Delay Vol LOS Delay Vol LOS Delay Vol LOS Delay Vol LOS Delay Vol LOS Delay

INTRXN 1397 C 22.1 1783 C 23.4 1909 C 23.7 1547 C 25.4 1909 C 22 1547 B 18.3

EBL 21 D 43.6 27 D 44 63 D 46.3 39 D 44.7 63 D 43.1 39 C 33.3

EBT 212 271 271 244 271 244

EBR 70 89 89 89 89 89

NBT 149 C 31.9 190 C 32.4 221 C 32.8 219 C 32.8 221 C 31.3 219 C 23.4

NBR 273 C 32.8 348 C 33.6 348 C 34.1 348 C 33.6 348 C 33.5 348 C 23.9

SBL 285 364 399 91 399 91

SBT 387 494 518 517 518 517

INTRXN 1849 C 23.2 2360 C 28.7 2719 C 31.1 2064 C 28.2 2719 C 24.4 2064 B 19.8

EBL 48 D 44.2 61 D 45 143 D 52.2 88 D 47 143 D 46 88 C 34

EBT 326 416 416 374 416 374

EBR 67 86 86 86 86 86

NBT 146 D 36.6 186 D 37.2 256 D 38.5 251 D 38.4 256 D 38.5 251 C 28.8

NBR 274 D 37.2 350 D 44.5 350 D 47.8 350 D 38.1 350 D 47.8 350 C 28.5

SBL 445 568 690 142 690 142

SBT 543 693 778 773 778 773

INTRXN 1996 C 25.3 2546 D 35.9 2964 D 38.1 2235 C 32.4 2964 C 26.8 2235 C 22.1

EBL 38 D 41.8 48 D 42.3 148 D 49.4 81 D 44.2 148 D 42.7 81 C 33.1

EBT 387 494 494 445 494 445

EBR 88 112 112 112 112 112

NBT 163 D 40.4 208 D 41.2 293 D 43.2 287 D 43 293 D 43.2 287 C 31

NBR 268 D 40.6 342 D 52.9 342 D 54.1 342 D 41.2 342 D 54.1 342 C 30.1

SBL 486 620 757 155 757 155

SBT 566 722 818 813 818 813

SH
 7

1
 E

as
tb

o
u

n
d

A
cc

e
ss

 R
d

@
 S

H
 3

0
4

2022-EXISTING 2027-FUTURE NO BUILD 2027-FUTURE BUILD 2027-MITIGATED

No Blakey Extension No Blakey Extension No Blakey Extension With Blakey Extension No Blakey Extension With Blakey Extension

HCM 2000 HCM 2000 HCM 2000 HCM 2000

D 36.4

A 3.3 A 3.7 A 4 A 2

D 54.3 D 52.3 D 48.8

A 3.4 A 2.5

W
EE

K
D

A
Y

 P
M

D 54.9 E 72.2 E

W
EE

K
D

A
Y

 A
M

D 49.8 D 54.3

40

A 3.7 A 5 A 9.7 A 2.5 A

72.2 E 62.6 D 53.5 D

44.3

4.5 A 2.7

SA
TU

R
D

A
Y

 P
EA

K

E 56.8 F 90 F 90 E 71.1 D 54.4 D

3.2A 4.3 A 6.1 B 12.6 A 2.8 A 6.3 A



Vol LOS Delay Vol LOS Delay Vol LOS Delay Vol LOS Delay Vol LOS Delay Vol LOS Delay

INTRXN 1331 D 37 1698 D 42.1 1930 D 47 1299 C 33.1 1930 D 38.4 1299 C 28.1

WBL 319 D 41.2 407 D 48.8 407 D 53.8 414 D 41.4 407 D 45.2 414 C 34.4

WBT 284 362 389 42.7 310 389 D 41.5 310 C 33.1

WBR 184 235 288 0 84 288 C 34.4 84 C 27.3

NBL 124 A 4.3 158 A 4.6 158 A 4.2 158 A 4.3 158 A 3.7 158 A 3.7

NBT 52 A 4.4 66 A 4.6 134 A 4.5 107 A 4.5 134 A 4.3 107 A 3.9

SBT 351 448 507 191 507 191

SBR 17 22 47 35 47 35

INTRXN 1799 D 42 2296 E 62.5 2954 F 140.2 1916 D 40.2 2954 E 62.5 1916 C 29.6

WBL 469 D 47.3 599 E 74.1 599 F 120.2 623 D 54.6 599 E 57.9 623 D 37

WBT 382 488 580 458 580 D 49.3 458 C 33.4

WBR 208 265 385 124 385 C 33.3 124 C 24

NBL 125 A 4.9 160 A 5.2 160 A 4.7 160 A 4 160 A 3.6 160 A 3.2

NBT 74 A 5.1 94 A 5.7 245 A 4.6 185 A 4.5 245 A 4.6 185 A 3.9

SBT 519 662 869 292 869 292

SBR 22 28 116 74 116 74

INTRXN 1984 D 45.3 2533 F 81.6 3301 F 183.9 2120 D 43.2 3301 F 81.2 2120 C 31.5

WBL 444 D 50.1 567 F 89.6 567 F 96.5 594 E 60.1 567 E 70.2 594 D 40

WBT 486 620 724 573 724 E 58 573 D 35.5

WBR 235 300 447 146 447 C 34.1 146 C 24

NBL 115 A 4.2 147 A 4.5 147 A 3.5 147 A 3.4 147 A 2.6 147 A 2.8

NBT 83 A 4.5 106 A 5.3 291 A 5.5 218 A 5.5 291 A 5.5 218 A 4.6

SBT 596 761 994 358 994 358

SBR 25 32 131 84 131 84

SH
 7

1
 W

e
st

b
o

u
n

d
 A

cc
e

ss
 

R
d

 

@
 E

d
w

ar
d

 B
u

rl
e

so
n

 L
an

e 2022-EXISTING 2027-FUTURE NO BUILD 2027-FUTURE BUILD 2027-MITIGATED

No Blakey Extension No Blakey Extension No Blakey Extension With Blakey Extension No Blakey Extension

W
EE

K
D

A
Y

 A
M

D 37.2 D 41.4

With Blakey Extension

HCM 2000 HCM 2000 HCM 2000 HCM 2000

39.1

D D 38.2

D 49.5 E 56.3 E 70.5 D 44.6 D 52.3 D

W
EE

K
D

A
Y

 P
M

D 40.5 D 54.5 84.4 D 46.2

D 54.1 F 86.3 F 265.3 D

F

SA
TU

R
D

A
Y

 P
EA

K

D 41.8 E 65.7

45 F 110.4 D 41.5

E 59.6 F 120.9 F 42.5

F 151.9 D 49.3

328.3 D 46.4 F 151.8 D



P L A N N I N G  D E P A R T M E N T  
1311 Chestnut  St reet  ●  PO Box 427 ●  Bast rop,  Texas 78602 ●  512.332.8840 ●  

www.c i tyo fbas trop.org  

Notice of Pending Zoning Change 
City of Bastrop 
Planning & Zoning Commission 
and City Council 

Dear Property Owner: 

The Planning and Zoning Commission will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, March 31, 2022 at 
6:00 p.m. and the City Council will conduct a public hearing (first reading) Tuesday, April 26, 2022 at 
6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas to 
consider action on a Zoning Concept Scheme, changing the zoning for 12.95 +/- acres out of the Nancy 
Blakey Survey from P2 Rural to P5 Core and establishing a plan on 19.81 +/- acres located at the northeast 
corner of State Highway 71 and Edward Burleson Drive, within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas 

Applicant(s):  Kevin Pierce / Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart and Williams 
Owner(s): Erhard Legacy Partners LTD  
Legal Description: 19.837 acres of land out of Nancy Blakey Survey, Abstract 98 (R77734) 

The site location map and a letter from the property owner is attached for reference. 

As a property owner within 200 feet of the above referenced property, you are being notified of the upcoming 
meetings per the Bastrop Code of Ordinances.  For more information or to provide comments on this project, 
you may contact the Planning & Development Department at (512) 332-8840, plan@cityofbastrop.org, visit 
the office at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas, or mail the response card below to PO Box 427, Bastrop, 
Texas 78602. 

PROPERTY OWNER’S RESPONSE  
As a property owner within 200 feet: (please check one) 

☐ I am in favor of the request.
☐ I am opposed to the request.
☐ I have no objection to the request.

Property Owner Name:   

Property Address:  

Mailing Address (if different than property address): 

Phone (optional):   Email (optional): 

Property Owner’s Signature:  

Additional Comments (Optional): 

Re: Burleson Crossing Zoning Concept Scheme 

Attachment 8



 

P L A N N I N G  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  D E P A R T M E N T  
1311 Chestnut  St reet  ●  Bast rop,  Texas 78602 ●  512.332.8840 ●  www.c i tyofbastrop.org  

Notice of Pending Zoning Change 
City of Bastrop 
City Council 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
The City Council will conduct a public hearing (first reading) on Tuesday, May 24, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. and 
a meeting (second reading) June 14, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 
1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas to consider action on a Zoning Concept Scheme, changing the 
zoning for 12.95 +/- acres out of the Nancy Blakey Survey from P2 Rural to P5 Core and establishing a 
plan on 19.837 +/- acres located at the northeast corner of State Highway 71 and Edward Burleson Drive, 
within the city limits of Bastrop, Texas 
 

Applicant(s):  Kevin Pierce / Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart and Williams 
Owner(s):  Erhard Legacy Partners LTD     
Legal Description:  19.837 acres of land out of Nancy Blakey Survey, Abstract 98 (R77734) 

 

The site location map and a letter from the property owner is attached for reference. 

 

As a property owner within 200 feet of the above referenced property, you are being notified of the upcoming 
meetings per the Bastrop Code of Ordinances and Texas Local Government Code.  For more information 
or to provide comments on this project, you may contact the Planning & Development Department at (512) 
332-8840, plan@cityofbastrop.org, visit the office or mail the response card below to 1311 Chestnut Street, 
Bastrop, Texas 78602. The staff report will be available 72 hours before the meeting at 
www.cityofbastrop.org/page/cc.2022agenda 
 
PROPERTY OWNER’S RESPONSE  
As a property owner within 200 feet: (please check one) 

☐ I am in favor of the request. 
☐ I am opposed to the request. 
☐ I have no objection to the request.  

Property Owner Name:             
 
Property Address:            
  
Mailing Address (if different than property address):        
   
Phone (optional):      Email (optional):       
 
Property Owner’s Signature:            
 
Additional Comments (Optional): 
              
 
              
Re: Burleson Crossing East Zoning Concept Scheme 







SH 71

BLAKEY

SETTLEM
ENT

ED
W

AR
D

 B
U

R
LE

SO
N

TRAIL DRIVE

SH
 3

04

WAGON WHEEL

SH 71

SH 71
SH 71

Attachment 9
Zoning Map

Burleson Crossing East ³Date: 12/13/2021

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   1 inch = 300 feet

BLAIR

AGNES

BLAKEY
JESSICA

DUFF

SCHAEFER

CHARLES

NICOLE

HA
SL

ER
 SH

OR
ES

KATY B

ANNIKA

HOME DEPOT

HUNTERS POINT

SETTLEMENT

JENNIFER BR
YA

NT

ST
ER

LI
NG

ED
WA

RD
 B

UR
LE

SO
N

ELIZABETH

OR
CH

AR
D

STEEL SHOT AGNES

¬«304
¬«71

DU
FF

Legend
Place Type Zoning

Overlay
Nature
Rural
Neighborhood
Mix
Core
Civic Space
Employment Center
Planned Development
Development Agreement



SH 71

SH 71 FR

BLAKEY

SETTLEM
ENT

PATTO
N

SH
 3

04
ED

W
AR

D
 B

U
R

LE
SO

N

BLAIR

TRAIL DRIVE

SH 71 RP

BILLS

JESSICA

SH
 7

1 
C

R
O

SS
O

VE
R

SH 71 FR

SH 71 FR

SH 71 FR

SH 71

NGHBRESD

GNRLCMCL GNRLCMCL
TRANSRES

GNRLCMCLGNRLCMCL

GNRLCMCL

PUBL/INST

PROFSERV

NGHBRESD

NGHBRESD

Attachment 10
Future Land Use Map

Zoning Concept Scheme Request ³Date: 12/13/2021

The accuracy and precision of this cartographic
data is limited and should be used for information
/planning purposes only.  This data does not 
replace surveys conducted by registered Texas
land surveyors nor does it constitute an "official"
verification of zoning, land use classification, or
 other classification set forth in local, state, or
federal regulatory processes. The City of Bastrop,
nor any of its employees, do not make any warranty
of merchantability and fitness for particular purpose,
 or assumes any legal liablity or responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or usefullness of any such
information, nor does it represent that its use would
not infringe upon privately owned rights.   1 inch = 400 feet

BLAKEY

BLAIR

AGNES

JESSICA

DUFF

SCHAEFER

CHARLES

NICOLE

HA
SL

ER
 SH

OR
ES

KATY B

ANNIKA

HOME DEPOT

SETTLEMENT

JE
NN

IFE
R

ED
WA

RD
 B

UR
LE

SO
N

ELIZABETH

THOMPSON

OR
CH

AR
D

STEEL SHOT AGNES
¬«304

¬«71
¬«71

Legend
Label

Burleson Crossing East

Proposed Land Use
Land Use Description

Parks and Open Space

Rural Residential

Neighborhood Residential

Transitional Residential

Neighborhood Commercial

General Commercial

Professional Services

Downtown Bastrop

Public and Institutional

Industrial



Attachment 11



Burelson Crossing East
Warrant Requests 2-May-22

330' x 330' Block Size / 1,320 Block Length

Frontage / Parking / Driveways

Building Façade / Materials / Height 

Sidewalks / Connectivity

Civic Space / Landscape

B3 Code Section Description Development Issue Proposed Alternative Warrant Determination Response

5.2.002(b)

5.2.002(c)

5.2.002(d)

6.3.005(d) (1)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

6.3.006(b) (5)

6.3.006(b) (8)

6.3.006(b) (9)

6.3.008(d)

6.3.009(b)

6.3.009(c)

6.3.009(d)

Denied.  Willing to discuss alternative based on artitectural elevations and features 

that meet the intent to be human scale during the site development plan process.

Denied.   Not needed.  All buildings shown can be parallel to a public street that is 

not Wagon Wheel.

Denied.  This warrant cannot be considered until the Site Development Plan review 

with actual building elevations provided.

Denied.  Willing to discuss a reduction to 60% during Site Development Plan.

Denied at this time.  Will determine spacing at Site Development Plan.

Denied at this time.  Will deterime total number of driveways at Site Development 

Plan but are willing to entertain mutliple driveways that meet spacing requirements.

Denied.  More detail on pedestrian access to each building and specific architectural 

features that will be provided in lieu of providing interaction between the public and 

private realms is needed that will be determined at SDP.

Partially Approved.  Screening will be provided from all  public streets at a height of 3 

feet.

Denied.  Setbacks will be deternimed by the ICC requirements.

1,320 block provided by private drive aisle with sidewalks and trees - Approved.

2,880 farm lot provided with private drive aisle - Denied.  It does not meet TxDOT 

spacing for driveways on SH 71.

The B³ Code requires a maximum block perimeter of 1,320 feet in P-5.  For this 

proposed development, staff would support an internal private block perimeter of 

1,320 feet, with clearly established private drive aisles, with 6 foot pedestrian 

walkways on one side of the drive aisles.  The 2,880 foot farm lot perimter must be 

provided with publically dedicated streets that meet the B³ Code requirements in 

Chapter 7.

Partially approved. All private drives that are taking the place of the 330 grid will 

have trees and a six foot sidewalk.

Denied at this time.   This warrant review is appropriate at the time of Site 

Development Plan.

Private drive aisle provided at the 330 foot block level would be considered in lieu of 

the publically dedicated street and not an alley. Warrant not needed.

Denied.  Reviewed at Site Development Plan and bas Traffic should take access off of 

Secondary Frontages based on the 720' grid.

Limit this requirement to be from eastern property line along adjacent 

properties only

Allow ceiling heights to exceed 25'

Limit glazing to 70% of the building front for small multi-tenant buildings, 25% 

of the building front for larger retail buildings, an no glazing would be required 

for free-standing single use buildings such as restuarants and banks.  The 

building fronts shall be either the primary side of the building facing a public 

street, or the the side of the building facing the parking area servicing that 

building, whichever front the tenant / user has the storefront entrance. 

Allow any building facades to be parrallel to street ROW, or all the bulding front 

to deviate from being parallel to street ROW's

Allow façade to frontage width ratio to be reduced to 60% and measured 

cumulatively for entire block, not individual lots.  Remove building placement 

requirement relative to ROW.

Proposed driveways shall meet the minimum seperation from a public street of 

40 feet, as required by this section

Allow parking in any Layer

Limit screening to be required from Wagon Wheel, Edward Burleson and SH 71, 

and to include landscaping to a height of three feet

Driveway access to public streets shall meet 200' spacing between centerlines.  

Driveways utilized for fire or truck access, shall be wide enough to meet IFC 

requirements, and to allow safe manueverability by truck traffic.  Driveways 

with large volume of traffic may be widened as necessary to accomodate traffic 

volume.

Allow 30' wide private drives without street trees and sidewalks, to be utilized 

as boundary of blocks rather than public streets, as shown on Concept Site 

Plan.  A public street in this location would encourage cut-through traffic that 

would conflict with proposed service traffic and create a safety issue.

Propose a 6' walkway within median between parking rows across Lot 6, 

Provide additional pedestrian connectivity throughout site and to public 

ROW's.  Alternate pedestrian connectivity will be provided but is not required 

to align with proposed public or private drives.

Eliminate this requirement

Allow vehicular access from either alleys or public streets

To provide adequate traffic circulation, access should be taken from primary 

and secondary frontages

Requires parking to be located in the 2nd or 3rd Layer

Requires all parking to be screened either by building or other 

screening material

Prohibits parking to be located within the rear setback

Mid-block lots with more than 40' of frontage are only allowed 

one driveway, with a max width of 24' for two-way drives

For lots with more than 80' of frontage, driveway spacing shall be 

300'

Max block perimeter length of 1,320 ft

330' x 330' block size

Requires all vehicular access to be taken from alleys, if alleys are 

provided

For Corner Lots, driveways must be located in the Secondary 

Frontage

Driveways shall be located as far as practical from adjacent public 

streets

Building façade to be located within 30' of street corner and 

parking prohibited in First Layer

20' wide midblock pedestrian walkway for blocks that exceed (b) 

and (c)

Major Retailers expect their customers to be able to park in front of the front of the building for 

convenience, especially for customers with physical challenges

By definition, all parking areas would be required to be screened from view up to six feet in height, 

along public streets and adjacent lots and properties

For a Retail Shopping Center of this nature, many lot lines could potentially cross shared parking 

areas

Many major retailers standard prototypical buildings have ceiling heights greater than 25'.  This 

would deter those retailers from this shopping center.

As written, this would require the area of all four sides of a building to be glazed with 70% glazing, 

which is problematic for the sides and rears of any retail building

20' pedestrian walkway, with landscaping, would eliminate 2 rows of parking

For a Retail Shopping Center of this nature with large corner lots, this requirement cannot be met 

due to the parking and service / loading area needs of the retailers

Many proposed private drives would qualify as an alley, thus prohibiting access from public streets.

Major Retailers require lots to have more than 80 feet of frontage.  Limiting access to one driveway 

would create internal traffic congestion.  Fire Code requires driveways to be 25' wide.  Driveways 

with large volumes of traffic would be limited to one lane out, which would create traffic congestion

As written, this would require the area of all four sides of a building to be glazed with 20% glazing, 

which is problematic for the sides and rears of any retail building

Requires that front façade be at least 80% of the frontage width, 

requires the building to be located between 2'-15' from the ROW / 

Frontage

Building frontage façade must be parallel to the ROW Frontage 

Line

All first floor facades shall have clear glass glazing min. 20% of the 

total first floor façade area

Due to the definition of "building frontage" and surrounding conditions, this project would require at 

least one public road to be curvilinear, thus making this requirement architecturally difficult to meet 

and would limit architectural articulation and creativity.

Allow glazing to be limited to the side of the building where the primary 

entrance is located, or the side facing the primary parking area

First floor of Commercial buildings shall have 70% minimum 

glazing 

ICC doesn't address parking within setbacks or regulate zoning setbacks.

Architectural elevations can be developed to meet human scale 

independantly of allowing 25' ceiling heights.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning to ensure that buildings 

facing Wagon Wheel do not have to meet this requirement.

As codified, the glazing requirement is a deterent for a number of potential 

retailers.  This warrant needs to be determined with the Zoning as the project 

cannot be marketed to potential retailers without a clear understanding of 

what glazing is required.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to define the 

project constraints and to properly plan and market the Shopping Center to 

potential retailers.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to properly market 

the project to the major national retailers that would otherwise not accept 

the glazing limits.

B3 Topic Legend

6.3.003(a)(3)

6.5.003 - A

The bold Warrant Determination would require the Eastern Driveway to be a 

public street, thereby creating the issues outlined.  

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to properly plan 

the driveway locations / project layout.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to define the 

project constraints and to properly plan and market the Shopping Center to 

potential retailers.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to properly plan 

the driveway locations / project layout.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to define driveway 

requirements so as to market major large retailers

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to define driveway 

requirements so as to market major large retailers

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to define driveway 

requirements so as to market major large retailers

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to ensure that 

parking meets retailer requirements and an adequate number of spaces can 

be provided.  Shopping Center cannot be planned or marketed otherwise

To measure this for each individual lot is problematic, especially for smaller single building lots like 

restuarants that require substantial parking area relative to building

Due to the nature of this project (Retail Shopping Center), limiting block perimeter and block size is 

too restrictive and does not allow major retailers to utilize their prototypical buildings and site plans.  

Eastern driveway will be used for loading and servicing the shopping center by 18 wheeler trucks.  

Using the Eastern driveway as a City Street would create a safety issue between non-shopping center 

traffic and 18 wheeler trucks and other service vehicles, as the street could be used as a cut through 

street.  The additional ROW requested to meet the 330 foot grid would prevent many anchors and 

small tenant buildings from the shopping center due to the reduced parking and inadquate service / 

loading areas.  

This is an ambiguous statement and requirement

For a Retail Shopping Center of this nature, limiting access would limit options for customers and 

thus create internal traffic congestion

Max first floor story of a Commercial building cannot exceed 25' 

from floor to ceiling

jbills
Typewritten Text
Attachment 12



Burelson Crossing East
Warrant Requests 2-May-22

330' x 330' Block Size / 1,320 Block Length

Frontage / Parking / Driveways

Building Façade / Materials / Height 

Sidewalks / Connectivity

Civic Space / Landscape

B3 Code Section Description Development Issue Proposed Alternative Warrant Determination Response

1,320 block provided by private drive aisle with sidewalks and trees - Approved.Allow 30' wide private drives without street trees and sidewalks, to be utilized Max block perimeter length of 1,320 ft

B3 Topic Legend

The bold Warrant Determination would require the Eastern Driveway to be a Due to the nature of this project (Retail Shopping Center), limiting block perimeter and block size is 6.5.003 - D

7.3.003 - Connector

7.3.013(d)(1)

7.4.002(a)

Art. 7.5

B3 Tech. Manual

2.1.006(a)

3.2.008(c)

3.2.013(a)(1)

3.2.013(a)(4)

3.2.001(b)

This list of warrants includes only those code sections that can be identified at this stage, and thus may not be all inclusive of warrants ultimately needed for the project.  Additional Warrant Requests may be made in the future as the project progresses through the subdivision and 

site development phases of the project.

Denied.  All of the building shown (except for lot 3) show at least one side with no 

parking between the building and the street ROW.  

Approved.

Per Section 7.3.014 of the B³ Code, 2 inch trees are acceptable as long as they are a 

minimum height of 10 feet.

Denied.  Can be reviewed at Site Development Plan review

Partially Approved, if providing private civic space.

Partially Approved.  A 10' sidewalk will also be required along the 720' grid street to 

the east.

Denied at this time.   This warrant review is appropriate at the time of Public 

Improvement Plan.  Staff would be ameniable to changing the spacing requirement, 

but the number of trees required will still be determined on a 30 foot spacing for the 

length of the street.

Approved.  The 55.5 foot ROW is sufficient for the extension of Wagon Wheel, which 

is a 60' ROW.

Partially Approved. The B³ Code requires a maximum block perimeter of 1 320 feet in 

P-5 For this proposed development staff would support an internal private block 

perimeter of 1,320 feet, with clearly established private drive aisles, with 6 foot 

pedestrian walkways on one side of the drive aisles.  The 2,880 foot farm lot 

perimter must be provided with publically dedicated streets that meet the B³ 

Code requirements in Chapter 7.

Denied.  The Civic Space requirement is approximately 157,251.6 square feet.   Staff 

recommends providing a mix of private civic spaces as open green lawns, bus stop 

plazas along the streets, outdoor seating and benches.  Provide a proposal on the 

Conceptual Plan.

Requires pedestrian shed to have certain place type percentages

Allow 30' wide private drives without street trees and sidewalks, to be utilized 

as boundary of blocks rather than public streets, as shown on Concept Site 

Plan.  A public street in this location would encourage cut-through traffic that 

would conflict with proposed service traffic and create a safety issue.

Propose considering the existing public space constructed with the Burleson 

Crossing shopping center, which consists of a +/- 9000 SF gathering space, 

stage, lighting, and historical educational plaques, as consideration for the civic 

space requirement for this project.  According to the management for Burleson 

Crossing, that public space has not be reserved or used by the public since 

constructed over ten years ago.  

Street trees shall be 4" caliper and spaced every 30' on center

Requires plant material to meet very strict nursery / propagation 

standards

330' max block length, 1,320' max block perimeter

20' Pedestrian Way if block length exceeds 330'

Requires a Civic Space for development over 13.6 acres

Requires parking and drive aisles to be located within Layer 2 or 3

Denied at this time. Can be determined during SDP, once an interal 330' drive aisle 

grid is depicted that shows interal pedestrian 

Allow plants to be procured from any competant wholesale nursery supplier

Allow P5 to exceed the maximum pedestrian shed requirement

P5 street sidewalks to be min. 10' wide and located wholly within 

the street ROW.

For a Retail Shopping Center of this nature, sidewalks along both sides of Wagon Wheel is redundant 

and provides no additional connectivity.  Requiring sidewalks to be contained within ROW limits the 

ability to incorporate sidewalks into a native landscape scheme

Require one 6' sidewalk along one side of Wagon Wheel.  Allow all street 

sidewalks to meander out of ROW, but to be incorporated into a sidewalk 

easement as necessary

Trees evenly spaced at 30' would detract from a native / natural landscape scheme.  4" caliper trees 

are very scarce at this time due to last year's freeze and other conditions

Required standards further limits the availability of procuring a widely varying and diverse mix of 

plant material and species

With the adjacent existing developments to this project that would be classified as P5 Place Types, 

this requirement cannot be met

Allow parking in any Layer

Allow more variation in tree spacing and tree size with 2" minimum, as 

determined by Landscape Architect

Propose no additional ROW for Wagon Wheel.  Edward Burleson was platted 

with a 10' ROW Reserve on the opposite side of the street.  Any additional 

ROW required along the project side of Burleson shall be determined and 

commensurate with any proposed improvements to Burleson

Though this project slightly exceeds 13.6 acres, it is considered a relatively small shopping center 

and thus cannot accommodate a dedicated civic space

Major Retailers expect their customers to be able to park in front of the front of the building for 

convenience, especially for customers with physical challenges

Due to the nature of this project (Retail Shopping Center), limiting block perimeter and block size is 

too restrictive and does not allow major retailers to utilize their prototypical buildings and site plans.

Major Retailers expect their customers to be able to park in front of the front of the building for 

convenience, especially for customers with physical challenges

This would require 70' of ROW for Wagon Wheel rather than 56', and would increase Edward 

Burleson from 60' to 67'.  

Requires an additional 7' of ROW on each side of a road if P5 is 

located on both sides of the road

Allow parking in any Layer

16' wide sidewalks along both sides of road, trees every 30' on 

center both sides of road

16' wide sidewalks are excessively wide for this type of project and would not be consistent with 

adjacent shopping center.  Trees evenly spaced at 30' would detract from a native / natural 

landscape scheme.

Propose 6' wide sidewalk along one side of Wagon Wheel, and along the 

project side of Edward Burleson and SH 71.  Allow more variation in tree 

spacing as determined by Landscape Architect, to be consistent and similar to 

the requirements established in the Burleson Crossing Chapter 380 Agreement.

Allow more variation in tree spacing as determined by Landscape Architect, to 

be consistent and similar to the requirements established in the Burleson 

Crossing Chapter 380 Agreement.

Trees evenly spaced at 30' would detract from a native / natural landscape schemeTrees every 30' on center along both sides of the road

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to properly plan 

and market the project.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to ensure that 

parking meets retailer requirements and an adequate number of spaces can 

be provided.  Shopping Center cannot be planned or marketed otherwise

Encouraging pedestrian traffic along the Eastern Driveway in the close 

proximity to the loading and servicing area of the shopping center is 

unnecessary as there are no pedestrian destinations along that route, and 

creates potential safety issues with service trucks.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to adequately plan 

and market the project.

7.3.003 - Reg Comm

7.4.002(b)

The bold Warrant Determination would require the Eastern Driveway to be a 

public street, thereby creating the issues outlined.  

The existing Civic Space in the original Burleson Crossing Center would be 

enhanced with additional seating areas, decorative benches, canopies, and 

other enhancements.

This warrant needs to be determined with Zoning in order to ensure that 

parking meets retailer requirements and an adequate number of spaces can 

be provided.  Shopping Center cannot be planned or marketed otherwise as 

Layer 1 is defined as that space between the front of the building and the 

public realm, not just any building side.  

Limits Parking to Layer 3



ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

SI
G

N

STOP

FF
 =

 3
75

.5
0

IB
C 

BA
N

K

STOP

STO
P

STOP

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

STOP

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

N
87

°4
1'

50
"E

 5
41

.7
3'

A9
8 

BL
AK

EY
, N

AN
C

Y 
TR

AC
T 

2

ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

70.00'

57.00'

180.00'

60
.0

0'

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

92.00'

113.00'

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E

25
1.

83
'

244.25'

193.00'

19
5.

00
'

124.98'

19
5.

67
'

19
3.

98
'

74.65'

77
.2

2'

10
0.

00
'

50.00'

21
3.

56
'

21
3.

56
'

21
3.

56
'

76
.9

3'

0

SCALE IN FEET

502550 100

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

SHEET NO.

SHEETS

A141-0401-405

BU
R

LE
SO

N
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

PL
AN

S 
FO

R
 S

IT
E 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

BY
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

LJ
A

 E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 &
 S

ur
ve

yi
ng

, I
nc

.

Au
sti

n, 
Te

xa
s  

78
73

5

53
16

 H
igh

wa
y 2

90
 W

es
t

Su
ite

 15
0

Ph
on

e 5
12

.43
9.4

70
0

Fa
x 5

12
.43

9.4
71

6
D

R
AW

N
 B

Y:

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

AM
E:

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

JOB NUMBER:

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

8 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\E
xh

ib
its

\p
ub

lic
 e

xh
ib

it.
dw

g

La
st

 M
od

ifi
ed

:  
M

ay
. 0

3,
 2

2 
- 1

4:
29

Pl
ot

 D
at

e/
Ti

m
e:

 M
ay

. 0
3,

 2
2 

- 1
4:

42
:2

4

U
se

r: 
cs

te
dm

an

FR
N-

F-
13

86
EX

H
IB

IT
 1

-A

 H
DET. POND

RETAIL
7,906 S.F.

RETAIL 43,000 SF

0.064
ACRE
ESMT.

5,710 S.F. REST.

RETAIL 58,475 SF

 RETAIL 37,935 SF

REST. 4,000 SF

BUILDING E

BUILDING C

BUILDING A

BUILDING B

BUILDING D

4,000 S.F. REST.

RETAIL. 4,400 SF

5/3/2022

SIDEWALK CONNECTION
TO BE DETERMINED

AT SITE PLAN

PUBLIC DRIVE

PRIVATE DRIVE

SIDEWALKS

CITY PROPOSED
DRIVE

BLD. F
5,000 SF

EA
ST

 T
R

AC
T 

- M
AY

 2
02

2

B
 1.89 ACRES

A
1.57 ACRES

E
8.653

ACRES

C
4.253

ACRES

F
1.10

ACRES

D
0.77

ACRES

ROW
0.776

ACRES

ROW
0.802

ACRES

O
W

N
ER

 P
LA

N



N
87

°4
1'

50
"E

 5
41

.7
3'

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

SI
G

N

STOP

FF
 =

 3
75

.5
0

IB
C 

BA
N

K

STOP

STOP

STO
P

STOP

LO
AD

IN
G

 Z
O

N
E

STOP

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

N
87

°4
1'

50
"E

 5
41

.7
3'

N2°15'34.31"W 1494.97'

A9
8 

BL
AK

EY
, N

AN
C

Y 
TR

AC
T 

2

ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E

25
1.

83
'

244.25'

193.00'

19
5.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

50.00'

70.00'

57
.0

0'

92.00'

87
.7

8'

124.98'

19
5.

67
'

19
3.

98
'

1.500
ACRES

C
2.132

ACRES

B
1.465

ACRES

2.035
ACRES

2.094
ACRES

2.177
ACRES

1.815
ACRES

R.O.W. 4.773 ACRES

0

SCALE IN FEET

502550 100

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

SHEET NO.

OF SHEETS

A141-0401-405

BU
R

LE
SO

N
 C

R
O

SS
IN

G
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

PL
AN

S 
FO

R
 S

IT
E 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

BY
D

AT
E

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

LJ
A

 E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 &
 S

ur
ve

yi
ng

, I
nc

.

Au
sti

n, 
Te

xa
s  

78
73

5

53
16

 H
igh

wa
y 2

90
 W

es
t

Su
ite

 15
0

Ph
on

e 5
12

.43
9.4

70
0

Fa
x 5

12
.43

9.4
71

6
D

R
AW

N
 B

Y:

D
AT

E:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 N

AM
E:

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y:

C
H

EC
KE

D
 B

Y:

JOB NUMBER:

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

8 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\E
xh

ib
its

\p
ub

lic
 e

xh
ib

it2
.d

w
g

La
st

 M
od

ifi
ed

:  
M

ay
. 0

3,
 2

2 
- 1

4:
33

Pl
ot

 D
at

e/
Ti

m
e:

 M
ay

. 0
3,

 2
2 

- 1
4:

41
:2

5

U
se

r: 
cs

te
dm

an

FR
N-

F-
13

86

H
DET. POND

RETAIL
5,906 S.F.

RETAIL 43,000 SF

0.064
ACRE
ESMT.

5,710 S.F. REST.

58,475 SF

 RETAIL 37,935 SF

BUILDING E

BUILDING C BUILDING A

BUILDING B

4,000 S.F. REST.

5/3/2022

SIDEWALK CONNECTION
TO BE DETERMINED

AT SITE PLAN

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
-B

 
EA

ST
 T

R
AC

T 
- M

AY
 2

02
2

PUBLIC DRIVE

PRIVATE DRIVE

SIDEWALKS C
IT

Y 
B-

3 
C

O
D

E 
PL

AN

REMOVED 8,000SF
BUILDING

BUILDING
F

RETAIL
5,000 SF

A
1.809 ACRES

F
1.10

ACRES



W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

SETTLEMENT DR.

TR
AI

L 
DR

IV
E 

CI
R

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

SETTLEMENT DR.

TR
AI

L 
DR

IV
E 

CI
R

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

SI
G

N

STOP
STOP

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXX

LOT 5
1.26 AC.

LOT 3
4.56 AC. LOT 2

1.40 AC.

LOT 1
2.05 AC.

LOT 4
0.85 AC.

LOT 6
8.87 AC.

BUILDING A
COMMERCIAL

3,450SF
HT = 30' MAX

PROP.
DETENTION

POND 'A'

BUILDING H
COMMERCIAL

5,000SF
HT = 30' MAX

BUILDING B
COMMERCIAL

11,900SF
HT = 30' MAX

COMMERCIAL
HT = 60' MAX
BUILDING F

37,600SF

COMMERCIAL
HT = 60' MAX
BUILDING G

61,200SF

BUILDING E
COMMERCIAL

10,800SF
HT = 30' MAX

BUILDING D
COMMERCIAL

17,900SF
HT = 60' MAX

BUILDING C
COMMERCIAL

24,250SF
HT = 60' MAX

EXIST. PUBLIC STREET
(TO BE WIDENED)

EXIST. PUBLIC STREET

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

TR
EE

T
(E

XT
EN

SI
O

N
 O

F 
BL

AK
EY

 L
N

.)

PR
O

P. PU
BLIC

 LO
C

AL

C
O

N
N

EC
TO

R
 STR

EET

(W
AG

O
N

 W
H

EEL EXTEN
SIO

N
)

P5

P5

P5

P5

P5

P5

SETTLEMENT DR.

20
'

20
'

20'

87.86'

43
.1

0'

31
4.

37
'

54.00'

95.57'

P5 PLACE TYPE

PROP. SIDEWALK

BLOCK DIMENSIONS
BUILDING

FRONTAGE
BUILDING FACADE
DIRECTION

20'

32
2.

78
8 

AC
R

ES

A9
8 

BL
AK

EY
, N

AN
C

Y 
TR

AC
T 

2

ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E

SCALE IN FEET

0 603060 120

LJA Engineering, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

7500 Rialto Boulevard
Building II, Suite 100

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

ZONING CONCEPT PLAN

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

8 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\E
xh

ib
its

\L
AY

ER
S 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
.d

w
g 

M
ay

 0
3,

 2
02

2 
- 1

0:
48

am

FRN-F-1386

BURLESON CROSSING EAST

BUILDING
FRONTAGE

BU
ILD

IN
G

FR
O

N
TAG

E

BU
IL

D
IN

G
FR

O
N

TA
G

E
BU

IL
D

IN
G

FR
O

N
TA

G
E

BUILDING
FRONTAGE

BUILDING
FRONTAGE

BUILDING
FRONTAGE

1ST LAYER - 2' TO 15' FROM FRONTAGE

2ND LAYER - 20' BEHIND 1ST LAYER

3RD LAYER - REST OF LOT

LEGEND

20
'

20'

20
'

20'

20
'

14
12

.8
2'

600.00'

89.96'

10
8.

19
'

38
.3

6'

455.21'

SE
C

O
N

D
AR

Y 
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

SECONDARY FRONTAGE SECONDARY
FRONTAGE

SE
C

O
N

D
AR

Y
FR

O
N

TA
G

E
PARKING SHED LAYER CONCEPT PLAN

OWNER PLAN
EXHIBIT 2-A



W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

SETTLEMENT DR.

TR
AI

L 
DR

IV
E 

CI
R

W
AG

O
N 

W
HE

EL

SETTLEMENT DR.

TR
AI

L 
DR

IV
E 

CI
R

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.

10
' R

.O
.W

.
R

ES
ER

VE
/P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

25
' B

.L
.

(5
/1

4A
)

20
' T

.E
./P

.U
.E

.
(5

/1
4A

)

BA
ST

R
O

P 
C

O
U

N
TY

 ( 
ET

J)
BA

ST
R

O
P 

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

32
2.

78
8 

AC
R

ES

A9
8 

BL
AK

EY
, N

AN
C

Y 
TR

AC
T 

2

ST
AT

E 
H

W
Y.

 7
1

EDWARD BURLESON LANE

65.00' ROW

40.00'
PVMT

BL
AK

EY
 L

AN
E SI

G
N

STOP
STOP

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXX

LOT 5
1.26 AC.

LOT 3
4.56 AC. LOT 2

1.40 AC.

LOT 1
2.05 AC.

LOT 6
8.87 AC.

BUILDING A
COMMERCIAL

3,450SF
HT = 30' MAX

PROP.
DETENTION

POND 'A'

BUILDING H
COMMERCIAL

5,000SF
HT = 30' MAX

BUILDING B
COMMERCIAL

11,900SF
HT = 30' MAX

COMMERCIAL
HT = 60' MAX
BUILDING F

37,600SF

COMMERCIAL
HT = 60' MAX
BUILDING G

61,200SF

BUILDING D
COMMERCIAL

17,900SF
HT = 60' MAX

BUILDING C
COMMERCIAL

24,250SF
HT = 60' MAX

EXIST. PUBLIC STREET
(TO BE WIDENED)

EXIST. PUBLIC STREET

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

TR
EE

T
(E

XT
EN

SI
O

N
 O

F 
BL

AK
EY

 L
N

.)

PR
O

P. PU
BLIC LO

C
AL

C
O

N
N

EC
TO

R
 STR

EET

(W
AG

O
N

 W
H

EEL EXTEN
SIO

N
)

P5

P5

P5

P5

P5

P5

SETTLEMENT DR.

20
'

20'

20'

20
'

20'

20'

38.19'

43
.1

0'

27
0.

80
'

54.00'

100.23'

P5 PLACE TYPE

PROP. SIDEWALK

BLOCK DIMENSIONS
BUILDING

FRONTAGE
BUILDING FACADE
DIRECTION

SCALE IN FEET

0 603060 120

LJA Engineering, Inc.

Austin, Texas  78735

7500 Rialto Boulevard
Building II, Suite 100

Phone 512.439.4700
Fax 512.439.4716

I:\
A1

41
 B

as
tro

p\
40

8 
- B

ur
le

so
n 

Ea
st

\E
xh

ib
its

\L
AY

ER
S 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
 C

O
B 

AL
T.

dw
g 

M
ay

 0
3,

 2
02

2 
- 1

0:
51

am

FRN-F-1386

BU
IL

D
IN

G
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

BU
IL

D
IN

G
FR

O
N

TA
G

EBU
IL

D
IN

G
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

BU
IL

D
IN

G
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

BUILDING
FRONTAGE

BUILDING
FRONTAGE

1ST LAYER - 2' TO 15' FROM FRONTAGE

2ND LAYER - 20' BEHIND 1ST LAYER

3RD LAYER - REST OF LOT

LEGEND

20'

20
'

20'

20
'

SHT. 05 OF 10

89.96'

98
.4

0'

38
.3

6'

455.21'

SE
C

O
N

D
AR

Y 
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

SECONDARY FRONTAGE SECONDARY
FRONTAGE

SE
C

O
N

D
AR

Y
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

ZONING CONCEPT PLAN
BURLESON CROSSING EAST

PARKING SHED LAYER CONCEPT PLAN
CITY PLAN B-3 CODE

EXHIBIT 2-B



 
 Annually 10 Years 

Est. Taxable Sales Potential $4,600,000 $46,000,000 

Resulting Sales Tax to City $69,000 $690,000 

Annual Est. Property Tax $89,183 $891,830 

Estimated NOI Lost to Developer $496,000 $4,960,000 



SALES TAXES 
 
 
 

BURLESON CROSSING  
  
2021 Total Gross Taxable Sales $151,027,867 
  
Total Sales Tax Reimbursement Back to Bastrop $2,265,418 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
BURLESON CROSSING EAST  
  
Projected Retail Sales Based on Similar Uses in Burleson Crossing *  

 
  
 Building A $4,000,000 
 Building B $5,100,000 
 Building C $2,800,000 
 Building D $19,000,000 
 Building E $50,000,000 
 Building F $2,000,000 
  Total $82,900,000 
  
  
Total Gross Taxable Sales $82,900,000 
Sales Tax Rate 1.5% 
  
Projected Sales Tax Reimbursement Back to Bastrop $1,243,500 
  
  
  
*  Projections based on today's dollars - no inflation.   Assumes built-out Center. 
   
  

 



PROPERTY TAXES 
 
 
 

BURLESON CROSSING  
  
Total Property Taxes Paid Since 2007 - All Tracts  
  
Burleson Crossing Rollback Taxes $1,097,712 
Burleson Crossing Ad Valorem Taxes (2007 through 2021) $13,220,475 
Total Taxes Paid $14,318,187 
  
Total Property Taxes Paid in 2021 $1,269,698 
  
Burleson Crossing Land Real Estate Tax Prior to 2007 Land was not within the 

City, not zoned and taxed 
as agricultural use 

  
  
  
  
  
  
BURLESON CROSSING EAST  
(Based on Burleson Crossing historical values)  
  
  
Estimated Valuation - Built Out $26,300,000 
Current Tax Rate / $100 $2.3974 
Projected Annual Property Taxes $630,516 
  
2021 Current Value of Land (Agricultural Valuation) $2,183 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 



Burleson Crossing Stores Employees Burleson Crossing East Projected Employees

A+ Federal Credit Union 7 Building A 55

Academy 100 Building B 90

AEG Vision 11 Building C 87

AT&T Mobility 11 Building D 80

Best Buy 100 Building E 155

Arby's 20 Building F 45

Castle Dental #35230 7 TOTAL 512

Chick-Fil-A 40

DoubleDave's 17

Factory Mattress 2

FastMed Urgent Care 10

Five Below #1141 15

Garcia's Mexican Restaurant 30

Great Clips #9318 7

Hobby Lobby #0668 33

HomeGoods #864 27

IBC 8

James Avery 15

Kay Jewelers 7

Lowe's #2840 175

Maurice's #2080 14

Old Navy #6310 41

Petco #1496 17

PT Solutions Physical Therapy 5

Rack Room Shoes #640 12

Ross Dress For Less #1511 18

rue21 #1260 15

Sertinos Coffee 3

Spec’s Liquor #38 11

Studio Nails 10

Subway #45382 7

TJ Maxx #1316 61

Ulta Salon #1071 18

Wingstop #1035 15

TOTAL 889



CSJ 0265-04-051

R.O.W. MAP

AS PER TxDOT

ACCESS DENIED

153'*

322'*

 See Chapter 2, Section 5 For Variance Process.
 For Spacing Less Than  Minimum A Variance Is Required.  
 TxDOT Access Management Manual Table 2-1.  
*Minimum Spacing 425' Spacing As Per

JESSICA PL.

BLAKEY LANE

E
D

W
A

R
D
 

B
U

R
L
E
S

O
N
 

L
A

N
E

D
U

R
R
 

D
R
IV

E

E
X

T
E

N
S
IO

N
F

U
T

U
R

E

Radius=2864.789'

Radius=2864.789'

S
E
T

T
L
E

M
E

N
T
 

D
R
.

905+00

910+00

915+00

920+00

925+00

930+00

935+00

940+00

945+00

950+00

955+00

960+00

1
1

L
J

A
 E

n
g
in

e
e
r
in

g
, 
In

c
.

F
R

N
 -
 F
-1

3
8
6

A
L
T
 
1

SCALE:

1 : 100 H

E
D

W
A

R
D
 

B
U

R
L
E
S

O
N
 

L
A

N
E
 

A
T
 

S
H
 

7
1

T
H

O
R

O
U

G
H

F
A

R
E
 

A
L
T

E
R

N
A

T
IV

E
S

LEGEND

TxDOT CONTROL OF ACCESS LINE

EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY LINE

PROPOSED RIGHT OF WAY LINE

PROPOSED DRIVEWAY 

FUTURE PAVEMENT

PROPOSED PAVEMENT

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W
.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

PROP. R.O.W.

PROP. R.O
.W.

PROP. R.O
.W.

P
R

O
P
. 

R
.O
.W

.

80'

80'

55.5'

55.5'

Radius=60'

Radius=600'

80'

E
X
IS

T
. 

R
.O
.W

.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

EXIST. R.O.W.

71
TEXAS

71
TEXAS

TEXAS

304

100+00

105+00

110+00

115+00

120+00

1
2
5

+
0
0

1
3
0

+
0
0

1
3
5

+
0
0

1
4
0

+
0
0

dmiller
Typewritten Text
DRAFT / CONCEPTUAL




S
E
T

T
L
E

M
E

N
T
 

D
R
.

B
U

R
L
E
S

O
N
 

L
A

N
E

E
D

W
A

R
D
 

935+00

940+00

945+00

$
D

A
T

E
$

$
$
$
$
$

D
G

N
$

S
P

E
C
I

F
I

C
A

T
I

O
N
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$

S
Y

S
T
I

M
E
$
$
$
$
$

LJA Engineering, Inc.
FRN - F-1386

0' 100'50'25'

SCALE: 1"=100'

LEGEND

EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY LINE

PROPOSED SIDEWALK/PED RAMP 

PROPOSED PAVEMENT

EXISTING PAVEMENT

EXIST. R.O.W.

100'425' 360'

100'

TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING DRIVEWAY

TEXAS

304

BURLESON CROSSING

OPTION 1

RIGHT TURN LANE

SITE DRIVEWAY

71
TEXAS

dmiller
Typewritten Text
DRAFT / CONCEPTUAL



	May 24, 2022 Executed Agenda
	4A - 1 Mayor's Report
	4A - 2 24May22
	Slide Number 1
	Latest Activities�May 5 - 18
	Planned Events�May 19 – May 24
	Slide Number 4

	4B - 1 Council Member's Report
	4C - 1 City Manager's Report
	5A-1 Staff report BISD
	5A-2
	5A-3 Gills Brach city engineer memo
	5B - 1 Staff Report Pecan Park MOU
	5B - 2 Pecan Park 5-24-22 Final 5.18.22
	5B - 3 timeline
	5B - 4 summary of issues
	Sheet1

	5B - 5
	5B - 6 Amended Restated Agreement for Development of Land - 5-11-22
	6A - 1 Monthly Financials Staff Report - March 31, 2022
	6A - 2 Monthly Rpt April 2022
	Slide Number 1
	Performance at a Glance�as of April 30, 2022�
	�
	�
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13

	7  - Citizen Comments
	8A - 1 Minutes Staff Report
	8A - 2 Regular MINUTES 5-10-2022
	STAFF AND BOARD REPORTS

	8A - 3 MINUTES 5-12-2022 Budget Pre-Planning Workshop
	8B - 1 Staff Report_ TRC Engineers_Riverwood WM Replacement
	8B - 2 RESOLUTION NO. R-2022-52 Riverwood Water Main Replacement
	RESOLUTION NO. R-2022-52
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS:
	APPROVED:
	ATTEST:
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:
	___________________________________

	8B - 3 TDA Engineering Contract  - Riverwood WM Replacement
	2021 CDBG Application (Water Line) Exhibit-MAP.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	8.5x11



	9A - 1 Staff Report for Burleson Crossing East Annexation
	9A - 2 Ordinance 2022-14 Burleson Crossing East Annexation
	9A - 3 Exhibit A - Metes and Bounds
	9A - 4 Service Plan
	Bastrop Municipal Services Plan-Duff Development 12.9 Tract (05.10.22) JCB
	TERM OF SERVICE PLAN
	INTENT
	POLICE
	EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE
	BUILDING INSPECTION
	PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT - SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT
	LIBRARY
	HEALTH CODE SERVICE
	STREET
	STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
	WATER SERVICE
	SANITARY SEWER SERVICE/WASTEWATER SERVICE
	SOLID WASTE SERVICES
	PARKS AND RECREATION
	BUSINESS LICENSES AND REGULATIONS
	ELECTRIC SERVICE
	MISCELLANEOUS
	CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS, AVAILABILITY, AND LEVEL OF SERVICES
	AMENDMENTS
	USE OF PROPERTY
	CONFLICTS

	Exhibits A-F
	Municipal Services Topo - Burleson
	Municipal Services Emergency Services - Burleson
	Municipal Services WasteWater CCN - Burleson
	Municipal Services Water CCN - Burleson
	Municipal Services Electric - Burleson


	9A - 5 Attachment 1 - Location Map
	9A - 6 Attachment 2
	9A - 7 Attachment 3 - Chapter 43 Development Agreement 12.911 acres of Nancy Blakey Survey
	9B - 1 Staff Report for Burleson Crossing ZCS
	9B - 2 Memo
	9B - 3 Ordinance 2022-15 Burleson Crossing East ZCS
	9B - 4 Exhibit A - Burleson Crossing East - Zoning Concept Scheme
	Sheets and Views
	01 COVER SHEET
	02 OVERALL AERIAL VIEW
	04 BUILDING ELEVATION PLAN
	05 SITE LAYERS CONCEPT PLAN
	06 CONCEPTUAL DRAINAGE PLAN
	07 CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
	10 PEDESTRIAN SHED MAP & CALCULATIONS

	burleson east concept plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1 (4)
	OLE1
	OLE2




	9B - 5 Attachment 1 - Location Map - Burleson Crossing East
	9B - 6 Attachment 2 - Applicant Project Description Letter
	9B - 7 Attachment 3 - Applicant's Warrant Requests and Response with Planning Determination
	9B - 8 Attachment 4 - Applicant Street Driveway and Sidewalk Layout
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1 (4)
	OLE1
	OLE2



	9B - 9 Attachment 5 - Applicant Stated Effect of 720' Farm Lot Grid
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1 (4)
	OLE1
	OLE2



	9B - 10 Attachment 6 - Required Street Grid Right-of-Way
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	9B - 11 Attachment 7 - Preliminary Traffic Impact
	A141-407-ALT1_SCM_GRID
	A141-407-DRVWY1_OPTION_GRID
	TIASummary03-08-22EB
	TIASummary03-08-22WB

	9B - 12 Attachment 8 -  Property Owner Notice and Responses
	Zoning Letter Mail Out 05.11.2022.pdf
	Notice to Property Owners - Zoning May 24, 2022


	9B - 13 Attachment 9 - Zoning Map - Burleson Crossing East
	9B - 14 Attachment 10 - FLUM - Burleson Crossing East
	9B - 15 Attachment 11 - Letter to postpone to May 24, 2022
	9B - 16 Attachment 12 - Additional Information from Applicant after March 31 P&Z meeting



